NON-CONFIDENTIAL

Marmion House,
Lichfield Street, Tamworth,
Staffordshire B79 7BZ.

Enquiries: 01827 709 709
Facsimile: 01827 709 271

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

18 October 2012

Dear Councillor

A Meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee will be held in Committee Room 1 -

Marmion House on Thursday, 25th October, 2012 at 6.00 pm. Members of the

Committee are requested to attend.

Yours faithfully

AGENDA

NON CONFIDENTIAL

1 Apologies for Absence
2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 4)

3 Declarations of Interest



To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (pecuniary and non-
pecuniary) in any matters which are to be considered at this meeting.

When Members are declaring a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in

respect of which they have dispensation, they should specify the nature of
such interest. Members should leave the room if they have a pecuniary or
non-pecuniary interest in respect of which they do not have a dispensation.

4  Annual Audit Letter 2011/12 (Pages 5 - 8)
(Report of the Audit Commission)

5 Proposed Changes to Financial Guidance (Pages 9 - 112)
(Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services)

6 Risk Management Report (Pages 113 - 148)
(Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services)

7 Annual Governance Statement 2011/12 - Update (Pages 149 - 156)
(Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services)

8 Internal Audit Quarterly Report 2012/13 (Pages 157 - 174)
(Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services)

People who have a disability and who would like to attend the meeting should contact
Democratic Services on 01827 709264 or e-mail committees@tamworth.gov.uk
preferably 24 hours prior to the meeting. We can then endeavour to ensure that any
particular requirements you may have are catered for.

To Councillors: M Gant, M Couchman, K Gant, J Garner, S Peaple, P Seekings and M
Thurgood



Agenda ltem 2

3=

s

o ) ‘
Y e
g{%{%}%{ﬂ%}#ﬁ ;

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
HELD ON 27th SEPTEMBER 2012

PRESENT: Councillor M Gant (Chair), Councillors M Couchman, K Gant,
J Garner, S Peaple, P Seekings and M Thurgood

Officers John Wheatley (Executive Director Corporate Services),
Jane Hackett (Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring
Officer), Stefan Garner (Director of Finance) and Angela
Struthers (Head of Internal Audit Services)

Visitors James Cook (Audit Commission)
Joan Barnett (Audit Commission)

18  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
None
19  APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR
RESOLVED: That Councillor J Garner be appointed as Vice-Chair.

(Moved by Councillor M Gant and seconded by Councillor K Gant)

20 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2012 were approved and signed as
a correct record.
(Moved by Councillor M Gant and seconded by Coucillor P Seeking)

21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no Declarations of Interest.

22  ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT

1
Page 1



23

24

25

Audit and Governance 27 September 2012
Committee

The Audit Commission gave a presentation on their Annual Governance Report.
This was the last report from the Audit Commission as the next report will be from
Grant Thornton. The headline message is a clean audit report containing the best
value for money conclusion in the last 4 years.

(Moved by Councillor S Peaple and seconded by Councillor J Garner)

ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2011/12

The report of Executive Director Corporate Services seeking approval of the
Statements of Accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2012 following
completion of the external audit was considered.

RESOLVED: That Members approved the Annual Statement of
Accounts 2011/12
(Moved by Councillor M Gant and seconded by
Councillor S Peaple)

REVIEW OF TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2012/13 & ANNUAL
REPORT ON THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT SERVICE AND ACTUAL
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2011/12

The report of the Director of Finance seeking to review the Treasury Management
Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Statement and Annual
Investment Statement 2012/13 and Annual Report on the Treasury Management
Services and Actual Prudential Indicators 2011/12 approved by Council on 28
February 2012 and 11 September 2012 respectively was considered.

RESOLVED: That Members considered the Treasury Management
Reports, as detailed within the reports, and highlighted
changes for recommendation to Cabinet.

(Moved by Councillor S Peaple and seconded by
Councillor M Gant)

INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY REPORT 2012/13

The report of the Head of Internal Audit Services reporting on the outcome of

Internal Audit’s review of the internal control, risk management and governance

framework in the 1% quarter of 2012/13 was considered.

RESOLVED: That the Committee endorsed the quarterly report.

(Moved by Councillor M Gant and seconded by
Councillor M Thurgood)

2
Page 2



26

27

28

Audit and Governance 27 September 2012
Committee

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION UPDATE REPORT

The report of the Head of Internal Audit Services providing Members with an
update of Counter Fraud work completed to date during the financial year
2012/13 was considered.

RESOLVED: That:
1 The Committee endorsed the updated Counter Fraud
Work Plan, and;
2  The Committee endorsed the Fraud Risk Register.
(Moved by Councillor M Gant and seconded by
Councillor S Peaple)

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000
The report of the Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer was considered

RESOLVED: That the Audit and Governance Committee endorse the
quarterly RIPA monitoring report.
(Moved by Councillor S Peaple and seconded by
Councillor K Gant)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN'S ANNUAL REVIEW AND REPORT
2011/12

The report of the Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer advising the
Committee of the views of the Local Government Ombudsman in relation to
complaints against the Borough Council and providing an opportunity for
members of the Committee to raise any issues they consider appropriate and
considering the effectiveness of investigations relating to Tamworth Borough
Council was considered.

RESOLVED: That:
1 The Committee endorsed the Annual Review Letter,
and,;
2  The Committee endorsed the Annual Report
(Moved by Councillor S Peaple and seconded by
Councillor M Gant)

Chair

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



VA‘ aé‘cl)'r%ission

2 October 2012

Members Direct line 0844 798 6698
Tamworth Borough Council Email j-cook@audit-

Marmion House
Lichfield Street
Tamworth

B79 7BZ

Dear Member

commission.gov.uk

Tamworth Borough Council Annual Audit Letter 2011/12

| am pleased to submit my Annual Audit Letter which summarises my 2011/12 audit of
Tamworth Borough Council.

Financial statements

On 27 September 2012 | presented my Annual Governance Report (AGR) to the Audit and
Governance Committee outlining the findings of my audit of the Authority’s 2011/12 financial
statements. | will not replicate those findings in this letter.
Following the Audit Committee I:
e issued an unqualified opinion on the Authority’s 2011/12 financial statements included in
the Authority’s Statement of Accounts;

e concluded that you have made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in your use of resources;

o certified completion of the audit.

Key Issues for the Council
As noted above | do not propose to replicate the findings of my AGR within this letter. However,
| have identified three key issues, from the audit perspective, that | believe the Council will need
to keep under review in its financial planning for the future, namely:

e Medium Term Financial Position

e Proposals for Business Rate Retention

e Council Tax Benefit Reform

Page 5



| have summarised these below:
Medium Term Financial Position

Your General Fund reserves that are not earmarked for specific purposes now stand at

£4 7million. Your medium term financial strategy (MTFS) includes the planned use of £3.7million
of reserves over the next four years. Thus the level of reserves remains over £1m in 4 years
time, which is more than the minimum level of £0.5million set by the Council on the advice of the
Executive Director Corporate Services (EDCS). Additional reserves of £6.7million have been
set aside by the Council for specific purposes. You need to keep these under review in case
any of these are no longer required.

Your Housing Revenue Account reserves that are not earmarked for specific purposes now
stand at £4.5million. Your MTFS includes the planned use of £4million of these reserves over
the next four years. The level of reserves remains at £0.5million in four year years’ time in line
with your EDCS’ recommendation to increase the reserves to that level following the move to
HRA self-financing. In addition, earmarked reserves have been set up that may be required to
support specific HRA expenditure in future. The level of these reserves is £0.7million.

A combination of unexpected “one-off” windfall savings and careful financial management at
Tamworth has enabled the Council to increase these reserves in recent years. However the
current economic climate continues to affect public finances placing authorities under
considerable financial pressure. It is likely that there may be further cuts in funding and the
Council will need to use some of its reserves to maintain spending levels. It is important to
remember that reserves can only be used once. You therefore need to continue to ensure the
savings plans remain realistic and to monitor their implementation.

Proposals for Business Rate Retention

The proposals for Business Rates retention will result in a resource allocation system based in
part on the level of business rates increase in an area rather than a needs based system. A
proportion of future local increases or decreases in Business Rates will be retained or managed
by local authorities. At present these local movements in Business Rates are balanced within
national funding arrangements. Officers are currently preparing a paper to be presented to the
Cabinet meeting on 17 October 2012. The paper will present the options available for the
pooling of business rates that will be inform the Cabinet in its consideration of the options to
pursue. However, as the base-line for the new Business Rate retention scheme has not yet
been set, the Council will need to ensure detailed financial modelling for the options are carried
out as the details of the new scheme emerge.

Page 6



Council Tax Benefit Reform

Plans to localise council tax benefit are set to go live in 2013/14, the same year as the business
rates changes. The council tax benefit reform, which will see central government hand
responsibility for setting council tax benefit and distribution over to councils, come together with
a 10% cut in funding. These changes could result in significant benefit cuts for a large number
of people in some areas. The Council will need to carefully consider the future financial
implications of the local benefit scheme it introduces, both for benefits claimants and for the
Council’s financial position. In addition, the operational and ICT system challenges of
maintaining a local scheme for administering council tax support need to be addressed.

Future external audit arrangements and fees

On 28 July 2011 Ministers set out their decision to outsource all the audits currently undertaken
by the in-house practice to the private sector. On 5 March 2012 the Audit Commission
announced that Grant Thornton (UK) LLP had been awarded the contract for the Audit
Commission's West Midlands audit work. The change of audit provider is effective from 1
September 2012 and will cover the 2012/13 audit year onwards. Many of the staff currently
employed by the Audit Commission on the audit of the Council will transfer to Grant Thornton
under TUPE arrangements from 1 November 2012.

Following the outsourcing the total audit fees charged of £109,250 for 2011/12 are expected to
reduce by 40% to around £65,550 for 2012/13 based on scale fee information published by the
Audit Commission.

Closing remarks

| have discussed and agreed this letter with the Executive Director Corporate Services. While
this has been another challenging year for the Authority | wish to thank the finance staff for the
positive and constructive approach they have taken to my audit. | also wish to thank senior
management and the Audit and Governance Committee for their support and co-operation
during the audit.

Yours sincerely

James Cook
Officer of the Audit Commission

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEEAgenda Item 5

25" OCTOBER 2012

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES

CHANGES TO FINANCIAL GUIDANCE

EXEMPT INFORMATION

None

PURPOSE

To seek member endorsement of the recently reviewed Financial Guidance which forms an
important part of the Council’s regulatory framework, and to provide an opportunity for
members of the Committee to raise any issues they consider appropriate on the subject.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee endorses the changes to Financial Guidance

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As part of the core functions under the terms of reference, this Committee is empowered to
maintain an overview of the Council’s Financial Regulations.

The previous review of the financial guidance was completed in March 2011 at which time
the Council approved that future changes to financial guidance are approved as follows:

Changes to Policy — approved by Council
Material adjustments — to be notified to Cabinet
CMT - authorised to amend Financial Guidance

No changes to policy or material adjustments have been made during this review. Corporate
Management Team have authorised the amendments made.

In summary, the main changes made during this review of Financial Guidance are:
1 Job titles have been amended to take into account structural changes.
2 Financial Guidance has been aligned to the Constitution - Contract Standing Orders,
responsibilities of the Council, Committees and Statutory Officers
3 The procurement section has been updated in line with best practice
4 The invoice processing section has been updated to reflect new working practices

The update version of Financial Guidance is attached as Appendix 1

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

None

Page 9



LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

None

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

None

REPORT AUTHOR

Angela Struthers ex 234

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Financial Guidance

Page 10



CONTENTS

SECTION A Financial Regulation Policy

Purpose 5

Controls 5
SECTION B Financial Regulations

Financial Regulations 7

Contract Standing Orders 9
SECTION C Financial Guidance
1 Financial Management
1.1 Introduction 11
1.2  The Full Council 11
1.3  The Cabinet 142
1.4  The Audit & Governance Committee 1112
1.5 The Corporate Scrutiny Committee 1214
1.6 The Statutory Officers 1214
1.7  Scheme of Delegation 17
1.8 Accounting Policies 1417
2 General Guidance
2.1 Introduction 1519
2.2  Employees Responsibilities 4519
2.3  Miscellaneous 4620
3 Risk Management & Control of Resources
3.1 Risk Management 321
3.2 Insurances 3#21
3.3 Internal Controls 1822
3.4 Internal Audit 4923
3.5 Treasury Management 2425
3.6 Prudential Code 2226
4 Revenues Budgets & Expenditure
4.1 Introduction 284
4.2  Incurring Expenditure 2428
4.3  Budget Monitoring & Variances 2428
4.4  Virement 2529
4.5 Income Generation 2731

| Revised MarchSept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/112 1

Page 11

APPENDIX 1




5

5.1
5.2
5.3
54
5.5
5.6

6

6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4
6.5
6.6
6.7
6.8
6.9
6.10
6.11
6.12
6.13
6.14
6.15

6.17
6.18

7

7.1
7.2
7.3
7.4

Capital Budgets & Projects

Definition of Capital
Leasing/Rental Agreements
Authority to Incur Capital Spend
Monitoring

External Funding

Disposal of Capital Assets

Procurement & Contracts

Introduction

Summary of Requirements

Alternative Purchasing Arrangements
Appraisal of Potential Contractors
Supplier Register

Framework Agreements

Tender Procedures

Post Tender & Contracts
Project/Contract Implementation & Payment
Final Account

Post Contract

Partnerships

Orders for Supply from External Sources
Advance Payments

Voluntary & Community Sector Commissioning Framework
6.160rders from Internal Suppliers

Some Definitions
Further Advice & Guidance

Payment of Accounts

Introduction

Security & Good Practice

Invoice Processing

Electronic Payment Mechanisms
Payment of Salaries & Allowances
Salaries

Allowances & Expense Claims
Members Allowances

Cash Advances, Cash Floats & Petty Cash

Purpose
Processes

| Revised MarchSept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/112 2

Page 12

2832
2832
2832
29833
3034
3435

3236
3539
3943
4044
4445
4445
4246
5053
5255
S457
$457
5558
5659
5+60
5861
5861
5861
5861

e e e ——

6062
6463
6463
6264

6365
6466
6567

6568
6568



10 Income, Charging & Debts

10.1 Fees & Charges

10.2 Receiving Payment

10.3 Postal Payments

10.4 Cashing Up Procedures

10.5 Depositing Money

10.6 Money Laundering

10.7 Invoices, Debtors & Other Sums Due
10.8 Debt Write Off

1 Assets & Equipment

11.1 Responsibilities
.2 Scope
11.3 Use
4 Disposal

12 Stocks & Stores

12.1 Responsibilities

12.2 Stocktaking

12.3 Obsolete & Unserviceable Stock
12.4 Intellectual Property

| 13 Security
| 14  Data Quality
Appendices

Separation of duties

Post opening procedures

Retention of documents

Anti-fraud & Corruption strategy & Guidance Notes
Confidential reporting policy

Risk management policy

Corporate capital strategy

Corporate credit policy

IT security policy

Subsistence Policy

Guide to the Disposal of Assets (Excluding Land and Buildings)
Scheme of Delegation

Children and Vulnerable Adult Protection Policy
Conflict of Interests Policy

Glossary of Terms

| Revised MarchSept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/112 3

Page 13

6669
6469
6871
6971
6971
+072
+073
#4173

174
274
#2715
#375

#3176
#4176
F477
+477

517

#679



SECTION A

Financial
Regulation Policy

Page 14



FINANCIAL REGULATION POLICY
Adopted by Tamworth Borough Council on 22 May 2001.

Purpose
The financial regulation framework within the Council aims to:

a) promote bestvaluebest value, service delivery and delivery of the Council's
vision;

b) provide sound arrangements for all the Council’s financial affairs and to be
able to demonstrate that proper controls are in place;

C) safeguard Members and officers by setting out procedures which meet the
Council’s expected standards.

Financial regulations are not intended to inhibit creativity but to provide the
parameters within which creativity may be exercised. They are intended to guide
and support managers and their staff. Financial control at a corporate level is
achieved primarily through transparency and accountability. Managers and
especially Chief Officers and budget holders occupy key roles. Managers are
given appropriate authority to deploy resources in pursuit of agreed objectives.
Their activities are expected to adhere to specified standards and they are required
to report upon and be accountable for their actions. Those engaged in support
functions (for example, Accountancy) do not themselves directly exert control.
Their responsibilities are to support frontline services and to monitor activities.
Where necessary they must act as whistle-blowers (See Cenfidential Reperting
Poliey-docWhistleblowing Policy).

Controls

The financial regulation framework comprises this policy document, financial
regulations and contract standing orders approved by Council and detailed
guidance issued by the Council's Cerporate-Director-—ResourcesExecutive
Director Corporate Services, to support these documents. They contain a mixture
of:

a) responsibilities;

b) instructions;

c) expected standards of behaviour,;
d) discretionary powers.

Instructions and responsibilities are clearly set out. All employees and Members
are required to comply where they are applicable. The expected standard of
behaviour and discretionary powers are guidelines to aid employees and Members
in their day to day activities. They cannot cover all potential circumstances. All
employees and all Members are therefore required at all times when engaged on
Council activities to act reasonably, having regard to this framework, and to act
within the spirit of the framework.

A review of the policy and guidance is to be completed annually.

Section A 5
Revised MarchSept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 15



SECTION B

Financial
Regulations

Revised MarchSept 20142 — Approved A & G 3425/103/142

Page 16



FINANCIAL REGULATIONS

Adopted by Tamworth Borough Council on 22 May 2001.

1

10

11

12

All employees and all Members must at all times when engaged on Council
activities act in the interests of the Council as a whole.

All employees and all Members must comply at all times with these
regulations wherever they apply.

All employees and all Members must act reasonably and within the spirit of
the financial regulation framework.

All relevant financial interests must be declared to the Solicitor to the
Council (Monitoring Officer).

All activities must be in accordance with:

a) Legislation;

b) approved Directerate-service plans or corporate plans;

c) approved service net revenue budgets or capital programmes;
d) relevant Council policies and adopted codes of practice;

Any material departures (actual or potential) must be reported formally to
Members as soon as practicable.

Where practicable all activities should be in accordance with accepted best
practice.

BestvalueBest value -and and value for money must be sought in all
activities, including the procurement of goods and services.

Budgets at an appropriate level of detail must be prepared en-an-annual
basis-prier-teby the start of each financial year for all activities and units of
the Council. Al-budgets-mustbe-approved-by-Gouncil-

Material changes to financial policy or the distribution of resources must be
referred to Council for approval.

Chief OfficersService managers have primary responsibility for the control
and management of all resources of all kinds made available to them.

All managers must ensure and regularly check that there is a full set of
controls in every system under their management, including an adequate
segregation of duties and an assessment of risk in all activities and
decisions.

All employees must consider the need to seek appropriate views, advice
and guidance before embarking on a course of action and particularly on a
new course of action. This includes seeking advice from managers in other
services, for example consulting the AssistantDirector—Business
ProcessesDirector, Technology & Corporate Programmes on the
procurement of information technology or the Cerpeorate Director-
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services on the arrangement
of leases, rentals or agreements involving the use of assets to or from
the authority.

Section B 7

| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 17



13 All managers must ensure that all assets and personnel must be adequately
secured or protected and appropriate insurance arranged where necessary.

Section B 8
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 18



14

Adequate records must be maintained of all transactions in all systems (a

complete audit trail) and unrestricted access must be allowed to all assets

and records for:

a) the Chief Executive;

b) the Cerporate Director—ReseourcesExecutive Director Corporate
Services;

c) the Head of Internal Audit Services;

d) External Auditors and other statutory inspectors;

e) Officers designated by any of the above.

Employees must supply information to those officers on request.

15 Managers must routinely monitor all activities under their control and report
on any significant variations from expected standards.

16 Managers must report at regular intervals on performance on planned
activities and on financial performance against approved budgets.

17 All employees and all Members must report any suspected:

a) failure in any system;

b) failure to comply with financial regulations;

c) suspected criminal act, including fraud or corruption.

The report should normally be made to the line manager. Full guidance is
provided in the Council's Cenfidential Reperting Poliey.decCounter Fraud
Policy Statement, Strategy & Guidance Notes.

Any manager who suspects such an occurrence must take any immediate
action necessary to rectify any failure in a control system and report the
position to a relevant senior manager, who may include the Chief Executive,
Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services,
Monitoring Officer or Head of Internal Audit Services.

18 The Ceorporate-Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services
shall, in-censultation with the agreement of the Chief Executive and Solicitor
to the Council (Monitoring Officer), issue detailed guidance on procedures to
be followed in compliance with these regulations.

19  All employees must comply with any applicable instructions or
responsibilities specified in the guidance. In other respects all employees
must act reasonably, having regard to the guidance and within the spirit of
the guidance.

Section B 9

| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 19



CONTRACT STANDING ORDERS

Adopted by Tamworth Borough Council on 22 May 2001.

1.

All employees must comply with these standing orders, the relevant
regulations relating to Public Contracts and with financial regulations when
procuring goods and services.

Chief OfficersAll Directors have primary responsibility for ensuring
compliance within their service areas.

BestvalueBest value and value for money must be sought in all
procurement activities. Competition must be sought in accordance with
issued guidance.

Where the value of the goods and services is likely to be £50,000
(cumulative amount) or more the following requirements apply:

a) tenders must be sought from suitably qualified suppliers
b) the supply must be governed by a formal written contract.

The only exception to these requirements shall be where the Cabinet has

10.

given authority in order to achieve best value.

Reasonable steps must be taken to manage risk throughout the
procurement process and employees must have regard to the guidance that
is issued for this purpose.

All potential suppliers of goods and services must be treated equitably.

In all procurement activities, arrangements must be clear regarding:

a) the goods or services to be supplied and the supply mechanisms;
b) the amount to be paid and the payment mechanisms;

c) the rights and responsibilities of all parties.

Employees must consider the need to seek appropriate views, advice and
guidance before making a decision or embarking on a course of action
related to procurement.

The Ceorporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services

shall, with the agreement of the Chief Executive and Solicitor to the Council
(Monitoring Officer), issue detailed guidance on procedures to be followed in
compliance with these standing orders. Such guidance shall include
procedures for securing competition, for regulating the manner in which
tenders are invited and for managing risk.

Employees must comply with any applicable instructions or responsibilities
specified in the guidance. In other respects employees must act reasonably,
having regard to the guidance and within the spirit of the guidance.

Section B 10
Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 20



SECTION C

Financial Guidance

Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 21



1 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

1.1 Introduction

1.1.1  Financial management covers all financial accountabilities in relation to the
running of the authority, including the policy framework and budget.

1.2 The Full Council
1.2.1  The full Council is responsible for:

Only the Council will exercise the following functions:

(a) adopting and changing the Constitution;

(b) approving or adopting the policy framework, the budget and any
application to the Secretary of State in respect of any Housing Land
Transfer;

(c) subject to the urgency procedure contained in the Access to Information
Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution, making decisions about any
matter in the discharge of an executive function which is covered by the
policy framework or the budget where the decision maker is minded to make
it in @ manner which would be contrary to the policy framework or contrary
to/or not wholly in accordance with the budget;

(d) appointing the Leader;

(e) agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for committees,
deciding on their composition and making appointments to them (except
where the appointment to a committee is required to give effect to the
wishes of a political group);

(f) appointing representatives to outside bodies unless the appointment is an
executive function or has been delegated by the Council;

(g) adopting an allowances scheme under Article 2.05;

(h) changing the name of the area, conferring the title of honorary alderman
or freedom of the borough;

(i) confirming the appointment of the Head of Paid Service;

() making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting bylaws and
promoting or opposing the making of local legislation or personal Bills;

(k) all local choice functions set out in Part 3 of this Constitution which the
Council decides should be undertaken by itself rather than the executive;
and

(1) all other matters which, by law, must be reserved to Council.

Section C 12
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 22



« T Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm,
\ Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 0 cm
“\ ' | +Tabafter: 0.7 cm + Indent at: 0.7
N v Lem, Tab stops: Not at 0.7 cm

\\\{ Formatted: Bullets and Numbering ]
{Formatted: Bullets and Numbering ]

| 1.3 The CabinetExecutive

1.3.1  The CabinetExecutive is-responsible-for:

authority’s
functions which are not the responsibility of any other part of the local authority,
whether by law or under the Constitution.

1.4 The Audit & Governance Committee

1.41 The Audit & Governance Committee will have the following roles and
functions:

(a) Audit Activity

* Receive, but not direct, internal audit’s strategy and audit plan

* Consider reports dealing with the management and performance of
Internal Audit

* Consider the head of Internal Audit's annual report and opinion, and the
level of assurance Internal Audit can give over the Council's corporate
governance arrangements.

» Consider periodic reports from Internal Audit on the main issues arising
from their work and “high priority” recommendations not implemented within
a reasonable timescale, and seek assurance that action has been taken
where necessary.

 Consider the final external audit Annual Audit and Inspection letter and any
other relevant reports to “those charged with governance”.

(b) Regulatory Framework

* Maintain an overview of the Council’'s Constitution, including Contract
Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and Codes of Conduct.

* Consider the internal control environment and the level of assurance that
may be given as to its effectiveness, to include the review of the Statement
on Internal Control and the recommendation to the Council of its adoption.

Section C 13
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 23



» Satisfy itself that the authority’s assurance statements, including the
Statement on Internal Control, properly reflect the risk environment and any
actions required to improve it.

« Monitor the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management
arrangements, including the actions taken to manage risks and to receive
regular reports on risk management.

* Monitor the effective development and operation of the corporate
governance framework in the Council and to recommend to the Cabinet or
the Council, as appropriate, the actions necessary to ensure compliance
with best practice.

* Monitor the effectiveness of the Council’s policies and arrangements for
anti-fraud and corruption and whistle-blowing, complaints handling, RIPA
and Ombudsman investigations.

(c) Accounts

* Approve the annual statement of accounts, external auditor's opinion and
reports to members and monitor management action in response to the
issues raised by external audit.

(d) Reports to Council

* Reports in the form of Minutes detailing action taken by the Committee and
recommendations will be submitted to Council.

(e). Delegated Powers

. The Committee is empowered to deal W|th the funct|ons detailed above.

Section C 14
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 24



| 1.5 Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committees

1.5.1 The-Corporate-Serutiny-Committee-isresponsiblefor The Overview & Scrutiny

Committees general roles are to :

e Review and/or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in connection with
the discharge of any of the Council’s functions including consideration at each
meeting of the Forward Plan;

e Prepare an annual scrutiny work plan covering two successive periods of six
months and to make reports and/or recommendation bi-annually to the full
Council and/or the executive and/or any policy, joint or area committee in
connection with the discharge of any functions;

e Consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants:

e Exercise the right to call-in, for reconsideration, decisions made but not yet
implemented by the executive and/or any policy or area committees; and

e Appoint Task and Finish Groups as and when required with no more than two
operating at any one time. Normally the Chair and Vice-Chair of the
Committee would Chair these groups and there would be an expectation that
these groups would co-opt external expertise.

In addition to their general role, each Overview and Scrutiny Committee has a
primary scope and specific functions as detailed in the Constitution.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 2.25cm,
Hanging: 0.25 cm, Bulleted + Level: 1
+ Aligned at: 2.9 cm + Tab after:
5.11 cm + Indent at: 5.21 cm, Tab
stops: Not at 5.11 cm

1.6 The Statutory Officers {Formatted: Bullets and Numbering ]

| 1.6.1 Head of Paid Service (and-Chief Executive)

The Head of Paid Service is-respensible-forwill:
I . ‘1 hority:

decisionsdetermine and publicise a description of the overall departmental
structure of the Council showing the management structure and deployment
of officers as ser out in part 7 of the Constitution.

e report to full Council on the manner in which the discharge of the
Council’s functions is co-ordinated, the number and grade of officers
required for the discharge of functions and the organisation of officers.

1.6.2 Monitoring Officer (Solicitor to the Council)

| The Selicitorto-the- Council-{Monitoring Officer) is-responsible-forwill:

Section C 15
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 25



Committee-maintain an up-to-date version of the Constitution and will

ensure that it is widely available for consultation by members, staff and
the public.

e After consultation with the head of paid service and chief finance officer,
the monitoring officer will report to the full Council or the executive in
relation to an executive function if s/he considers that any proposal,
decision or omission would give rise to unlawfulness or if any decision or
omission has given rise to maladministration. Such a report will have the
effect of stopping the proposal or decision being implemented until the
report has been considered.

e Contribute to the promotion and maintenance of high standards of
conduct through provision of support to the relevant committee.

e Conduct investigations or take other action into matters referred by the
Standards Committee in accordance with the Standards Committee
(England) Regulations 2008 subject to those regulations remaining in
force.

e Ensure that executive decisions, together with the reasons for those
decisions and relevant officer reports and background papers are made
publicly available as soon as possible.

e Advise whether decisions of the executive are in accordance with the
budget and policy framework.

eProvide advice on the scope of powers and authority to take decisions,
maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and budget and policy
framework issues to all councillors.

Section C 16
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 26



1.6.3 Corporate Director—ResourcesChief Finance Officer (Executive
Director Corporate Services)

| The Corporate Director—ResourcesChief Finance Officer has statutory
duties in relation to the financial administration and stewardship of the
authority. This statutory responsibility cannot be overridden. The statutory
duties arise from:

eSection 151 of the Local Government Act 1972;

e The Local Government Finance Act 1988;

eThe Local Government and Housing Act 1989;

eThe Accounts and Audit Regulations (Amendment) England 2009;
eSection 73 of the Local Government Act 1985 (c.51);

eThe Local Government Act 2003.

The Corporate-Director—ResourcesChief Finance Officer- is+responsible
forwill:

sPreparing-the-revenue-budgetand-capital- programme;
e Treasury-management after consulting with the head of paid service and

the monitoring officer, report to the full Council or to the executive in
relation to an executive function — and the Council’s external auditor if
s/he considers that any proposal, decision or course o faction will involve
incurring unlawful expenditure, or is unlawful and is likely to cause a loss
or deficiency or if the Council is about to enter an item of account
unlawfully.

eHave responsibility for the administration of the financial affairs of the
Council

e Contribute to the corporate management of the Council, in particular
through the provision of professional financial advice

eProvide advice on the scope of powers and authority to take decisions,
maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and budget and policy
framework issues to all councillors and will support and advise
councillors and officers in their respective roles

e Provide financial information to the media, members of the public and
the community.-

Section C 17
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 27



Section 114 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 requires the

Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services to

report to the full Council, executive and external auditor if the authority or
one of its officers:
ehas made, or is about to make, a decision which involves incurring
unlawful expenditure;
ehas taken, or is about to take, an unlawful action which has resulted or
would result in a loss or deficiency to the authority;
eis about to make an unlawful entry in the authority’s accounts.

Section 114 of the 1988 Act also requires:

e The Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services

to nominate a properly qualified member of staff to deputise should he/she
be unable to perform the duties under section 114 personally;

eThe authority to provide the Cerporate—Director—ReseourcesExecutive
Director Corporate Services with sufficient staff, accommodation and other
resources — including legal advice where this is necessary — to carry out
the duties under section 114.

Section C 18
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 28



1.7 Scheme of Delegation
1.7.1 _The Local Government Act 1972 as amended provides for a Scheme of
Delegation where Council delegates to certain officers powers to undertake
functions and duties on behalf of the authority. This delegation is
completed annually.
1.7.2  Chief Officers must ensure that they comply with the approved Scheme of
Delegation.
1.8 Accounting Policies
| 1.78.1 The Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services
is responsible for the preparation of the authority’s statement of accounts —
including Whole of Government Accounts, in accordance with proper
practices as set out in the format required by the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: (CIPFA/LASAAC) based on
International Financial Reporting Standards, for each financial year ending
31 March.
| 1.78.2 Key Controls
The key controls for accounting policies are:
a) Systems of internal control are in place that ensure that financial
transactions are lawful,
b) Suitable accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;
c) Proper accounting records are maintained;
d) Financial statements are prepared which present fairly the financial
position of the authority and its expenditure and income.
1.#8.3 Responsibilities of the Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director
Corporate Services
To select suitable accounting policies and to ensure that they are
applied consistently. The accounting policies are set out in the
statement of accounts, which is prepared at 31 March each year, and
covers such items as:
a) Separate accounts for capital and revenue transactions;
b) The basis on which debtors and creditors at year end are
included in the accounts;
c) Details on substantial provisions and reserves;
d) Fixed assets;
e) Depreciation;
f) Capital charges;
g) Work in progress;
h) Stocks and stores;
i) Deferred charges;
j) Accounting for value added tax;
k) Government grants;
I) Leasing/pensions.
| 1.78.4 Responsibilities of Chief Officers
Section C 19

| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 29



To adhere to the accounting policies and guidelines approved by the

Corperate-Director—ReseourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services

Section C 20
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 30



2. GENERAL GUIDANCE

2.1 Introduction

211 This guidance aims to help employees in their day to day work. Employees
are required to comply at all times with the Council’s financial regulations,
and this guidance will help to ensure they do.

2.1.2 In this guidance there are three levels of requirements:

a) in some cases the guidance states that employees MUST comply
with the requirement and therefore 100% compliance is expected;

b) in other cases employees SHOULD comply, but there will be times
when compliance would not be possible or desirable; and

c) inthe remaining cases it is stated that employees MAY wish to follow
the guidance if it would be helpful, but it is purely at their discretion.

2.1.3 Employees must therefore take careful note whether the wording used in
each section is MUST, SHOULD or MAY.

2.1.4 If the guidance states a requirement MUST be complied with,

employees should consult the Corporate Director-

ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services if there is particular

difficulty. The Corporate Director-ResourcesExecutive Director

Corporate Services has authority to waive compliance and limits
where necessary.

2.1.5 Employees needing help to interpret or apply the guidance should contact
their Chief Officer, Head of Internal Audit Services, or Corporate Director-
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services.

2.1.6 The review and updating of Financial Regulations, Standing Orders and

Financial Guidance will be completed by the Corporate Birector—
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services.

2.1.7 Throughout the guidance, reference is made to Chief Officers. A Chief
Officer includes the Chief Executive, Assistant ChiefExecutive Executive
Director Corporate Services, the Solicitor to the Council and ~Directors:

c b oo DI '

2.2 Employees Responsibilities

2.2.1 Each Chief Officer must ensure that all his/her employees and any other
agents acting on behalf of the Council are aware of the sections of this
guidance that relate to their areas of work.

2.2.2 Chief Officers may delegate to other employees duties shown in this

guidance, but the Chief Officer retains primary responsibility. Where the
guidance places a duty on an employee, it is the Chief Officer’s

Section C 21
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 31



2.3

2.31

23.2

233

234

235

2.36

237

2.3.8

239

responsibility to ensure the existence of adequate procedures,
documentation and supervision.

Miscellaneous

Chief Officers must ensure that lists of officers authorised to certify or
approve orders, payments and records are updated at least on an annual
basis. They must advise the Corporate Birector—ResourcesExecutive
Director Corporate Services of changes such as authorised signatories
leaving and propose new names, specimen signatures and monetary limits
(where needed).

Any employee required to carry out checks such as checks of documents
or calculations must sign/initial and date the relevant document. The
employee who prepares the document should also sign or initial, and date
it.

Chief Officers must ensure that all financial records are completed
promptly and accurately. Any amendment to a financial record or a
document required in a payment process, including expense claims,
timesheets and official returns must be made in ink. The original entry
should be struck through with a single bold line and the correct entry written
alongside. It must then be initialled and dated. Correction fluid or tape
must never be used.

Chief Officers must ensure that all financial records are kept securely, and
retained for the periods specified in the appendix attached. At the end of
the period the records must be securely disposed of, e.g. by shredding.
Arrangements for the disposal of any obsolete or surplus records, including

unused items, should be agreed with the Corperate Director-
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services.

All bank accounts relating to the Authority’s transactions will be controlled

and reconciled by the Corporate Director-—ResourcesExecutive Director

Corporate Services. No other bank accounts are to be used.

If an employee is requested to give any indemnities, guarantees or
warranties on behalf of the Council he/she must consult the Solicitor to the
Council before taking any action.

Where there is a suspected fraud or other significant criminal act, the
Chief Officer must consult the Head of Internal Audit Services or Ceorperate
Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services on
whether/when the Police should be informed. Employees should follow the
Council’s advice on fraud and corruption (Eraud-& Cerruption-advice to
staff decCounter Fraud Policy Statement, Strategy & Guidance Notes).

All employees must comply with the Information Security Policy.doc.

All employees must comply with the Conflict of Interests Policy.

Section C 22
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 32



2.3.10 In order to comply with the International Financial Reporting Standards,
managers are required to consult on any rentals, leases, use of assets to
or from the authority, prior to entering into an agreement with the
Corporate Director—ResoureesExecutive Director Corporate Services,
especially where financial/operating leases are entered into as more
advantageous financing could be sort.

Section C 23
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 33



RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL OF RESOURCES

3.1 Risk Management

3.1.1 Risk Management is the planned and systematic approach to the
identification, evaluation and control of risk. The Cabinet shall approve a
Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy (Risk Management
Policy.doc) for the Council and shall promote a culture of risk management
awareness throughout the Council.

3.1.2 Key decisions taken must include an assessment of the risk.

3.1.3 The Head of Internal Audit Services is the focal point for developing and
implementing the risk management strategy throughout the authority. Her
role is to advise others. All staff have a duty to co-operate so that risk is
effectively managed in their areas, ensuring that all issues that they cannot
resolve directly are brought to the attention of their managers.

3.1.4 The Corporate Management Team will be the forum where risk is
performance managed.

3.1.5 Chief Officers are responsible for risk management and must have regard to
advice from the Head of Internal Audit Services and other specialist
employees (e.g. crime prevention, fire prevention, health & safety, cash
handling and internal controls of various types).

3.1.6 Chief Officers are responsible for ensuring that regular and appropriate
reviews of risk within their departments are completed and entered onto the
Corporate Risk Register(Covalent). Additional guidance can be sought from
the Head of Internal Audit Services on risk management issues.

3.1.7 The Audit & Governance Committee will review the management of risk
within the Authority.

3.2 Insurances

| 3.2.1 The Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services is

responsible for the arrangement of appropriate insurance cover through
external insurance and internal funding. He shall, after such consultation as
he thinks appropriate with other employees, settle all claims within individual
policy excesses, and pass on all claims over individual policy excesses to
the relevant insurer.

3.2.2 Chief Officers shall:

a) Give prompt notification to the Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive

Director Corporate Services of all new risks, properties, vehicles,
activities, functions, or any other assets which require to be insured and
of any alteration affecting existing insurances (for example — safe limits
being exceeded, loss of safe keys, temporary disablement of alarms);

Section C 24
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 34



| 323

3.3

3.3.1

Section C

b)

c)

Promptly notify the CerperateBirecter—ResourcesExecutive Director

Corporate Services in writing of any loss, liability or damage or any event
likely to lead to a claim against the Council together with any information
or explanation required by him or the Council’'s insurer’s, and inform the
police where necessary;

Ensure that all appropriate employees of the Council shall be included in
a suitable fidelity guarantee insurance;

Consult the Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate

Services in respect of any indemnity which the Council is requested to
give;

Ensure that employees, or anyone covered by the Council’s insurances,
do not admit liability or make any offer to pay compensation that may
prejudice the assessment of liability in respect of any insurance claim.

It is the responsibility of the Corperate-Director—ReseurcesExecutive

Director Corporate Services to:

a)

b)

c)

maintain a register of all insurance arranged by the Council and the
property and risk covered by them;

at least annually, furnish Chief Officers with details of all insurances in
force affecting their departments. Each Chief Officer shall review all
such insurances, and any risks not insured against, or inadequately
insured against, shall be notified immediately to the Cerperate
Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services;

Ensure the adequacy of all insurances entered into by contractors of
the Council. An employee shall not authorise work to commence by a
Contractor until the Cerpeorate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director
Corporate Services has advised such an employee that the
appropriate insurances have been effected to his satisfaction.

Internal Controls

The Council accepts that controls and control systems must be in place to
ensure that its financial and other activities are carried out in a secure
environment, in a manner that complies with the law and that fulfils its
stewardship obligations. To achieve this the following key controls and
control objectives and systems shall be in place:

a)

Key controls shall be reviewed on a regular basis and the Council shall
make a formal statement annually to the effect that it is satisfied that the
systems of internal control are operating effectively which will feed into
the Annual Governance Statement. Chief Officers are required to
produce an annual statement in respect of the level of assurance on the
adequacy of internal controls within their service areas in accordance
with the Accounts & Audit Regulations 200611,

Managerial control systems, including defining policies, setting objectives
and plans, monitoring financial and other performance and taking
appropriate anticipatory and remedial action. The key objective of these

25

| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 35



systems is to promote ownership of the control environment by defining
roles and responsibilities;

c) Financial and operational control systems and procedures, which include
physical safeguards for assets, segregation of duties, authorisation and
approval procedures and information systems;

d) An effective internal audit function that is properly resourced. It should
operate in accordance with the principles contained in the Auditing
Practices Board’s auditing guideline “Guidance for Internal Auditors,
“CIPFA’s” Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the
UK” and with any other statutory obligations and regulations and
professional standards.

3.3.2 Chief Officers are responsible for ensuring that they manage their processes
to ensure that established controls are being adhered to and to evaluate
their effectiveness, in order that they can be confident of the proper use of
resources, achievement of objectives and management of risks.

3.3.3 They should also review existing controls in the light of changes affecting the
authority and establishing and implementing new ones. Chief Officers are
also responsible for removing controls that are unnecessary or not cost or
risk effective — for example, because of duplication.

3.3.4 Chief Officers must ensure that their staff have a clear understanding of the
consequences of lack of control.

3.4 Internal Audit

3.4.1 The requirement for an internal audit function for local authorities is implied
by Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, which requires that
authorities “make arrangements for the proper administration of their
financial affairs”. The Accounts & Audit Regulations (Amendment) (England)
20092011, regulation 6, more specifically requires that “a relevant body shall
matrtainmust undertake an adequate and effective system of internal audit
of its accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance
with the proper practices in relation to internal control”.

reseources-
3.4.2 independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add

value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and
governance processes.

Section C 26
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 36



3.4.3 Internal Audit is independent in its planning and operation. The Head of
Internal Audit Services shall have direct access to the Head of Paid Service,
all levels of management and elected members.

3.4.4 Internal Audit will comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s guideline

Guidance for Internal Auditors, as interpreted by CIPFA’s Code of Practice
for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK.

Section C 27
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 37



3.4.5 Internal Auditors have the authority to:

a) enter at all reasonable times any Council establishment;

b) have access to all records, documents, information and
correspondence relating to any financial and other transaction as
considered necessary;

c) evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls designed
to secure assets and data to assist management in preventing and
deterring fraud;

d) request explanations as considered necessary to satisfy themselves
as to the correctness of any matter under examination;

e) require any employee of the Council to produce cash, materials or
any other Council property in their possession or under their control;

f) access records belonging to third parties, such as contractors or
partners, when required and appropriate;

g) directly access the Chief Executive and members.

3.4.6 The Head of Internal Audit Services will prepare the strategic and
operational audit plans, which will take account of the relative risks of the
audit areas and present this to the Audit & Governance Committee for
approval.

3.4.7 Chief Officers have the responsibility:

a) of reporting any circumstances which may suggest the possibility of
irregularity affecting cash, stocks or other property of the Council and any
fraud or corrupt activities to the Corperate Director—ResourcesExecutive
Director Corporate Services. Further guidance can be found in the anti

i Counter Fraud & Corruption
Policy Statement, Strategy and Guidance Notes;

b) for ensuring that internal auditors are given access at all reasonable
times to premises, personnel, documents and assets that the auditors
consider necessary for the purpose of their work;

c) for ensuring that auditors are provided with any information and
explanations that they seek in the course of their work;

d) to consider and respond promptly to recommendations in audit reports;
and

e) for ensuring that any agreed actions arising from audit recommendations
are carried out in a timely and efficient fashion.

3.4.8 An annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit should

be undertaken by the appointed external auditor and the results reported to
the Audit & Governance Committee.

Section C 28
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 38



3.6 Treasury Management

3.5.1 The Council will conduct its Treasury Management Activities in accordance
with the provisions laid down in statute and specifically as contained within
the Local Government Act 2003.

CIPFA recommends that all public service organisations adopt, as part
of their standing orders, financial regulations, or other formal policy
documents appropriate to their circumstances, the following four
clauses.

1. This organisation will create and maintain, as the cornerstones for
effective treasury management:

« a ftreasury management policy statement, stating the policies,
objectives and approach to risk management of its treasury
management activities;

« suitable treasury management practices (TMPs), setting out the
manner in which the organisation will seek to achieve those policies
and objectives, and prescribing how it will manage and control those
activities.

e The content of the policy statement and TMPs will follow the
recommendations contained in Sections 6 and 7 of the Code,
subject only to amendment where necessary to reflect the particular
circumstances of this organisation. Such amendments will not result
in the organisation materially deviating from the Code’s key
principles.

2. This organisation (i.e. full Council) will receive reports on its treasury
management policies, practices and activities, including, as a minimum,
an annual strategy and plan in advance of the year, a mid-year review
and an annual report after its close, in the form prescribed in its TMPs.

3. This organisation delegates responsibility for the implementation and
regular monitoring of its treasury management policies and practices to
full Council and for the execution and administration of treasury
management decisions to the Cerporate DirectorResourcesExecutive
Director Corporate Services, who will act in accordance with the
organisation’s policy statement and TMPs and, if he/she is a CIPFA
member, CIPFA’s Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury
Management.

4. This organisation nominates Audit and Governance Committee to be
responsible for ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury management
strategy and policies.

| 3.5.2 The Corperate Director—ReseoudrcesExecutive Director Corporate Services

may report to Council at any time, as he considers necessary, upon matters
relating to treasury management activities.

Section C 29
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 39



| 353

354

3.5.5

3.6

3.6.1

3.6.2

3.6.3

3.6.4

3.6.5

The Cerporate-Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services

shall ensure that all treasury management transactions are recorded and
that there is an effective division of duties between operations.

All securities which are the property of or in the name of the Council or its
nominees shall be held in the custody of the Solicitor to the Council, except
in the case of externally managed funds which shall be held by an

independent custodian approved by the Corperate Director—
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services.

Loans must not be made to third parties and interests must not be acquired
in companies, joint ventures or other enterprises without the approval of the

Cabinet, following consultation with the Cerporate Director—
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services.

Prudential Code

Interlinked with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management
is the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities which
plays a key role in capital finance to support Local Authorities in taking
their decisions.

The Council is required by regulation to have regard to the said code
when carrying out its duties under part 1 of the Local Government Act
2003.

The Prudential Code sets out a clear governance procedure for the
setting and revising of prudential indicators. This is done by the full
Council.

The Cerporate-Director-ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate

Services will be responsible for ensuring that all matters required to be
taken into account are reported to the full Council for consideration,
and for establishing procedures to monitor performance.

In setting or revising their prudential indicators, the Council is required
to have regard to the following matters:

»  affordability, e.g. implications for Council Tax / housing rents,
including consideration of the impact for all resources (capital
and ongoing revenue costs);

»  prudence and sustainability, e.g. implications for external
borrowing and whole life costing;

»  value for money / potential ‘spend to save’ schemes, option
appraisal,

stewardship of assets, e.g. asset management planning;

service objectives, e.g. strategic planning;

> risk and uncertainty needs to be considered;

Section C 30
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 40



»  practicality, e.g. achievability of the forward plan.

Section C 31
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 41



3.6.6

3.6.7

3.6.8

3.6.9

The Cerporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate

Services is required to establish procedures to monitor both
performance against all forward looking prudential indicators and the
requirement that Council has adopted the CIPFA ‘Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of practice and Cross-
Sectional Guidance Notes’. The Corporate Director—
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services also needs to
establish a measurement and reporting process that highlights
significant deviations from expectations.

When considering capital spending Chief Officers must have regard to
the capital process guidance, which includes the requirement to
complete a capital appraisal. This appraisal ensures that consideration
is given to:

»  Full capital cost, including regard to external funding
considerations;

»  The revenue implications associated with the project — including
costs and any additional income generation;

\4

Any implications with regard to the prudential code / use of
prudential borrowing (including payback periods etc.);

Staffing implications;
Alternatives which could be considered e.g. leasing;
Consultation with other officers / organisations;

YV V V VYV

Project management and planning in order to ensure delivery in
line with approved timescales;

\4

Evaluation of the project outcomes;

\4

An assessment of the risks associated with the project — a full
Risk assessment is required;

»  The contribution the project makes towards the achievement of
the Council's corporate priorities, corporate capital strategy
objectives and Government priorities.

In order to ensure that over the medium term, net borrowing will only
be for capital purposes, the Council should ensure that net external
borrowing does not, except in the short-term, exceed the total of the
capital financing requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates
of any additional capital financing requirement for the current and next
two financial years.

The Council shall set and monitor against the specified prudential
indicators for capital expenditure, external debt and treasury
management in accordance with the due processes to be followed, the
matters required to be taken into account, affordability, prudence and
in accordance with the definitions specified.

Section C 32
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 42



4.
41

REVENUE BUDGETS AND EXPENDITURE

Introduction

The key controls for budgets and medium-term planning are:

4.2
421

4.3

4.3.1

432

| 433

a) specific budget approval for all expenditure;
b) budget managers/Heads of Service to be consulted in the preparation

of the budgets for which they will be held responsible and accept
accountability within delegations set by the executive for their budgets
and the level of service to be delivered,

c) a monitoring process is in place to review regularly the effectiveness

and operation of budget preparation and to ensure that any corrective
action is taken.

Incurring Expenditure

Chief Officers and Heads of Service are authorised to incur expenditure:
a) in accordance with approved Council and service policies;
and

b) in line with the service net revenue budget.

Directors—the-Seolicitorto-the-CouncilChief Officers and Heads of Service
are authorised to make budget changes.

Budget Monitoring and Variances

The service net revenue budget is the key point for budget monitoring and
reporting. The detail contained within the budget book is mainly to assist
budget holders manage their budgets. Strict compliance with the detailed
budget is not necessarily expected. The main requirement is that Chief
Officers and Heads of Service must seek approval for any change in
approved service policy, standards or delivery, or other material
departure from the service plan.

Chief Officers and Heads of Service must monitor their budgets regularly
throughout the year. The CorperateDirector—ReseureesExecutive
Director Corporate Services and Accountants will provide suitable regular
reports giving details of actual expenditure and income compared to the
budget. He/she will notify the Chief Officer/Head of Service of any
significant variance which appears to require further attention.

The Chief Officer—orOfficer or Head of Service is responsible for dealing
with actual or likely variances from budget and must take appropriate
action. For example, he/she may decide to:

a) freeze spending on a discretionary item such as furniture and
equipment to deal with a net overspend; or

Section C 33
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 43



4.3.4

b) meet an overspend under one heading from one or more actual or
planned underspends elsewhere (see below); or

c) meet an overspend from increased income (within limits set below); or

d) do nothing in the case of a windfall increase in income.

In the case of b) & c) the manager should consider whether to adjust the
budget through a virement (see below).

There is no limit for budget transfers within individual expenditure headings

(cost centres) if there is no change in service policy, no detriment to service
standards or delivery and no material departure from the service plan.

43.44.3.5 Where a significant variance is expected (even after taking

appropriate action) the Chief Officer or Head of Service must report the
circumstances formally to Members as soon as practicable. The report
should indicate the options open to Members and their implications. For
example in the case of an overspend it might suggest:

a) reducing activity levels, with an impact on service standards, to
reduce expenditure; or

b) increasing activity on income-generating services or increasing prices
to increase income; or

c) providing additional resources from an alternative source, e.g.
balances.

| 4.3.54.36 The report should take into account the likely position in future years

4.4

441

442

443

as well as the current year.
Virement

A virement is defined as “the planned transfer of a budget approved for one
purpose for use on a different purpose to that originally intended or
approved”. A virement does not create additional budget; it changes the
purpose for which the budget will be used compared to that originally
intended.

A Chief Officer or Head of Service may authorise the transfer of up to
£30,000 of budget (this is a cumulative amount i.e. in total for each cost
centre for the year and not per transaction) to or from any individual
expenditure heading (cost centre) within their service. The Director can
approve virement (up to £30,000) across budgets within service activities
within their Directorate and between Directorates with the approval of the
Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services.
The Chief Officer or Head of Service must notify the Corporate Director—
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services in writing of all virements.

—No further approval is needed if there is no change in service policy,
no detriment to service standards or delivery, and no material
departure from the service plan.

Section C 34
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 44



445443 The CorporateDirector—ResoureesExecutive Director Corporate

Services also has authority to approve virements in excess of the above
£30,000 limit — up to a total virement of £50,000 (this is a cumulative
amount i.e. in total for each cost centre for the year and not per
transaction).

| 4.4.684.44 Virements can only be applied to direct expenditure & not to support
service costs, capital charges and indirect income (i.e. recharges).

| 4474.45 Virements which fall outside of the above criteria will require Cabinet
approval.

| 448446 Specific Contingency Budget

Where a budget is identified as contingency and is intended for allocation
during the year, its allocation will not be treated as a virement, provided
that:

a) The amount is used in accordance with the purposes for which it has
been established.

b) The Cabinet has approved the basis and the terms, including financial
limits, on which it will be allocated. Individual allocations in excess of
the financial limits must be authorised by Cabinet.

c) The release of funding for specific identified contingency items is
delegated to the Corporate Management Team in consultation with the
Leader of the Council (Scheme of Delegation log).

d) The release of the contingency is approved by the S.151
| Officer(Executive Director Corporate Services).

| 44.94.47 Capital Contingency Budget (Block Allocation)

a) Where amounts are required for transfer from Specific Contingency/
General Contingency then Cabinet approval must be obtained, including
approval of a capital appraisal form detailing the financial and
organisational impact of the scheme.

b) Please note that the impact of drawing from this contingency budget has
to be highlighted to members in order for them to make an informed
decision.

c) These reports will also require S.151 Officer (Corperate-Director—
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services) sign off (due to their

impact on the 5-year budget / balances / forecast).

Section C 35
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 45



4.5

451

452

453

454

| 455

Income Generation

Income may be received above the budget level in a number of
circumstances. The potential uses for the extra income (within the limits
set below) depend on the situation:

a) Pure windfall income, which is received without any additional service
activity or conditions is not available for use by the Chief Officer or
Head of Service and he/she should not normally authorise any
additional expenditure from that windfall. The main exception would
be to meet an unavoidable overspend. In other cases the excess
income would return to Council balances.

b)  Where an increase in demand results in increased service workload,
additional income may be used to offset the impact of the extra
workload. For example the manager may appoint temporary
employees or purchase additional or improved equipment to improve
efficiency or working conditions.

c)  Where the Chief Officer or Head of Service expects an increase in
income to result from increased activity, the Chief Officer or Head of
Service may approve additional expenditure where it will generate
enough income to cover the costs.

d)  Where ‘ring fenced’ grant income is received which requires specific
actions/spending, the Chief Officer or Head of Service may approve
additional expenditure, where there is no net additional cost to the
Council.

The maximum permitted extra expenditure is £30,000 per service per
annum.

Chief Officers/Heads of Service have authority to approve budget
adjustments for excess income up to a limit of £30,000 (this is a cumulative
amount i.e. in total for the year and not per transaction) for individual
expenditure headings (cost centres) within their service. The excess
income and additional expenditure must be reported explicitly within the
monthly budget monitoring variance analysis.

The Ceorporate-Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services

also has authority to approve virements-budget adjustments in excess of
the above £30,000 limit — up to a total virement-budget adjustment of
£50,000.

Any virements-budget adjustments above this amount will require Chief
Officers and Heads of Service to ask Members for formal budget
adjustment to reflect the revised position.

Section C 36
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 46



5.3.1

| 53.2

533

CAPITAL BUDGETS AND PROJECTS

Definition of Capital

Capital projects include the purchase or construction of assets such as
buildings, vehicles and computer equipment and major
repairs/refurbishment, which extend the life of an asset or increase its
value. In each case the Council must get the benefit from the new or
refurbished asset over more than one year. The total cost of the project
must also exceed £10,000. This figure includes amounts spent on design
and supervision and other fees for professional services (whether provided
by Council employees or external contractors). Spending of up to £10,000
on a single project should be treated simply as revenue (except where it
forms part of a minor works programme which exceeds £10,000).

The Corporate Capital Strategy - link corp capital strategy 2003.doc.

The Capital Process Guidance is included within the Corporate Capital
Strategy and can be found on the intranet.

Leasing/Rental Agreements

Chief Officers and Heads of Service must consult the Corporate Director-
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services before entering into any
leasing or rental agreement to or from the authority in order to comply with
the International Financial Reporting Standards.

All lease agreements must be signed by the Corperate Director—
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services.

Obtaining an asset through a finance lease is regarded as capital
expenditure and_as such it must be included in the capital programme.

Authority to Incur Capital Spend

The law requires councils to treat capital spending differently from revenue
so different authorisation procedures are used. Chief Officers and Heads
of Service -are authorised to spend money on a capital project only if the
project is included in the capital programme, or for minor projects, they
have sufficient revenue funds. In either case special rules apply.

The Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services

is responsible for ensuring that a capital programme is prepared on an
annual basis for consideration of the full council’s policy framework.

All capital projects and spending must comply with the guidance on
Procurement and Contracts. Expenditure must be in line with the approved
scheme (Capital Programme) as agreed by Council and will require an
adequately detailed Capital Appraisal Form including any revenue
implications arising from the scheme. The Appraisal Form should identify
any key processes/deliverables to be incurred with appropriate financial

Section C 37
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 47



5.3.4

53.5

53.6

5.3.7

53.8

5.4

5.4.1

information (i.e. sub projects within the main programme). The detail of
projects above £50,000 must comply with the Procurement Policy. In the
event that as part of an approved scheme, there is a contingency amount in
excess of £20k, then prior approval must be obtained from Cabinet for the
spend to go ahead. Chief Officers or Heads of Service must then notify the
relevant portfolio holder of the preferred tenderer. The Procurement and
Contracts Section gives further guidance.

If a Chief Officer or Head of Service wishes to incur minor new capital
spend (ie. between £10,000 and £30,000) from a revenue budget the
Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services must
first be informed in writing and there must be no change in service policy,
or detriment to service standards or delivery. If these conditions are not
met, Council must be asked to add the project to the capital programme.

Council have delegated authority to Cabinet to approve/add new capital
schemes to the capital programme where grant funding is received and
there is no net additional cost to the Council.

Some Chief Officers and Heads of Service are responsible for several
capital projects at the same time. Where any single scheme needs up to
£30,000 above its capital allocation to complete it, the Chief Officer or Head
of Service may approve a virement for the additional spend provided other
schemes within his/her control will under-spend by at least that amount.

A Chief Officer or Head of Service may authorise the virement of up to
£30,000 of budget (this is a cumulative amount i.e. in total for each capital
scheme for the year and not per transaction) to or from any individual
scheme within their service. The Director can approve virement (up to
£50,000) across budgets within service activities within their Directorate &
between Directorates with the approval of the Cerperate-Executive Director
Corporate Services—Reseurces. The Chief Officer or Head of Service
must notify the Cerporate Birector—ReseureesExecutive Director
Corporate Services in writing of all virements. No further approval is
needed if there is no change in service policy, no detriment to service
standards or delivery, and no material departure from the service
plan.

Where ‘ring fenced’ grant income is received for an existing scheme which
requires specific actions/spending, the Chief Officer or Head of Service
may approve additional expenditure up to £30,000 (with a further £20,000
only with the Cerporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate
Services approval). , where there is no net additional cost to the Council. .
Spending of grant which fall outside of the above criteria will require
Cabinet approval.

Monitoring

Chief Officers and Heads of Service are responsible for delivering capital
projects within agreed timescales and within budget. Chief Officers and
Heads of Service must therefore continuously monitor both the progress of
projects and spend against budget.

Section C 38
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 48



| 542

543

544

545

546

5.5

55.1

552

55.3

The Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services

and Service Accountants will provide suitable regular reports giving details
of actual expenditure and income compared to the budget. He/she will
notify the Chief Officer and Heads of Service of any significant variance
which appears to require further attention.

Chief Officers and Heads of Service are responsible for dealing with actual
or likely variances from budget or from the project delivery plan.

Where a significant variance is expected (even after taking appropriate
action) the Chief Officer and Heads of Service must report the
circumstances formally to Members as soon as practicable. The report
should indicate the options open to Members and their implications. For
example in the case of a projected overspend it might suggest amending
the specification to come within budget.

Outstanding expenditure relating to the previous financial year should be

notified to the Ge#pepateQ#eetePLReseureesExecutlve Director Corporate

Services as soon as possible after 31% March in line with the timetable

determined by the Corporate Birector—ResourcesExecutive Director

Corporate Services.

A requirement of the Capital Process is for a Post Implementation Review
to be completed. A Post Implementation Review is an essential stage in
the capital process. Results of the review should be circulated to CMT and
BRG and, if appropriate Cabinet and/or Scrutiny Committees. More
detailed guidance on the Post Implementation Review process can be
found in the Capital Process Guidance.

External Funding

External funding is potentially a very important source of income, but
funding conditions need to be carefully considered to ensure that they are
compatible with the aims and objectives of the authority. Local authorities
are increasingly encouraged to provide seamless service delivery through
working closely with other agencies and private service providers. Funds
from external agencies such as the National Lottery provide additional
resources to enable the authority to deliver services to the local community.
However, in some instances, although the scope for external funding has
increased, such funding is linked to tight specifications and may not be
flexible enough to link to the authority’s overall plan.

Where external funding may be available for a project in the capital
programme the Chief Officer or Head of Service is responsible for
submitting any bid required. Consultation with the Cerporate Director—
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services is required before
submission.

Any bid must match the capital programme approval in all material
respects. If the bid differs materially from the capital programme or the
project is not in the capital programme, Council approval must be received
before the bid is submitted.

Section C 39
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 49



554

55.5

55.6

55.7

55.8

55.9

5.5.10

5.5.11

5.6

5.6.1

56.2

Where a project relies on external funding, it must not commence until final
written confirmation has been received that the external funding will be
provided.

If the external funding approval differs materially from the bid, Council
approval must be received before any spending on the project is
committed. The Chief Officer or Head of Service should seek advice from

the Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services

as to whether any difference should be regarded as material.

Council has delegated authority to Cabinet to approve/add new capital
schemes onto the capital programme where grant funding is received and
there is no net additional cost to the Council.

Claims for payment must be made as soon as practicable. The budget
manager who submitted the bid is responsible for submitting the claim, by
the due date unless otherwise agreed with the Corporate Director-
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services.

The Chief Officer or Head of Service should ensure that the project
progresses in accordance with the agreed project delivery plan and that all
expenditure is properly incurred and recorded.

Copies of all documentation such as bids, approvals, claims and
correspondence must be sent immediately to the Corporate Director-
ReseourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services to ensure that all funding
notified by external bodies is received and properly recorded in the
authority’s accounts and to ensure that audit requirements are met.

The Chief Officer or Head of Service must ensure that the key conditions of
funding and any statutory requirements are complied with and the
responsibilities of the accountable body are clearly understood. Funds
should only be acquired to meet the priorities approved in the policy
framework by the full council. Any match-funding requirements should be
given due consideration prior to entering into long-term agreements and
future revenue budgets should reflect these requirements.

Further details on external funding can be found in the External Funding
Strategy.

Disposal of Capital Assets

Disposals require the same level of approval as capital spend. Chief
Officers and Heads of Service should therefore propose any necessary
capital disposals for inclusion in the capital programme. All disposals are
required to be approved by the Budget Review Group and Cabinet.

Chief Officers and Heads of Service must obtain the best possible price for
disposals, in accordance with section 123 of the Local Government Act
1972(where relevant), which will normally be the market value. Chief
Officers and Heads of Service must consult with the relevant specialist
officer before commencing a disposal, e.g. the Beputy Director — Assets
and Environment for land or buildings and the Assistant Director—Business
ProecessesDirector, Technology & Corporate Programmes for IT equipment.
In most cases the specialist manager should assume responsibility for the
disposal.

Section C 40
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 50



5.6.3 The disposal of low value items is dealt within the Assets and Equipment
chapter.

Section C 41
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 51



6. PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACTS
6.1 Introduction

6.1.1 This section supplements the Council’s contract standing orders and
‘ Procurement Strategy and Procurement Guidance and Procedures on the

Intranetthe-ProcurementToolkit (which provides more detailed guidance and
requirements on purchasing, procurement and contracting processes).

6.1.2 Each Chief Officer/Head of Service is under a duty to seek-“Best
ValuePromote greater efficiency and value for money. in all activities
including the procurement of goods and services” (Fin. Reg. 7).

6.1.3 The essence of the system, which must be maintained by all Chief
Officers/Heads of Service is to demonstrate that:

a) Best value for public money spent is achieved,

b)  no favouritism is shown to any potential supplier; “brand names” or
any potential discriminatory requirements/standards are not used,

c) the highest standards of integrity are consistently applied;

d) there is compliance to legal requirements;

e) non-commercial considerations do not influence any contracting
decision;

f) corporate and departmental aims and policies are supported:;

g) compliance with the Procurement Strategy is maintained; and

h) the arrangements for supply and payment are clear to all parties.

6.1.4 This guidance applies to all procurement and purchasing activities
undertaken for, or by, the Council including cases where the Council either
acts as an agent (e.g. work for Staffs. County Council) or employs an agent
such as an external architect or clerk of works, or acts on behalf of other
organisation and bodies working in partnership with (for example the Local
Strategic Partnership and Crime and Disorder Partnership).

| 6.1.5 Values quoted in this guidance should be considered as the estimated
spend on an item, service, or material for the period over which the known
requirements exists, or the total value of a one-off supply. This is often
referred to as the “whole life cost”. In some cases, it is clear that a grouping
together of items is both sensible and within the spirit of the regulations. For
example, it is appropriate to consider the purchase of desks and chairs as
office furniture rather than as individual items. The guidance applies to both
revenue and capital items. For more significant items of expenditure it is
reasonable to consider the sum total of the Council’s requirements for works,
services and supplies across the-three Directorates when assessing the
estimated value and whole life costs of these requirements.

6-456.1.6  All IT purchases (software and hardware) must be approved by the
Assistant Director —Business-ProcessesTechnology & Corporate

Programmes.

Section C 42
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 52



| 6-466.1.7  All potential contracts and partnership agreements (whether formal or
informal) which utilise the handling of the Council’s data/information (paper
based or electronic) by a third party must ensure formal, contractual
provision is made outlining the obligations placed on that third party. The
Procurement Team must be consulted in any such case at the outset of the
process.

| 6-476.1.8 All proposals, developments, capital works, contracts and changes
affecting the information we use, hold and process must have the agreement
of the Assistant Director-—Business-ProcessesDirector, Technology &
Corporate Programmes or deputy, and, where appropriate, be monitored for
compliance.

| 6-486.1.9  All suppliers, partners, third-party organisations and contractors with
whom we have/will have a relationship by which they have access to or
process (as defined by the Data Protection Act 1998) personal or
commercially sensitive information belonging to or under the control of the
Council will be required to provide their compliance with ISO27001 either by
production of certification or by submission of a statement of compliance. In
addition, they must acknowledge and agree their responsibilities and
obligations to the Council in relation to Principle 7 of the Data Protection Act
(1998) in relation to Information Security. Any request to waive these
requirements requires the agreement of both the Security Management
Group and Cabinet. Implementation of these arrangements is immediate in
relation to all contracts not yet let, Invitation to Tenders not yet published,
agreements not yet implemented, or proposed contract extensions. At the
end of the contract, all information used by the contractor but belonging to
the Council will be returned to the Council. Chief Officers are responsible for
ensuring that the contractor provides assurance that they do not hold any
personal or commercially sensitive information - either manually or
electronically, that belongs to the Council. Advice can be obtained from the
Corporate Information Security Manager.

| 84.96.1.10 Any consultants, agents, contractual partners used by the Council
shall be appointed in accordance with the requirements of Contract Standing

| Orders_and; Financial Guidance-and-the-ProcurementTookkit. Where the
Council uses consultants to act on its behalf in relation to any procurement,
the Chief Officer shall ensure that the consultants also comply with these
requirements. No consultant shall make any decision on whether to award a
contract or who a contract should be awarded to. The Chief Officer shall
ensure that the consultant’s performance is monitored.

6-1+106.1.11 Some definitions of terms used and a list of officers who can provide
assistance are shown at 6.17_and 6.18.

| 8-4446.1.12 With effect from 1% April 2009 all tenders (namely £10,000 or over)
whether above or below EU thresholds for works, services, supplies, utilities

| and design contracests will be tendered electronically through the e-
tendering system, from which point traditional “paper based” tender
exercises will cease unless a waiver to financial regulations is obtained from
Cabinet. All transactions associated with such tenders will be conducted via

Section C 43
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 53



the e-tendering system from the initial advertisement, expressions of
interest, pre-qualification of suppliers, invitation to tender or negotiate,
submission of tenders, tender opening contract award and subsequent
contract management. The Procurement Team must be notified in writing at
least six months before the commencement of any tendering exercise with
an expected value of £50k or over and will give direction as to the
procurement route to be followed. This notification will include information
for both capital and revenue expenditure proposals as is required under the
capital appraisal process, so that an accurate assessment of the
requirements can be made. Where the procurement is likely to exceed EU
thresholds the period of notice will be at least sixpire months in order to
allow compliance with EU timescales.

6-4-426.1.13 With effect from April 20120 all quotations and tenders between

£52,000 and £10,000 for works, services, supplies, utilities and design
contracests will be tendered electronically through the e-tendering system
(and from which point traditional “paper based” quotation exercises will
cease unless agreed in writing by the Beputy-Director —of Finance;
Exehequer&Revendes and the Cerporate Director—ResourcesExecutive
Director Corporate Services). The quotation process will be used mainly
where price is the sole criteria for determining the award of contract. All
transactions associated with quotations will be conducted via the e-tendering
system from the initial advertisement/request to quote, pre-qualification of
suppliers where necessary, invitation to quote, submission of quotations,
quotation opening, contract award and subsequent contract management.

| 6-1+136.1.14 With effect from April 2010 the e-tendering system will be extended to

provide electronic or e-auctions and this facility will be made available to
service areas by agreement with the Beputy Director —of Finance;
Exchequer-&Revendes. E-auctions can be a useful way of securing
savings and efficiencies and are best applied where the product or service is
capable of being specified accurately and can be provided by a range of
suppliers with a common understanding of what the requirement is, for
example, paper, IT hardware and consumables, and utilities. E-bidding is
another variant, where “once only” bids are sought electronically.

| 6-1146.1.15 The e-tendering/quotation system includes a browser based supplier

website where any supplier wishing to register an interest in doing business
with the Council can do so electronically, with a password protected, secure
area of the website for them to fill out their company details (this includes
information on their company, address, contact points, business types,
banking, insurance, certificates, accreditation and other details. The
information on the supplier website also includes an electronic version of a
pre-qualification questionnaire to express interest in tenders/quotations,
which when completed can be used and updated whenever the company
wishes to express an interest in a new business opportunity). This, together
with the introduction of corporate contracts, and partnering arrangements
with suppliers, supersedes the practice of having and maintaining an
“Approved Supplier” list or lists.

Section C 44
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 54



| 6-14-156.1.16 Chief Officers should ensure that current and potential suppliers
register their company details on the supplier website which can be found at
the following internet site https://in-tendhost.co.ok/tamworthbc._From June
2012, relevant suppliers will also be able to use Constructionline to maintain
and update key PQQ information.

6-4166.1.17 New business opportunities are to be advertised on the website via
the Procurement Team and therefore must be notified in accordance with
the timescales noted above.

| 6-4+176.1.18 Where Tamworth BC is conducting a tendering or quotation exercise
in partnership with another public or private body (for example joint
procurement of services) then the e-tendering system can be used as part of
the normal procurement processes followed by the Council by agreement

| with the Beputy-Director —of Finance—Exchegquer&-Revenues.

| 8-4486.1.19 Where the Council is funding/assisting a body such as the Local
Strategic Partnership or the Crime and Disorder Partnership and there is an
expectation on the part of the Council to ensure probity in the use of monies
on projects which are publicly funded/routed via Tamworth BC then the e-
tendering system can be used as part of the assistance provided by the

Council by agreement with the Beputy-Director —of Finance,-Exchegquer&
oo,

6.2 Summary of Requirements

6.2.1 The following table shows the action needed at differing values. Further
detail follows. Please refer to the timetable for implementing electronic
tendering and quotation exercises referred to in section 6.1. Before initiating
any tender / quote process officers should review the Contract Register to
see if there are any comparable contracts or agreements in place which
must be used unless there is an auditable reason not to.

- - {Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

)

Section C 45
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 55



622
6236.2.2

Process for Obtaining Prices
Value Contact Other Officers Supply
Contract Issues Process
£0- Should contact Procurement Should obtain at least 3 No requirement for | MustSheuld be
£1,999 Team if similar expenditure is quotations or estimates - these formal written via printed
alse likely to be incurred by may be verbal;. Upto £1,999is | contract. Standard | official order
others to check if a corporate cumulative within the financial form may be generated by
contract is in place or desirable | year considered in some | General
cases and an Ledger or as
annual supply per contract.
arrangement may
be appropriate.
£2,000 - | Should contact Procurement Tendering must be considered, | No requirement for | MustSheuld be
£9,999 Team if further similar alternatively, written quotations contract but use of | via printed
expenditure is alse-likely to be | must be obtained using the standard quotation | official order
incurred by self and/or others Quick Quote on the Intend documents must be | generated by
to check if a corporate contract | system using the correct used especially General
is in place or desirable invitation to quote template. where access to Ledger or as
personal / per contract.
confidential
information is
involved or
warranties or
indemnities are
given/received
£10,000 | Must consult the Procurement | After consultation with the Depending on the MustSheuld be
- Team to seek guidance as to Procurement Team -_either complexity, risk and | via printed
£19,999 | the appropriate procurement tendersing or written quotations | value, a written official order
route to follow must be requested contract must be generated by
viaconsidered. alternatively, considered subject | General
e = to consultation with | Ledger or as
i i i the Procurement per contract.
on the Intend system using the Team and Legal.
correct Invitation to Tender or
Invitation to Quoteinvitation-te
quote templates.
The Tender Authorisation Form
must be completed and
returned to the Procurement
team.
£20,000 | Must consult the Procurement | Advice from Procurement and Must be formal As specified in
- Team to seek guidance as to Legal must first be obtained written contract formal contract
£49,999 | the appropriate procurement Tendering must be considered, | which can be
route to follow ander must use the standard signed by the
quotation / tender documents. relevant CMT
The Tender Authorisation Form | member._Consult
must be completed and with Procurement
returned to the Procurement team as to the
team. relevant type of
contract.
£50,000 | Must advise Procurement Member endorsement of Must be a formal As specified in
and Team in writing as soon as the | contract brief required. Use of written contract formal contract
over spend requirement is identified | the Invitation to Tender duly approved by
— this is at least a 6 month Documentation must be used. the Solicitor to the
period and where spend is The Tender Authorisation Form | Council and
going to exceed the EU must be completed and executed as a
threshold, a longer period of returned to the Procurement Deed under Seal.
notice would be expected — the | team.
Procurement Team must be
contacted for guidance as to
Section C 46

| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 56




the appropriate procurement
route to follow. The
Procurement Team may direct
and/or administer the whole
process

Section C 47
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 57




| 6:246.2.3  Any of the guidance may be applied for purchases at a lesser value. For
example, it may be appropriate for certain low value requirements to be
purchased by inviting tenders. He/she-should-then-follow-sSimilar procedures to
those outlined_should then be followed. (The guidance does not necessarily
cover such situations in full).

| 6:256.2.4 If there is an existing contract available for the required goods, services or
works, it must be used in the first instance. Some contracts let by other public
| authorities mayare also be available (see 6.3.1).

| 6266.2.5 A list of corporate contracts can be found in the Contracts Register, stored
on the S Drive. Ifitis intended not to use a corporate contract, the Procurement
Team must be consulted at the outset.

| 6:276.2.6 A suitable contract specification must be completed in all cases. The
level of detail required within the specification will be commensurate with the
complexity, risk and value of the purchase.

See the following section on Alternative Suppliers. Advice in either case is
available from the Procurement Team.

‘ 6:2.86.2.7  Chief Officers should maintain a register to record all quotations and
estimates (including verbal estimates) up to £1,999. Copies of written versions
should be securely retained, and entries should be signed and dated by both the
| recording officer and the authorising officer. _The details contained in any
quotation or estimate must not be made known to any other party. All quotations
and estimates received should be retained in the register until the Accounts have
l been signed off for that financial year._The Quick-Quote register for purchases

of £2.000 or over, or the Contract Register, as appropriate should be used to
record details of tenders/contracts awarded.

| 62.96.2.8 The most economically advantageous quotation-or-tender must be
accepted. Advice on how to determine this can be sought from the Procurement
Team.

Further Guidance

6.2.9 Under £2,000
Different practices will apply at different levels:
e The petty cash procedure may be used for very minor items. See the section
on cash advances, etc.
| ¢ The three estimates for a-£400 supply_up to £1,999 may come from telephone
contact with companies advertising in the local paper, trade journal or yellow
pages.
| e Verbal quotations/estimates may only be sought for similar-goods/services up
to a cumulative value of £1,999 within the financial year.

6.2.10£2,000 - £9,999
e The Chief Officer should contact the Procurement Team if further similar
expenditure is also likely to be incurred by themselves or others to check if a
corporate contract is in place or is desirable. Tendering must be considered
and the Procurement team will advise on the suitability of tendering.

Section C 48
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 58



Alternatively, written quotations must be obtained by using the Quick Quote
on the Intend system using the correct Invitation To Quote template.

6.2.11 The standard form of contract is particularly recommended in situations where
protection against a poorly performing supplier is important or where the
procurement carries particular risks e.g. where the supplier would have access to

‘ confidential/personal information, or where price is not the only criteria being
considered.

6.2.12 £10,000 - £19,999
The Chief Officer should appoint a Project Officer with overall responsibility for
the procurement. The Procurement Team must be advised in writing in all cases
and guidance sought on the appropriate procurement route to be followed.

‘ Tendering must be considered and the Procurement Team will advise where
tendering is not necessaryif-tendering-is-appropriate. Alternatively, written
quotations must be obtained using the Quick Quote on the Intend system using
the correct Invitation To Quote template. The Tender Authorisation Form must
be completed and returned to the Procurement Team. A written specification
must be included in the Invitation To Quote document Formal Terms and

l Cond/t/ons of Contract must be used.i

| 6.2.13£20,000 - £49.999
The Chief Officer should appoint a Project Officer with overall responsibility for
the procurement. The Procurement Team must be advised in writing in all cases
and guidance sought on the appropriate procurement route to be followed.
Tendering must be considered and the Procurement Team will advise where
tendering iftendering-is not necessaryappropriate. In exceptional
circumstancesAlternatively, written quotations must be obtained using the Quick
Quote on the Intend system using the correct Invitation To Quote template_and
standard quotation/tender documents. The Tender Authorisation Form must be
completed and returned to the Procurement Team. A written specification must
be included in the Invitation To Quote document. Formal Terms and Conditions
of Contract must be used ﬂmeerdaneeANtthMeeﬂermeanerendmens

| 6.2.14 £50,000 plus
The Chief Officer must appoint a Project Officer with overall responsibility for the
procurement. The Procurement Team must be advised in writing in all cases, at
the initiation of the project, and guidance sought on the appropriate procurement
route to follow. This is to enable an assessment of whether or not the European
Union regulations come into play and to ensure the most appropriate
procurement solutions are sought. Where the EU threshold is expected to be

‘ exceeded, the Procurement Team should be contacted in the first instance.-as
the- EU-process- A supply for an individual Service area may be below the
threshold, but similar needs in another Service area may mean EU aggregation

‘ rules apply EU procedures are-available-from-the-ProcurementToolkitand

must be followed if they apply, and, d—ue to their complexity, the Procurement
Team must be involved in such projects. A formal tender exercise is compulsory,
as is a formal written contract.

Section C 49
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 59



The Solicitor to the Council must have a minimum of 2 weeks notice to consider
the draft contract before engrossment.

Section C 50
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 60



6.3 Alternative Purchasing Arrangements

6.3.1 Other organisations in the public sector are also under a duty to secure value for
money in terms of purchasing. In the right circumstances and where provision
has been made for the agreement to be used by other authorities, i.e. where it
will provide best value and is consistent with other key requirements such as on
contract terms and conditions, managers may use their purchasing
arrangements.

6.3.2 These other organisations_may include Government Procurement
ServicesBuying-Selutions, ESPO, Central Government (via their G-Cat and S-
Cat, and L-Cat;-OGC processes), local authorities such as Staffs. County
Council and bodies such as Tamwerth-College-and-the National Health Service.
The-Procurement Team-will-establish-a list of such-organisations. Chief
Officers/Heads of Service may contract directly with such suppliers en-these-lists
without-furtherinvestigation-but should rermallyconsult with/-involve the
Procurement Team because of potential issues such as the requirement to
conduct a mini-competition under a framework agreement, delivery charges,

minimum order levels and so on..

| 8:3.26.3.3  Goods or services may also be procured jointly with other such
organisations to obtain best value and meet the requirements of the Council’s
own rules on procurement.

8:3.36.3.4  OAny-other variations new-forms-of procurement;-such-astSOP;
competitive-dialogue may be consideredused but officers must approach the
Procurement Team for guidance before the commencement of alternative
procurement routes.

Section C 51
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 61



6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

6.4.5

Appraisal of Potential Contractors

It is important that potential suppliers are able to meet the Council’s needs. The
more-significantsSuppliers should, therefore, be vetted in financial and
performance terms (including health and safety) to various levels commensurate
with the criticality and risk of the purchase/supply, prior to any firm commitment
(Company Profile Questionnaire Notes). This process must be followed for all
participants in a tender exercise.

The financial appraisal checks that the supplier operates on a sound financial
footing by assessing profit levels, the ability to pay bills and so on. It will also
assess the supplier's capacity to deliver a contract without incurring
unreasonable financial risk and recommend a maximum value contract that
should be considered in order to protect the contractor from becoming too reliant
on the Council for its business. The Corporate Director-RescurcesExecutive
Director Corporate Services will undertake or arrange these appraisals on receipt
of the last two years audited accounts. The appropriate Chief Officer is
responsible for ensuring that all relevant documents are submitted to the
Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services in a timely
manner. The Chief Officer must advise the Cerperate-Director-
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services if the contract value exceeds
£100,000, since a higher level appraisal is then required.

In addition to the financial details submitted, the contractor is also required to
submit details of Employers Liability, Public Liability Insurance and Professional
Indemnity cover which must be appropriate to the contract type, size and the
nature of the contract, copies of which should be submitted along with the
financial details to the Cerporate-Director—ReseourcesExecutive Director
Corporate Services. The Chief Officer must check that the certificates are valid
for the period of work. If they expire during the period the Chief Officer must
check before expiry that they have been renewed. Further advice and guidance

can be sought from the Deputy-Director-Finance-Exchequer&
RevenuesDirector of Finance.

In terms of performance appraisal, the Chief Officer needs to satisfy him/herself
that the contractor has a history of sound performance of similar supplies in the
recent past. The Chief Officer should therefore request bank references, trade
references and make other enquiries deemed necessary to become satisfied.

Some contractors are required to hold a valid tax exemption certificate.
Certificates should be checked prior to the start of the contract and a copy of the
certificate should be forwarded to the Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive
Director Corporate Services. The Chief Officer must check that the certificate is
valid for the period of work. If it expires during the period the Chief Officer must
check before expiry that it has been renewed. Further guidance is available from

the Ceorporate Director—ReseourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services.

| 8.4.66.4.6  In addition to the specific issues referred to within this section, the Chief - - { Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

)

Officer must ensure that appropriate steps are taken in all cases to assess the
suitability of prospective suppliers. The risks involved in the procurement should
advise the necessary level of assessment. For instance, even for lower value
purchases Chief Officer should still consider the need to obtain assurance that a

Section C 52
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 62



business is bona fide, or has appropriate health and safety arrangements and

insurance cover—Further guidance-on-these-matters-is-given-within-the
oot e cldl

Section C 53
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 63



6.5 Supplier Register

6.5.1 The names of contractors who have expressed an interest in doing work for the
Council are retained on a supplier register within the e-tendering system (Intend).
Any contractor who expresses an interest to be included is automatically added
to the Supplier Register. There is no pre-set requirement for contractors when
signing up to the register. Appraisal criteria / pre-qualification questionnaires
| should be considered at the start of the tendering / quotation stage.

6.5.2 All Supplier Registers shall be maintained in an open, fair and transparent
manner and be open to public inspection.

6.6 Framework Agreements

6.6.1 The term of a Framework Agreement must not exceed four years and, while an
agreement may be entered into with one provider, where an agreement is
concluded with several organisations, there must be at least three in number.

6.6.2 Contracts based on Framework Agreements may be awarded by either:

e Applying the terms laid down in the Framework Agreement (where such
terms are sufficiently precise to cover the particular call-off) and where value
for money can be clearly determined without reopening competition, or

o Where the terms laid down in the Framework Agreement are not precise
enough to complete for the particular call off, by holding a mini competition in
accordance with the following procedure:

o Inviting the organisations within the Framework
Agreement that are capable of executing the subject
of the contract to submit written tenders

o Fixing a time limit which is sufficiently long to allow
Tenders for each specific contract to be submitted,
taking into account factors such as the complexity of
the subject of the contract

o Awarding each contract to the tenderer who has
submitted the best Tender on the basis of the award
criteria set out in the specifications of the Framework
Agreement.

Section C 54
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 64



6.7

6.7.1

6.7.2

6.7.3

6.7.4

6.7.5

6.7.6

6.7.7

Tender Procedures

For contracts over £50,000 Chief Officers must advise the Procurement Team in
writing at the outset. An Invitation to Tender advert or PQQ is placed to invite
potential contractors or suppliers to register their interest in tendering for the
relevant requirement.

The Invitation to Tender should contain details of the principal elements of the
procurement requirement in order that it primarily attracts those contractors who
are in a position to satisfy these requirements. It should therefore contain as a

minimum:

° a sufficiently detailed requirement or specification for the type of goods,
services or works required;

o a price schedule;

estandard conditions of contract that will apply in the event of a contract +~ - - { Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

being awarded,

° instructions to tenderers including the date of commencement of the
contract and possible duration; technical and financial information; the closing
date for tender submissions, and a list of the evaluation criteria and sub-criterion
together with the weightings to be used.

The evaluation criteria together with the weightings must be referred to in the
Invitation to Tender and must not be altered after the Invitation to Tender has
been issued. All criteria chosen to be used in the evaluation of tenders must be
relevant to the service and/or goods required.

The Chief Officer must set a detailed evaluation methodology prior to inviting
tenders. He/she should set out explicitly how price and quality elements will be
balanced in the final decision in order to help demonstrate selection of the most
economically advantageous tender. Appropriate and sufficient information must
be requested for inclusion in the supplier's tender submission to enable all
criteria to be evaluated. Advice is available from the Procurement Team.

Large contracts may require the tenderers to submit a schedule of rates. To
compare them properly and allow the total cost to be assessed, the Chief Officer
should construct a model of work likely to be required over a set period, for
example, one year. This model must be set before tenders are invited, and must
be issued with the Invitation to Tender.

Contracts awarded will be Fenders-completed-forgoodsiservices-over£500-will

be-required to be published_in accordance with the Government’s Transparency
agenda.

European Union Procurement Procedures

The relevant EU Directives on procurement must be adhered to when awarding
a contract where the anticipated value is close to or exceedsfalls-over the
thresholds indicated below.

Thresholds Supplies (£) Services (£) Works (£)
Contract Value | 456,442173 93 | 456,442173,934 | 3,.927,2604 348,

Section C 55
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 65



| | 4] | 350 ]

6.7.8 These figures apply from 1 January 20128. The Procurement Team must be
advised in writing at least six months in advance of the supply and guidance
sought as to the appropriate values and procedures are used. Further
information en-guidance-on EU Procurement Procedures ean-be-found-in-the
ProcurementToolkit-and guidance on the use of the open, restricted, competitive
dialogue and negotiated procurement routes, together with design contests and
works concessions, should be obtained is-available-from the Procurement Team.
The Procurement team must be involved in all procurement projects under EU
requlations due to the complexities and legal implications involved.

6.7.9 In appropriate cases, Chief Officers may engage with the market prior to initiating
the tendering process in order to make use of innovative approaches to
achieving best value in the provision of a supply or service. This could involve
consulting with stakeholders including customers, potential suppliers and interest
groups. The Beputy-Director —of Finance;-Excheguer-&Revenues must be fully
consulted and involved in any such proposals, which must comply with corporate
guidance and EU Procurement Procedures.

Development of Contract Brief

| 6.7.10 Where there is a variation from the agreed budget eran-extension-to-a-contract?;
each Chief Officer must seek Cabinet endorsement prior to tendering. The
report should comment upon:

a) the detailed proposals for the scheme, including objectives, targets,
milestones, design details and its contribution to the corporate and service
plans;

b) the financial appraisal of the revenue and capital implications, prepared in

conjunction with the Corpeorate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director

Corporate Services, and compared to budgets;

c) risk associated with the scheme;

d) the tender evaluation mechanism and the decision criteria.

6.7.11 Approval at this stage will normally include authority to invite tenders and to
accept the most economically advantageous tender.

6.7.12 Chief Officers should consult the Deputy-Director of Finance-Exchequer&
Revenues and the Solicitor to the Council for advice.

6.7.13 Arrangements have been made for submission and control of tenders and
quotations by electronic means, and for e-auctions, in accordance with any
process approved by the Beputy-Director of Finance, ;- Exchequer&Revenues,
GCorporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services and the
Solicitor to the Council and guidance provided by the Council. Such processes
provide an increased level of security, transparency, accountability and fairness

to the prescrlbed “paper-based” tendermg process Ge#pena%&gwdanee—semng

Section C 56
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 66



Section C 57
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 67



Section C 58
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 68

<~~~ 7 Formatted: Indent: Hanging: 0.25

\ c¢m, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering
\ Style: a, b, ¢, ... + Startat: 1 +
\ Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.27 cm
\ | + Tab after: 2.54 cm + Indent at:
\ | 2.54 cm

\
( Formatted: Bullets and Numbering J

<- -~ 7 Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, First
line: 0.cm




Extension to Tender Period

6.7.14 The Solicitor to the Council or Cerperate-Executive Director efCorporate
Services-Resourceshief-Executive (or his nominated deputy) only can approve
the extension of a tender period. All potential tenderers must be informed of the
extension to the tendering period.

Amendments to Tenders (by Contractors)

6.7.1522 Any amendment a contractor wishes to make to a submitted tender must
be received before the closing date and time for tender responses. In-tTend will
provide this facility to tenderers ltmusbbesen%te%he%eherteﬁe%@e&nem

Tender opening — ERPaperand-electronic

6.7.1624 All tenders for an individual contract must be opened at the same time by
at least 23 officers. T;-this should include a representative from Legal Services
for purchases that are subject to EU procedures.-

| 6.7.1726 A tender received after the specified time may be only opened and
considered at the discretion of the Solicitor to the Council.

Sub-Contractors and Nominated Suppliers

6.7.1827 Nominated sub-contractors and suppliers mustsheuld not be used where
this would be anti-competitive,-or discriminatory_or in breach of procurement

requlations.

6.7.1928 If a Chief Officer wishes to nominate a specific sub-contractor or supplier
a written request must be sent to and be approved by the Beputy-Director—
Einance-Exchegquer&RevenuesDirector of Finance who will assess any risks
involved. The request sheuldmust show how this will give best value/value for
money.

Section C 59
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 69



Amendments to Tender Documents (by the Authority)

6.7.209 Minor corrections and amendmentsVariation to any part of the Invitation to
Tender may be required during the tender period. Chief Officers sheuldmust
consult with Procurement, and #f-necessarywhere appropriate the Deputy
Director —of Finance, Exchequer&Revenues-and where-appropriateif necessary
the Solicitor to the Council on such matters, and all tenderers must be advised of
all agreed amendments in writing at the same time. Acknowledgement of receipt
of the amendments will be recorded on the electronic tendering system. In
responding to clarifications and queries, the response —even-if-a-guery-comes

from-only-one-organisation-theresponse-should be addressed to all tendering

organlsatlons and |ssued at the same time via the Intend system

eteetpemetendenngsystem AII correspondence WI|| be sent electronlcally

| 6.7.2136 The Invitation to Tender amendments must not contain anything which
may materially affect the tender process or unduly affect open and fair
competition. No fundamental changes to the Invitation to Tender documentation
should be made by the information contained within the tender amendment.

| 6.7.2231 A record is retained electronically by lin-tend of all correspondence with
Tenderers throughout the tender process (including e-mails).

Tender Evaluation

| 6.7.2332 Chief Officers should ensure that at least two people carry out the
evaluation of tenders. For major contracts involving a project team, the manager
should consider involving the whole team. All tender evaluation carried out
should be evidenced.

6.7.2433 From May/June 2012, tender evaluation will be conducted electronically
on the In-Tend system where appropriate. The Procurement Team should be
contacted to provide advice and guidance.

6.7.2533 Tenders should be checked to ensure they are complete and that all
eestprice calculations are correct. They must be evaluated objectively in line
with the specified evaluation model, ensuring fair and equitable treatment for
each tender.

6.7.2634 If an arithmetical error is discovered in the financial submission, the Chief

Officer should consult the Cerperate Director-—ResourcesExecutive Director

Corporate Services. The contractor must be notified in order to enable him/her

to:
a) agree the amendment; or
b) allow the original figure to stand; or
c) withdraw the tender.
6.7.2735 If a Tenderer notifies the Council of an error/amendment which materially

affects the submission, the Chief Officer mustsheuld consult with appropriate
officers, for example, the Corporate Procurement Officer, Beputy Director —of

Finance-Excheguer& Revenues, the Solicitor to the Council or Cerperate

Section C 60
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 70



| Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services and should normally
implement one of the following options:

a) all other Tenderers are allowed to retender (in the case of the Council’s
error); or

b) the Tenderer is required to stand by the original Tender; or

c) the Tenderer withdraws the Tender, or

d) (where an error is found before completion of tender evaluation) to
correct an error which can be corrected simply by confirming which of
two conflicting figures (e.g. a multiplier or product, or carried forward or
brought forward) is right, or

e) (where the error is found before completion of tender evaluation) to
correct an obvious omission (e.g. a failure to insert any price where a
space for a price is provided).

6.7.2836 During the evaluation process, clarification may be sought on any of the
tenders received. The questions and answers should always be submitted via
the In-Tend systemir-writing- and incorporated into the tender documentation.

| 6.7.2937 There must be no fundamental change to the contract specification or
award criteria. Amendments to the specification or terms of the supply, which do
not distort competition or are not considered material changes or -fundamental to
the contract can be made, and shall be put to all Tenderers prior to the
submission deadline and in good time for them to make any necessary changes

to their tender. Guidance is available from the Beputy-Director—Finance;
Excheguer&RevenuesDirector of Finance or Solicitor to the Council.

| 6.7.308 At the conclusion of the evaluation process, the Chief Officer should be
able to, and is expected to select the tender which is the most economically
advantageous to the Council, as indicated by the evaluation model.

Post Tender Negotiation & Clarification

| 6.7.319 After the tenders have been returned and evaluated, further clarification
from tenderers, in relation to the tender bid may be required. Clarifying
information can include the following:

price

specification

delivery date/start date
payment terms
software licences

| 6.7.3240 All tender bids which are covered by the EU Directives are subject to the
more restrictive approach specified by the European Union, which states all
negotiations with Tenderers on fundamental aspects of contracts, variations of
which are likely to distort competition and in particular on price, shall be ruled
out. However, discussions with Tenderers may be held, only for the purpose of
clarifying or supplementing the content of their tenders or the requirements of the
contracting authorities, and provided this does not involve discrimination. There
must be no fundamental change to the contract specification or contract award
criteria.

| 6.7.3341 The spirit of the above EU interpretation on post tender negotiation should
also be followed for tenders under the EU threshold.

Section C 61
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 71



| 6.7.342 Where a tender return is unclear or there are minor sections which have
been omitted with no explanation included, it is recommended that the tendering
organisation is contacted for clarification, this must be done via the electronic
tendering system. In the case of numerous or sizable omissions, guidance
mustshould be sought from the Beputy-Director —of Finance,-Excheguer&
Revenues and Procurement before clarification is requested.

6.7.435 All tendering organisations must be treated fairly and equally in all
circumstances.

Section C 62
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 72



6.7.3644 An electronic-written record_will-must be kept of any query on a tender_on
In-Tend and any information supplied by the company must be confirmed via the
electronic tendering system.

| 6.7.3745 Where it is necessary to meet Tenderers to discuss their submission
further, at least two authorised officers must be present and minutes taken. In all
instances, the Procurement Team must be consulted.

6.7.3846 In some cases it may be necessary to vary, by agreement, some minor
details of the work required. Consultation wit the Procurement Team and the
Solicitor to the Council must be made prior to any agreement being made.

6.7.39 Advice should always be sought from the Procurement Team, Director of
Finance or the Solicitor to the Council before entering into negotiations.

.6.7.40 —Chief Officers must not enter into negotiations except:

a) with the preferred tenderer(s) under the evaluation
model and after all unsuccessful tenderers have been
informed; or

b) when using the negotiated procedure under EU rules, in
which case those procedures must be followed.

The Chief Officer must ensure that:

c) negotiations are carried out by at least two authorised
officers, and guidance on separation of duties is
followed:;

d) the decisions taken at relevant meetings are
documented;

e) changes in specification and price are agreed by both
parties;

and

f) all records are incorporated into contract documents.

| 6.7.4108 Where post tender negotiation results in a fundamental change to the
specification (or contract terms) the contract must not be awarded but re-
tendered.

Tender Acceptance

| 6.7.4249 A Chief Officer may accept the winning tender after evaluation if it meets
all material aspects of the specification and is within the budget provision. If the
amount is higher than budgetary provision, the guidance on Budgets must be
followed.

Section C 63
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 73



| 6.7.43250  When requesting approval to procure contracts, officers must ensure that
approval is obtained from Cabinet to award the contract to the successful
tenderer (in compliance with delegated procedures). With all income generating
projects i.e. the disposal of material operating assets/activities. Cabinet must
approve the preferred tenderer.

6.7.443

Section C 64
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/103/142

Page 74



Where the procurement is conducted under EU procedures, advice mustMUST -be
sought from the Deputy Director —of Finance-Exchequer&Revenues or the
Procurement Team prior to any notification of an award of contract being issued.
All tenderers shall simultaneously be provided with a written standstill notice of
the Authority’s intention to award the contract to the successful tenderer. The
standstill notice must be issued electronically to tenderers (i.e. e-mail, in-tend)

‘ who must be provided with a period of 10 calendar days to review, and, if
considered necessary,in-which to challenge the decision before the contract is
awarded. Day one of the period shall commence on the day following issue of
the standstill notice. The tenth day must fall on a working day and the 10 day
standstill period should be extended, where necessary, to ensure that this
happens. If the decision is challenged, then the contract shall not be awarded
and advice must immediately be sought from the Solicitor to the Council and the
Procurement team.

| 6.7.454 The standstill notice must contain a precise statement of when the 10 day
standstill period will end i.e. midnight at the end of (date) together with the
following information:

the criteria for the award of the contract;

| rReasons for the decision including the characteristics and
relative advantages of the successful tenderer;

| in conjunction with the above, the score of the unsuccessful
tenderer (including criterion and sub-criterion) and that of the
successful tenderer to be awarded the contract;;

the reasons why (if any) the unsuccessful tenderer did not
meet the technical specifications;;

the name of the successful tenderer to be awarded the
contract.

The standstill notice must always be prepared in consultation with the
Procurement team.

6.7.45653 Where the tender price exceeds the available resources by the

lower of £10,000 or 5% the Cerpeorate Director-ResourcesExecutive Director

Corporate Services must be informed and has the discretion to authorise that the
tender be accepted and a contract entered into.

Section C 65
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 75



6.8 Post Tender and Contracts

Preparation of Contract

6.8.1 Where a tender has been subject to EU procedures and the standstill period has
been completed without a challenge, then all tenderers must be informed once
the contract has been awarded. More generally, having decided to accept a
tender/quotation the Chief Officer must advise tenderers of the outcome of the
process and must finalise a contract. This might involve simple acceptance of a
standard form of contract, minor amendment agreed via correspondence or it
might require meetings with the successful tenderer. Where an industry
standard form of contract and terms and conditions are available, eg JCT or ICE
contracts, they should be used in place of the Council’'s standard forms (and
should be specified in the Invitation to Tender documents). All agreed
amendments must be recorded in writing and formally incorporated into the
contract. Advice should be sought from the Procurement Team, and where
necessary, the Solicitor to the Council.

6.8.2 The Chief Officer should ensure that all approvals that remain outstanding (such
as planning permission) are obtained prior to the completion of the contract
documents.

6.8.3 In addition, every relevant contract over £50,000 must also state clearly as a
minimum:

Prices and/or rates together with any adjustment mechanisms that shall
apply during the term of the contract;

Invoice procedures;

Performance indicators and/or service levels required;

Conditions of contract that shall include:

e That the contractor may not assign or sub-contract without prior
written consent

Insurance requirements

Health and safety requirements

Ombudsman requirements

Data protection requirements, if relevant

Charter standards are to be meet, if relevant

Equalities & Diversity Policy requirements

Children & Vulnerable Adults Policy requirements, if relevant
Conflict of Interests requirements

Freedom of Information Act requirements

Bribery Act requirements

Right of access to relevant documentation and records of the
contractor for monitoring and audit purposes if relevant.

Where agents are used to let contracts, agents must comply with the
council’s contract procedures rules.

Section C 66
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 76



6.8.4

6.8.5

6.8.6

6.8.7

6.8.8

6.8.9

6.8.10

Insurance

Chief Officers must ensure that the contractor has Employers Liability and Public
Liability insurance, normally to a minimum value of £10 million and £5 million
respectively; and should seek the advice of the Cerporate-Director-
ResoureesExecutive Director Corporate Services wherever there is doubt. Other
insurances, for example, professional indemnity may be desirable.

The responsibility for obtaining contractor insurance details including renewals
lies with the appropriate Chief Officer. The Chief Officer should ensure that all
insurance details are passed to the Corperate-Director—ReseurcesExecutive

Director Corporate Services without delay.

Bonds and Parent Companies Guarantees

The officer must consult the Cerperate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director

Corporate Services about whether a Parent Company Guarantee is necessary
when a contractor is a subsidiary of the parent company and:

the total value exceeds £250,000, or
the award is based on evaluation of the parent company, or
there is some concern about the stability of the contractor.

The Officer must consult the Cerpeorate Director-ResourcesExecutive Director

Corporate Services about whether a bond is needed:

where the total value exceeds £1,000,000, or

where it is proposed to make stage or other payments in
advance of receiving the whole of the subject matter of the
contract and there is concern about the stability of the
contractor.

Signing of Contracts

The Solicitor to the Council should check and endorse contracts before
engrossment valued at £50,000 or above for signature. Contracts below
£50,000 should be signed by the relevant member of the Corporate Management
Team(CMT). If, in the latter case, a number of members of CMT are involved,
then the contract should be signed by the main user.

The officer signing the contract must notify all interested managers it has taken

place. The Deputy-Director—Finance-Exchequer&RevenuesDirector of

Finance must be notified in every case.

Site Possession

On completion of the contract documents the Chief Officer should where relevant
arrange a site possession date. Chief Officers must not allow entry onto the
Council’s land or commencement of work prior to the completion of a written
contract. In exceptional circumstances, this may be authorised by the Chief
Executive.

Section C 67
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 77



Document Retention (all formal contracts)

6.8.11 Chief Officers must ensure the original copies of all formal contracts are placed
in the Council’s strong room for all contracts over 12 months/over £50,000.
Where a consultant has been engaged to manage the contract on the Council’s
behalf, it must be ensured that both the contractor and Chief Officer have
necessary access to contract documents to enable their functions to be
performed.

Contract Amendments

6.8.12 Contracts may need amending after signing. The circumstances will dictate the
level of approval needed for the change. The relevant Chief Officer should seek
appropriate advice, for example, from the Solicitor to the Council, before
proceeding.

6.9 Project/Contract Implementation & Payment
6.9.1 A separate file should be maintained by the relevant Chief Officer for each
project, including copies of such contracts making up the project. The file should
contain the following information: -
a) arecord of instalments due and paid;
b) the working papers substantiating payments; and
c) the details of payments to consultants, internal fees & other payments.

6.9.2 Chief Officers must only authorise payments that conform to the terms of the
contract.

6.9.3 The Chief Officer must only make payments to contractors for Buildings &
Engineering works on the basis of a valuation certificate detailing:
(a) the total value of the contract;

(b) the value of work executed to date;
(c) the amount paid to date;

(d) the amount now certified:;

(e) any retention monies;

(

f)  whether the work is subject to VAT or Liquidated and Ascertained
Damages (together with details of the calculation of damages).

6.9.4 Where the work is subject to VAT the Chief Officer must ensure that either a VAT
invoice or receipt is obtained in order to substantiate the VAT reclaimed.

6.9.5 Where liquidated and ascertained damages are to be deducted, the Chief Officer
must ensure that the contractor is notified as soon as possible and given details
of the basis of calculation. Any liquidated damages applied at any stage of a
contract must be deducted from any subsequent valuation certificate before any
payment is made.

Section C 68
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 78



Contract Monitoring and Variations (including claims)

6.9.6 The Chief Officer must monitor expenditure under a contract and take action
where appropriate to ensure the final contract sum or the level of expense
incurred in any financial year does not exceed the approved budget/available
resources.

During the life of the contract, the officer must monitor in respect of:

performance
compliance with specification and contract
cost
any Value for Money requirements
user satisfaction and risk management.
Contracts of a high value or high risk should be subject to formal monthly review
with the contractor.
For contracts over £50,000, contract managers must:
maintain a risk register during the contract period
undertake appropriate risk assessments and for identified risks
ensure contingency measures are in place.

6.9.7 Subject to the provisions of the contract, every extra cost or variation should be
authorised in writing by the Chief Officer. Copies of the approved delegated
decision that permits officers to authorise variations or extra costs should be

| forwarded to the Cerporate-Executive Director — ReseureesCorporate Services
by the Chief Officer or the delegated officer.

6.9.8 If the revised project cost exceeds the budget/available resources, the guidance
on capital budgets and projects must be followed.

6.9.9 Where a contract requires a contractor to meet specified outcomes or service
levels (e.g. in a partnering —type arrangement) appropriate arrangements must
be made by the Chief Officer to ensure that the expected outcomes/service
levels are provided or that clear processes exist for reporting and approving any
variations from these outcomes/service levels and their financial effect. Any
proposals to provide financial incentives or profit sharing arrangements with
partners must be subject to appropriate approval and budget processes. Such
arrangements must provide appropriate levels of probity and transparency.

6.9.10 Where payment under a partnering arrangement is based upon an agreement of
target prices between the Council and the external partner then written evidence
shall be provided to demonstrate that the target price represents value for
money.

6.9.11 Where a consultant is contracted to monitor a contract on the Council’s behalf,

the Chief Officer must ensure that the consultant contractor complies with this
financial guidance.

Section C 69
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 79



6.10

6.10.1

6.10.2

6.10.3

Final Account

Payment of the final account (where relevant) effectively closes the contract and
it must be correct. The Chief Officer must ensure that adequate checks are
carried out to ensure the final account/payment is correct and has been
accurately calculated. He/she must also ensure there is adequate separation of
duties in preparing and agreeing the final account. Management within the
relevant Directorate will, on an annual basis review the Contracts Register
maintained by the GereFa{eQweeteF—ReseuFeesExecutlve Director Corporate
Services and sample test a number of payments (this process should be
adequately evidenced).

For building and engineering work the relevant project manager must prepare a
detailed statement of account before a final certificate (where required) is issued
showing variations against the original contract price, payments made to date
and any further payments due. It should be sent to the client Chief Officer within
one month of the issue of the certificate of practical completion.

The client Chief Officer should approve and agree the contract final account within
the retention period and ensure the final payment and certificate are sent to the
contractor by the due date. In case of difficulty, advice should be sought from
relevant officers, for example, the Solicitor to the Council or Cerperate-Director-
ResoureesExecutive Director Corporate Services.

6.10.4 Final account outturn should be reported in accordance with the Corporate Capital

Strategy.
6.11 Post Contract
6.11.1 Claims from the contractor in respect of matters not clearly within the terms of
any existing contract should be referred to the Solicitor to the Council for
consideration of the authority's legal liability.
Section C 70

| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 80



6.12 Partnerships

6.12.1 Partnerships have a key role in delivering community strategies and in helping to
promote and improve the well-being of the area. The authority is and will be
increasingly working with others — public agencies, private companies,
community groups and voluntary organisations.

6.12.2 The main reasons for entering into partnerships are:

The desire to find new ways to share risk

The ability to access new resources

To provide new and better ways to deliver services
To forge new relationships.

6.12.3 A partner is either:
e An organisation (either private or public) undertaking, part funding or
participating as a beneficiary in a project; or
e A body whose nature or status gives it a right or obligation to support the
project.

6.12.4 Partners participate by:

e Acting as a project deliverer or sponsor, solely or in connection with others;
e Acting as a project funder or part funder;
e Being the beneficiary group of the activity undertaken in a project.

6.12.5 Partners have common responsibilities:

e To be willing to take on a role in the broader programme appropriate to the
skills and resources of the partner organisation;

e To act in good faith at all times and in the best interest of the partnership’s
aims and objectives;

e To be open about any conflict of interest that may arise;

To encourage joint working and promote the sharing of information,
resources and skills between the public, private and community sectors;

e To hold confidentially any information received as a result of the partnership
activities or duties that is of a confidential or commercially sensitive nature;

e To act wherever possible as ambassadors for the project.

6.12.6 Chief Officers should be aware of:

e Their responsibilities with regard to the authority’s financial regulations and
contract standing orders;

e The requirement for them to identify and evaluate all known risks associated
with the partner arrangements, and take action deemed appropriate to deal
with these risks;

e Ensuring that project appraisal techniques are in place to assess the viability
of the project in terms of resources, staffing and expertise;

e Their role in agreeing and accepting formally the roles and responsibilities of
each of the partners involved before the commencement of the project;

e Their need to communicate regularly throughout the project so that problems
can be identified and shared to achieve their successful resolution.

Section C 71
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/112

Page 81



6.12.7 Managers should ensure that:

Potential partners are assessed for the financial viability in the same way as
contractors;

Internal audit roles and responsibilities are documented within the contract
documentation;

Partners and contractors are made aware of the Authorities Cenfidential
WhistleblowingRepeorting and Anti-Counter Fraud & Corruption policies;
Arrangements for ownership after the project has ended are identified and
documented;

Partnership agreements and arrangements are appropriately authorised and
documented and do not impact adversely upon the services provided by the
authority;

Appropriate information is provided to the Cerporate Director-
ReseoureesExecutive Director Corporate Services to enable a note to be
entered into the authority’s statement of accounts concerning material
matters;

There are robust and transparent arrangements for partnership governance
which comply in all material respects with the Council’s own rules on such
matters;

There are sound arrangements for monitoring, reviewing and reporting upon
the activities and performance of the partnership;

They refer to the indemnity and conduct/conflict of interest issues.

6.12.8 Corporate processes for approving, reviewing and reporting upon partnership
arrangements and commitments under these must be complied with.

6.13 Orders for Supply from External Sources

6.13.1 Official orders must be issued for all work, goods or services to be supplied to

the

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

Council except:

where a contract specifies otherwise;
supplies of public utility services;
payments such as rent or rates;
petty cash purchases; or

other exceptions approved by the Corperate-Director—
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services.

6.13.2 Individuals must not use official orders to obtain goods or services for their
private use.

|6.13.3 Official orders to suppliers for goods and services should-must be raised on the
EFins Finance System and promptly issued to the supplier/contractor. This
ensures that the commitment is raised on the financial system and so aids the
control and monitoring of budgets.

Section C

72

| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 82



6.13.4

the-Corporate-Director—Resources-for-approval—\Verbal orders should only be
given in urgent cases, and any such order must be confirmed by an writtenofficial
order and endorsed "Confirmation Order". All authorised signatories together

‘ with any restricting financial limits must be notified to the Corporate Director—

ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services.

6.13.5 Orders must detail the work/goods/services ordered, refer to appropriate terms
and conditions be priced in accordance with estimates, quotations and so on,
and contain the delivery address which must be a Council property. Expenditure
must be coded to the correct detailed budget heading, even if there is no budget
under that heading or it has been committed including those required by statute
or court order.

6.13.6 Before authorising an order the authorising officer must be satisfied that best
value has been achieved, goods/services are appropriate to the service and
genuinely required, appropriate quotations/tenders have been received and that
there is appropriate budget provision. For guidance where there is insufficient
budget provision, refer to the section on Budgets.

6.14 Receiving goods and services

Deliveries

| 6.14.1 Any employee who accepts deliveries of goods must obtain a delivery note,
which should be signed by the supplier and receiver at the time. The Chief
Officer who ordered the supplies must ensure they are checked as to quantity,
quality and compliance with specification at the time of delivery, or as soon as
possible thereafter. Where it is not possible to carry out this check at the time of
the delivery, the employee should ensure this is made clear on the delivery note.

Goods receipting

|6.43ﬁ.82 As soon after delivery as possible, the financial system must be updated
to show that the goods have been received (refer to the Guidance on Separation
of Duties - separation of duties.doc). Receipting goods on the financial system,
ensures that expenditure is accrued. This enables managers to monitor and
control their budgets more effectively. The employee recording goods receipt on
the financial system must be satisfied that the quality, quantity and specification
of the goods/services delivered is as ordered.

|6.156.44  Advance Payments

|6.4415.1 Advance payments should only be used for minor supplies such as
course fees, seminars and publications. Chief Officers should consult the
Corporate-Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services for advice
if in doubt. Where advance payment is made then the whole cost, including
VAT, must be charged to the expenditure code. The Chief Officer must request
an authenticated VAT receipt and send it to the Cerporate Director—
ReseoureesExecutive Director Corporate Services to correct the accounting
entries.

Section C 73
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 83



Section C 74
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 84



6.16 _Funding to Voluntary and Community Sector Commissioning
FrameworkOrgansiations

Funding to voluntary and community sector organisations can be paid in
advance (where appropriate). Performance management arrangements must be
stipulated in each funding agreement in accordance with the Voluntary and
Community Sector Commissioning Framework. Evidence must be obtained for
expenditure incurred.

6.16 Orders from Internal Suppliers
6.16.1 The same principles apply to orders from internal suppliers and they should, as
far as possible, be treated the same as other orders.
6.17 Some Definitions
6.17.1 The following table gives the definition for terms used in this guidance.
Word Definition
Quotation A value for the supply of a service, goods or materials which must be
held for a period of time.
Estimate A value for the supply of a service, goods or materials which may be
varied following the supply. This is appropriate where it is not possible
to give a precise quotation prior to the supply.

6.18 Further Advice and Guidance

6.18.1 The Council employs a number of officers who have responsibilities in a variety
of areas connected with procurement and purchasing. The following table is a
quick reference guide.

Issue Contact Comments
Significant departure | Cerporate Director-
(either actual or ResourcesExecutive Director

potential) from this
guidance

Corporate Services, Beputy
Director —of Finance;

Exchequer & Revenues

Procurement and
purchasing - General
procedures/EU
procedures/joint
procurement and
partnerships

Deputy-Director —of Finance;
Exchequer-& Revenues

Chief Officers must not enter
into any arrangement for
procuring works, goods or
services over the £50,000
tender threshold without
seeking guidance from the
Deputy-Director —of Finance;
Exchequer- & Revenues at
least six months in advance of
the proposed supply. The
Procurement team can Toolkit
on-the-intranet provides
relevant advicse and
guidance, including standard
forms_and; procedure details

Section C

75

| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 85




Issue

Contact

Comments

Advice on control
systems and
administration

Head of Internal Audit Services

The law and legal
opinion and sealing
and retention of
documents

Solicitor to the Council

Printing requirements

Head of Performance &
Corporate-RelationsSenior

Public relations Officer;

Chief Officers must not
commit to purchase external

consulting with the Head-of

Relations-Senior Public
relations Officer

=

Formatted: Font: Italic, Font color:
Red

Information
technology

ProcessesDirector
Technology & Corporate

Programmes

Chief Officers must not
commit to purchase IT
supplies (hardware and
software) without consulting
the Assistant Director-
Business-ProcessesDirector.
Technology & Corporate
Programmes.

Coding, budgets,
insurance, VAT,
general ledger issues
and financial
appraisals

Corporate Director—
ResourcesExecutive Director
Corporate Resources

Section C
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

76

Page 86

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.48
cm, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:
0.63 cm + Tab after: 1.27 cm +
Indent at: 1.27 cm

\
\
\
\

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.75cm,
Hanging: 0.79 cm, Bulleted + Level: 1
+ Aligned at: 0.63 cm + Tab after:
1.27 cm + Indent at: 1.27 cm




PAYMENT OF ACCOUNTS

Introduction

One of the main requirements of a sound system of expenditure control is that at
any point in time, a budget holder knows:

(a) what has been ordered, including the likely cost;
(b) what has been received, and is therefore due for payment; and
(c) what has been paid.

~ ~

Small transactions can be dealt with from petty cash (see the section on Cash
Advances, etc), and in some situations, payments can be made via direct debit
or other electronic means — the Corperate Director—ResourcesExecutive
Director Corporate Services will advise on these processes. This section of the
guidance deals with the most common form of payment, i.e. payment by BACS
or cheque drawn on the Council’s bank account.

All officers must encourage suppliers of goods and services to receive payment
by BACs — this is the most economical means for the authority.

Corporate credit cards can be used in the day to day business of the Authority
and are intended to facilitate transactions only in limited circumstances.
Corporate credit cards are to be used chiefly to provide an alternative means of
sourcing and paying for goods/services in connection with official business of the

Authority, vircretbemebseoaislotesuashoo s tnpe s barcommnlional snomne
Corporate-creditcardsand may be used for purchases to obtain benefit of
dlscount payment via the Internet and—feptheupwehaseueﬁgeedswhereuﬂ—r&net

The Corporate Credit Card Procedures must be followed..

All requests for direct debits against the authority’s bank account should be
made via the Accountancy section.

Section C 77
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 87



7.2
| 7.2.1

722

7.2.3

| 7.2.4

7.3

7.31

7.3.2

7.3.3

7.32

Security and Good Practice

The Council’s creditor payment system requires-is set up so that the 3 stages of
order, goods receipt and payment to be separately processed with password
input and authorisation controls in line with the appendix on Separation of Duties.
Passwords are often used in place of actual initials and signatures and must not
be made known to any other person. (See also the Information Security

Policy.doc).
Each Chief Officer must inform the Corporate Director-ResourcesExecutive

Director Corporate Services, in writing, of the names of employees permitted to
undertake each of the -stages, to input orders, authorise orders and confirm

goods receipt. The Manager must promptly notify the Corporate Director—
ResoureesExecutive Director Corporate Services of any changes, for example,

resignations. The Cerporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate

Services should annually prompt each Chief Officer to review the named
employees.

Chief Officers may also wish to limit the values input or authorised by some
employees, and/or restrict the expenditure codes which some employees can
access. This information should also be passed to the Cerpeorate Director-
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services.

The Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services must

ensure that the payments system:

(a) conforms with the controls contained in the Appendix on Separation of
Duties;
and

(b) checks budget availability-and-acts-inine-with-the-Chief Officer’s-wishes.

Invoice Processing

Each Chief Officer must ensure that the receipt of any service, material or item of
goods is promptly recorded on the payment system, and that, where applicable,
stock records and inventories are updated_immediately.

Each Chief Officer must ensure that invoices received are promptly passed to
Corporate Resources-Services Directorate for processing. Any disputed invoices
should be notified to the Cerperate-Executive Director Corporate Services—
Resources immediately to aid performance monitoring.

Before any order is goods receipted, the autheriser—officer receiving the
goods/services must satisfy him/herself that the payment is properly due, and
that_the work, goods or services have been received and/or carried out in
accordance with the order/contract/schedule of rates and this has been
evidenced.

Officers must ensure that in respect of charges for gas, electricity, water, etc.

adequate records are be maintained to ensure the charges are correct and the
following checks are undertaken:
i) any standing charges are correct,

ii) consumption is charged on the correct tariff,

iii) _ that the consumption recorded is reasonable in light of current and
previous readings;

Section C 78
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 88



7.3.3 Officers should ensure that all credit notes are immediately claimed against
invoices or a cheque reimbursement should be requested:

811 <- — — 7| Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm,
Hanging: 1.25 cm, Outline numbered
+ Level: 3 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,
... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at: 0 cm + Tab after: 1.51 cm
+ Indent at: 1.51 cm, Tab stops: 1.25

f)y 7.3.3 b} The Accountancy section will check the payee, prices, ™ Listtab+ Notat 1.51 cm
quantities, trade discounts, other allowances, credits and tax are correct;
not previously paid, properly incurred and within the budget provision.
They will also check any copy/facsimile invoices to ensure that they have
not been previously paid and that payments are not made against
suppliers’ statement of accounts.

7.3.4d———The Accountancy section will ensure that where the invoice includes VAT,
it is correctly calculated. Where a VAT invoice is not supplied, the full cost

of the invoice including the VAT must be charged to the budget code.

The Chief Officer must ensure that an authenticated VAT receipt_is
subsequentlyis obtained to support this payment and-is passed to the
GCorperate—Director—ReseureesAccountancy section immediately on

receipt so that the accounting entry can be adjusted;

hipayments-are-not-made-against-suppliers-statement-of accounts. - {Formatted: Bullets and Numbering ]

73:37.34 The controls over invoice processing Fhis also applies to work done on
our behalf by partners.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm,
Hanging: 1.25 cm, Outline numbered
+ Level: 3 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,
... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Amendments \ | Aligned at: 0 cm + Tab after: 1.51 cm
. . . . L \ | + Indent at: 1.51 cm, Tab stops: 1.25
7.3.6 VAT invoices must not be amended. If an incorrect VAT invoice is ' |_cm, List tab + Not at 1.51 cm
received, the supplier must be asked to send: {Formaued Bullets and Numbering

(a) acorrected invoice, or
(b) acredit note.

Section C 79
Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 89



7.3.7 Any amendment to a non-VAT invoice must be made in ink and initialled by the
officer making it, stating reasons briefly where they are not self-evident.

Year End

7.3.8 Each Chief Officer must ensure that where goods and services (goods,
materials, services and works, including electricity, gas water etc) have been
received by 31% March, that commitment orders and goods receipt notes have
been processed within the financial system.

7.3.9 Each Chief Officer must, as soon as possible after 31%' March and not later than
15" April in each year notify the Cerporate Director— ResourcesExecutive
Director Corporate Services of all outstanding expenditure relating to the
previous financial year. Outstanding expenditure consists of the value of all
goods, materials, services and works (including electricity, gas, water etc.) that
has been received at 31 March, but has not yet been paid.

7.4 Electronic Payment Mechanisms

7.4.1 Payments to suppliers ean-must be completed by BACs transfer—Fhe-authority
is-actively-encouraging-this-method-of payment, as it is the most cost effective

payment method. Payments will be made by cheques in exceptional
circumstances.

7.4.2 Information relating to suppliers bank details should be directed to the Corporate
Director-—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services.

Section C 80
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 90



8. PAYMENT OF SALARIES AND ALLOWANCES

8.1. Salaries

8438.1.1  Salaries and other reimbursements are paid by the Corporate Director—
Resourees Director Transformation & Corporate Performance on behalf of each
Chief Officer. The Assistant-Chief-ExecutiveDirector Transformation & Corporate
Performance is responsible for maintaining the establishment list of the Authority,
and for-telling-the- Corporate Director—Resources-for the details of standing
payments to make. All forms of payment must conform with Council policy and
Chief Officers should consult with the Assistant-Chief ExecutiveDirector
Transformation & Corporate Performance if change is sought.

8448.1.2 ltis the responsibility of Chief Officers to ensure that adequate and
effective systems and procedures are operated so that:

a) payments are only authorised to bona fide employees;

b) payments are only made where there is a valid entitlement;

c) conditions and contracts of employment are correctly applied;

d) employees names listed on the payroll are checked at regular
intervals to verify accuracy and completeness.

8-4:58.1.3  Each Chief Officer must tell the Assistant-Chief-ExecutiveDirector
Transformation & Corporate Performance immediately of any changes to his/her
employees or the basis upon which they are employed. The Chief Officer is
accountable for any losses to the Council or hardships incurred by an employee
resulting from a failure to notify changes promptly.

Examples are:
i. appointments, resignations, dismissals, suspensions, secondments and
transfers;
ii. sickness and other absences apart from approved leave with pay;
iii. changes in pay etc, other than normal increments and general pay
awards.
iv.  Any changes that may affect pensions of employees/former employees.

8-468.1.4  Chief Officers must ensure that all forms used to generate payments are

either as supplied by the Corporate-Director—ReseourcesDirector

Transformation & Corporate Performance or are reviewed and sent annually for
approval to the Cerporate Director—ResourcesDirector Transformation &
Corporate Performance. They must ensure that completed forms are checked,
calculations confirmed and payments properly authorised. Otherwise payment
will not be made.

84+78.1.5 In exceptional circumstances, for example, if likely to suffer severe
hardship, an employee may request his/her Chief Officer for an advance of
salary. The Chief Officer may wish to seek advice from the Assistant-Chief
ExecutiveDirector Transformation & Corporate Performance or Corporate
Director-ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services. If the request is

supported, the Chief Officer should ask the Cerperate-Director—
ResourcesDirector Transformation & Corporate Performance to make the

Section C 81
Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 91



arrangements. The Corporate Director—ResourcesDirector Transformation &

Corporate Performance should ensure that any advance is recovered from the
next payment due.

| 84.88.1.6 A Chief Officer may certify payment of overtime to officers on spinal
column point 35 and above only where prior written approval is obtained from a
member of the Corporate Management Team. This would normally be in
exceptional circumstances for work of a specific nature such as in covering for a
long-term vacancy.

| 8.1.7 <~ -~ | Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm,
Hanging: 1.25 cm, Tab stops: 1.25
cm, Left + Not at 2.54 cm

Section C 82
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 92



| 8-4.7Chief Officers may request additional payments such as honoraria for additional - - { Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

responsibility incurred by employees. These must be approved by the Chief
Executive for a period of up to six months who should inform the Cerporate
Director—ReseourcesDirector Transformation & Corporate Performance of the
basis for such payments.

All payroll transactions should be processed through the payroll system. Chief
Officers should give careful consideration to the employment status of
individuals employed on a self-employed consultant or subcontract basis. All

such matters should be referred the Corporate Director-—RescurcesDirector

Transformation & Corporate Performance for guidance.

8-498.1.9  The Cerporate Director—ReseoureesDirector Transformation & Corporate | Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm,

8.2

| 8.2.1

8.2.2

8.2.3

8.24

Performance -must be notified of details of any employee benefits in kind, to . | Hanging: 1.25 cm, Tab stops: 1.25

cm, Left + Not at 2.54 cm
enable full and complete reporting within the income tax self assessment system.\{Forma P T—r—

Allowances and Expense Claims

Employees should-must submit expense claims in the pay period after which
they were incurred in order to assist budget monitoring. Because of the difficulty
in verifying old claims, claims more than feurfour pay periods old, will not be
considered unless approval is made by a-Corporatethe Director Transformation
& Corporate Performance-Director or the Chief-ExecutiveExecutive Director
Corporate Services._—Claims that do not meet pay deadlines (as advised by the
Director Transformation & Corporate PerformanceCerporate Director—
Resources) may not be paid until the following pay period. All car allowance
claims must be supported with a VAT invoice for the fuel used.

Managers must only authorise claims they can certify as being correct —
Journeys were authorised, expenses necessarily incurred and claims are
properly payable by the Council. The accuracy of any mileage claimed and any
calculations sheuld-must be checked._Therefore, it is essential that all car
allowance claim forms must show details of the trip undertaken, the duties
carried out, both the opening and closing odometer readings and the deduction
of any “ordinary commuting miles”(if applicable). Managers should-must also
ensure that officers claiming both casual and essential allowances have
appropriate and up to date documents to include a valid driving licence,
certificate of motor insurance that covers business use, valid MOT and vehicle
registration document.

Chief Officers should ensure that the most appropriate means of travel in terms
of cost and benefit is used. For example, long journeys may be better
undertaken by train, for example, to reduce the length of the working day or allow
the employee to work during the journey. (see guidance in Subsistence Policy).

Where subsistence and other associated travel expenses are claimed, they must
be supported by VAT receipts. The Council will not reimburse any expenditure
relating to alcohol. Guidance on subsistence rates that can be claimed can be
found in the Subsistence Policy which is appended to this guidance. The
maximum limits will be updated on an annual basis in line with the RPI.

Section C 83
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 93



‘ 8.25

8.2.6

8.3

8.3.1

8.3.2

8.3.3

Claims relating to Post Entry Training must be sent to the Assistant-Chief
ExeeutiveDirector Transformation & Corporate Performance to authorise the
claim. The Chief Officer must ensure the scheme is authorised and an
agreement has been signed by the employee. Where the scheme provides for
the repayment of expenses, the Assistant-Chief-ExecutiveDirector
Transformation & Corporate Performance must arrange recovery of any sums
due before the employee leaves. The Organisational Development Unit will
supply guidance on amounts that can be claimed on an annual basis.

Personal expenses incurred in entertaining guests will not be reimbursed without

the prior approval of the Ceorperate Director-ReseurcesExecutive Director

Corporate Services.

Members Allowances

The Legal-&Demeocratic-Services-ManagerSolicitor to the Council must check
and certify claims submitted by Members. He/she must give the Cerperate

Director—ReseureesDirector Transformation & Corporate Performance details
of regular payments, such as responsibility allowances, and must immediately
notify any changes. Expenses claims must be submitted monthly to aid budget
monitoring. Expenses claim forms must be completed in full e.g. detailing
journeys made, opening and closing milometer readings_and any other expenses
claimed. Claims can only be made for approved duties as defined in the
Constitution. All car allowance claims must be supported with a VAT invoice for
the fuel used. Claims in excess of four-four months will not be considered
unless approved by a-the Executive Director Corporate Services or the Chief
Executive.

Members wishing to attend a conference, etc must advise the Legat-&

DemeeFatleSemees—ManageFSollcnor to the Councﬂewele#ani—@hef—@#}eer—

consultatlon W|th the Cabinet if necessary, may approve the pavment of the cost
of attendance at Conferences and training events and the payment of travelling,
subsistence and attendance allowance(s) in the rates prescribed by the

Secretarv of State —Membe#s—e*penseuelams—sheuid—eemply—m%h—@DQM

Wherever possible the Chief Officer should arrange overnight conference
accommodation on behalf of Members and ensure invoices are sent direct to the
Council.

Section C 84
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 94



9.
9.1

CASH ADVANCES, CASH FLOATS AND PETTY CASH

Purpose

9.1.1 Small amounts of cash currently need to be held in service units to:

a) provide a cash float in tills;

b) pay minor expenses.

9.2 Processes

9.2.1 A Chief Officer needing a cash advance must send a written request to the

Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services. The

manager receiving the cash advance must sign for the receipt of all cash
advances. A copy of the receipt must be forwarded to the Finance-Exchegquer&
Revenues section for accounting purposes. He/she is responsible for the
security of the cash and may be held responsible for making good any
shortages.

9.2.2 Only minor items of expenditure may be paid out of petty cash. Petty cash must

not be used to carry out recurring purchases of a similar nature. Chief Officers
must not authorise any individual payment over £100 without the agreement of
the Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services.
Where reimbursement of expenditure exceeds £100, this should be processed
through the payroll system. Claims for expenses should be completed using the
expenses claim form. VAT receipts for all expenses must be attached.
Expenses will be reimbursed through the Payroll system with salary payments.

9.2.3 Payments out of petty cash must be supported by a receipt or other voucher.

Wherever possible a VAT receipt should be obtained. Income received must not
be paid into a petty cash account.

9.2.4 The Chief Officer must keep full records of all transactions. Records must be

kept fully up-to-date, showing the current balance in the account. The
expenditure details and receipts/vouchers must be sent to the Cerporate Director
—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services with the claim for
reimbursement.

9.2.5 The Chief Officer must ensure that the balance is checked at least monthly by an

officer without other responsibilities for petty cash. All checks made should be
evidenced. Any discrepancies must be investigated and reported as necessary.

Section C 85
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 95

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm,

Hanging: 1.25 cm, Outline numbered
+ Level: 3 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,

... + Start at: 2 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at: 0 cm + Tab after: 1.51 cm
+ Indent at: 1.51 cm, Tab stops: Not
\\ at 1.51 cm

{Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

)




9.2.6 At 31 March each year the officer carrying out the check must send written

confirmation to the Cerpeorate-Director-—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate

Services of the balance held and an explanation of any discrepancy.

9.2.7 No float should be used to cash personal cheques or make personal loans. The
only payments in to the account are for the reimbursement of the float and any
change relating to purchase where an advance has been made.

9.2.8 Any transfers of floats between officers should be evidenced by signature of both
parties involved and a copy retained by the transferor. A copy should be sent to

the Cerporate Director-ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services to

ensure that records remain up to date.

10. INCOME, CHARGING AND DEBTS
10.1 Fees and Charges

10.1.1 Chief Officers must ensure that all fees and charges are authorised by Council,
either through approving each individual charge, or through approving a
charging policy. Any policy must specify the charges it relates to and exactly
how charges will be set.

10.1.2 Chief Officers must ensure that all relevant charges are clearly displayed at
service payment points. Employees must charge all people using the service
the approved amounts.

10.1.3 All VAT due should be correctly identified and accounted for.
10.2 Receiving Payment

10.2.1 The Council accepts payment by eash; cheque, debit card, and-credit card and
cash (cash is only accepted at certain locations). Officers handling payments
must follow the procedures below and any local procedures, including those
needed for computerised systems. They must complete all records fully and
accurately at the time. Chief Officers must ensure adequate local procedures
are in place at all stages, having sought necessary advice from the Cerperate
Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services.

10.2.2 Ideally, subject to adequate controls, income should be received in advance or
at the time of service provision.

10.2.3 Where possible, a forged note detector should be used.
10.2.4 Cash drawers should be closed in between transactions.

10.2.5 Supervisory keys for cash registers should be held by supervising officer and
not by cashiers.

10.2.6 All voids, refunds and exceptions should be reviewed by the supervising officer
and this review should be evidenced.

Section C 86
Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 96



All Methods

10.2.7 The officer must immediately issue an official receipt or ticket. Change may
only be given for payment by cash.

10.2.8 All official receipts should be properly controlled and accounted for.

10.2.9 All official receipts should be in a format approved by the Corporate Director-
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services

10.2.10 Transfers of cash between staff must be evidenced by signature of both staff
involved and a copy retained by the transferor.

Cheque Payment Against An Invoice/Account

10.2.11 The officer must ensure the cheque is:
a) made payable to “Tamworth Borough Council” (and should be crossed
account payee only);
b) dated correctly;
c) the correct amount;
d) signed,
and the officer must:

e) record on the back of the cheque the receipt number (and location if
necessary) and payment/invoice reference.

Section C 87
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 97



Cheque — Other Payment

10.2.12 As well as the above requirements the officer must ensure:
a) the cheque is signed at the counter;

b) acheque card is presented with
e the same signature,
e the same code number as the cheque,
e avalid expiry date,
¢ a limit sufficient to cover the cheque;
and the officer must:

c) record the card number on the back of the cheque.

Debit and Credit Cards

10.2.13 For payments in person the officer must ensure:
a) the card has not expired,;
b) the receipt signature matches the card signature;

c) the card is not on a current stop listing (or if so, follow the
instructions with the listing);

d) the receipt number is recorded against the transaction;
e) the credit card surcharge is recovered in line with approved policy

10.2.14 For telephone payments the officer must ensure:

a) that payments are processed at the time of call;
b) all relevant security checks are completed.

10.3 Postal Payments

10.3.1 All post is to be opened centrally in the designated post room. Exceptions to
this include private and confidential post and where it is deemed that post
should not be opened.

10.3.2 Post must only be opened when two officers are present.

10.3.3 All income received through the post should be recorded immediately on to the

cash receipting system. ChiefOfficers-must-ensure-adequate post-opening

Section C 88
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 98



Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.5 cm,

First line: 0 cm, Numbered + Level: 1

+ Numbering Style: a, b, ¢, ... + Start

at: 3 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0

c¢m + Tab after: 1.27 cm + Indent at:
. 1.27 cm

{Formatted: Bullets and Numbering ]

Section C 89
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 99



10.4 Cashing-Up Procedures

10.4.1 At each payment point, the Chief Officer must ensure there are adequate daily
cashing-up procedures. The two stages should be carried out by two different
employees. The cashier should total the contents of the till and by deducting
the cash float, find out the day’s takings. A second officer should confirm the
actual cash takings with the total takings recorded on the receipts given out.
Signatures of both officers involved should be recorded on the paying in slip.
The local supervisor must immediately investigate any material discrepancies
and advise the Chief Officer, the Cerporate-Director—ResourcesExecutive
Director Corporate -andServices and the Head of Internal Audit Services). All
discrepancies must be recorded in a cashiers overs/unders book, signed daily
by the supervisor.

10.4.2 Small overs/unders balances up to £5 may be held locally, at the discretion of
the Chief Officer. Any balance over £5 should be banked.

10.5 Depositing Money
10.5.1 All money received must be banked direct. Employees must follow guidance

| from the Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services

on cash collection, control, deposit and records.

10.5.2 Chief Officers/employees must ensure that all money received (other than
permitted over/unders balances) is deposited in full, without anything being
deducted. For example cash from a till must never be used to meet petty cash
expenses or to top-up petty cash.

10.5.3 If there is a need to depart from this rule, the Chief Officer must get the written
authorisation of the Cerporate-Director-—ResourcesExecutive Director

Corporate Services.

10.5.4 Takings should be banked daily. Where this is not practicable Chief Officers
may agree an alternative arrangement with the Cerporate Director—
ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services, provided:

a) takings are banked at least weekly; and

b) maximum cash holdings specified by the Ceorporate—Director—

ResourcesExecutive  Director Corporate  Services (for insurance
purposes) are not exceeded.

10.5.5 The cashier must prepare a daily cash summary/return and attach relevant till
readings or equivalent. The return must detail the amount of cash and the
amount in cheques. A supervising officer must verify this return.

10.5.6 Chief Officers must in any event ensure maximum cash holdings are not
exceeded.

10.5.7 The cashier must certify the paying in slip, which should be checked and
evidenced by a supervising officer.

Section C 90
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 100



10.5.8 Where banking bags are used, seals and the authority’s details should be
recorded in accordance with the collection company’s procedures.

Section C 91
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 101



10.6 Money Laundering

10.6.1 Money laundering is the term used for a number of offences involving the
proceeds of crime and terrorist funds. The following acts constitute the act
of money laundering:

e Concealing, disguising, converting, transferring or removing criminal
property from England and Wales, or from Scotland, or from
Northern Ireland;

¢ Becoming concerned in an arrangement in which someone
knowingly or suspects facilitates the acquisition, retention, use or
control of criminal property by or on behalf of another person;

e Acquiring, using or possessing criminal property.

10.6.2 Although the term “money laundering” is generally used when describing
the activities of organised crime — for which the legislation and regulations
were first and foremost introduced — to most people who are likely to come
across it or be affected by it, it involves a suspicion that someone they
know, or know of, is benefiting financially from dishonest activities.

10.6.3 A likely indicator that money laundering may be taking place is the deposit
of large amounts of cash. The limit on a payment made by cash is £1,000.
Any attempt to pay above this amount should be reported to the Solicitor to
the Council.

10.6.4 The Council will do all it can to prevent, wherever possible, the
organisation and its staff from being exposed to money laundering to
identify potential areas where it may occur, and to comply with all legal and
regulatory requirements, especially with regard to the reporting of actual or
suspected cases. However, it is every member of staff's responsibility to
be vigilant.

10.6.5 The Solicitor to the Council is the nominated officer to act as the Council's
Money Laundering Reporting Officer.

10.6.6 If a case of money laundering is suspected, the Solicitor to the Council
should be consulted immediately.

10.7 Invoices, Debtors and Other Sums Due

10.7.1 ltis the responsibility of each Service Unit to ensure that income for services
etc is received prior to the service being completed. Where payment in
advance is not possible, all necessary information in order to raise an account
should be obtained from the customer prior to the provision of the service,
except where statute dictates otherwise.

10.7.2 All Service Units must maintain a record of why the account has been raised.
All accounts must be accurately created either prior to the service being
delivered or, in the case of post-service charging, within 5 working days of the
delivery of the service. Where possible, debtor accounts should not be raised
for less than £100 in accordance with the Corporate Credit Policy.

Section C 92
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 102



10.7.3 It is essential that all accounts issued are timely; therefore, accounts raised
after the service has been completed should be raised within five working days.

10.7.4 Timescales for the recovery process are detailed in the Corporate Credit Policy.

10.7.5 At the start of each financial year, Chief Officers must promptly supply
information to the Corporate Director-ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate

Services on amounts due where a debtors account has not yet been raised for
the previous financial year within the required deadlines.

Credit Policy

10.7.6 Cabinet on 25 April 2007 approved a new Corporate Credit Policy (see
Appendix). Chief Officers must ensure appropriate local guidance is in place
and employees must follow the Policy and the local guidance.

10.8 Debt Write-Off

10.8.1 Debts may only be written-off in line with the appropriate policy — e.g. the
Corporate Credit Policy.

10.8.2 Except where an approved policy dictates otherwise, the following authorisations
are needed to write-off debt:

Authority Limit
Chief Officer up to £5,000

(or authorised delegated officer)

Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services
£5,001 - £10,000

Cabinet over £10,000

Note that these limits apply to each transaction.

All write-offs should be completed with adherence to the Accounts & Audit
Regulations 20062011.

An annual report of write offs between £5,001 and £10,000 should be submitted
to Council for information.

11. ASSETS AND EQUIPMENT

An up to date asset register is a pre requisite for proper fixed asset accounting
and sound asset management. Assets need to be valued in accordance with the
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom:
(CIPFA/LASAAC based on International Financial Reporting Standards). Any
assets purchased with a value of over £10,000 should be notified in writing to the

Corporate Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services so that

they can be added to the asset register.

11.1 Responsibilities

Section C 93
Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 103



11.1.1

11.1.2

11.1.3

11.1.4

11.2

11.2.1

11.2.2

11.3

Each Chief Officer is responsible for the records, use and storage of all assets
and equipment within their control and/or used in their service delivery. Each
Chief Officer must ensure that a physical check of all significant assets and
equipment is undertaken on at least an annual basis to confirm their location and
condition and to ensure that inventory records are accurate. This check should
be evidenced.

Each Chief Officer must ensure that inventory records are maintained for all
assets and equipment in any format specified by the Cerperate Director-
ReseourecesExecutive Director Corporate Services, to ensure the details shown
below are included in each case and that all appropriate items are clearly and
securely marked.

Inventory details:

o Description

e Purchase date

e Purchase price

e Serial number (if applicable)
o Asset number (if applicable)
e Condition

o Date of disposal

Chief Officers should ensure that contingency plans for the security of assets
and continuity of service in the event of a disaster or system failure are in place.

In order to comply with the International Financial Reporting Standards,
managers are required to consult on any rentals, leases, use of assets to or
from the authority, prior to entering into an agreement with the Cerpeorate
Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services, especially where
financial/operating leases are entered into as more advantageous financing
could be sort.

Scope

All furniture, fittings, equipment and plant and machinery with an original and
individual value of £50 or more should be included, with the sole exception of
Information Technology (I.T.) hardware and software which must be recorded
by the Assistant Director—Business-ProcessesDirector, Technology &
Corporate Programmes. Chief Officers should consider whether it is
appropriate to include other items of a portable and desirable nature which may
have a lower value.

Any change in the use or location of any |.T. hardware or software must be
completed by the BusinessProcess-UnitTechnology & Corporate Programmes
Service who will update their records accordingly.

Use

Section C 94
Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 104



11.3.1 Items are only to be used on Council business and in line with accepted
procedures and manufacturers instructions, and must not be removed without
the specific approval of the Chief Officers.

Section C 95
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 105



11.4

11.4.1

11.4.2

11.4.3

11.4.5

11.4.6

Disposal

The disposal of all surplus items must be in line with the following guidelines
which should be applied by:

a) the Assistant-Director of Business-ProcessesTechnology & Corporate
Programmes for all IT equipment;

b) the Chief Officer for all other items;

c) the Corpeorate Director—ReseourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services

for all other items with a value in excess of £1,000.

Each Chief Officer must record the disposal details on the inventory records
and must maintain adequate records such as receipts and formal bids.
Disposals should be notified to the Corperate Director—ResourcesExecutive
Director Corporate Services to ensure that appropriate accounting entries are
made to remove the value of disposed assets from the authority’s records and
to include the sale proceeds if appropriate.

Disposal Guidelines

A disposal policy is in place for the disposal of land and property (Asset
Disposal Policy). The Asset Disposal Policy must be followed in these
instances.

The disposal of any other surplus assets or equipment should be arranged in
the manner most useful to the Council, taking into account the value, condition
and usefulness of the item. Further guidance is appended.

AllIT equipment must be passed to the Business-Process-UnitTechnology &
Corporate Programmes Service for disposal to ensure that all information
retained on disk drive is deleted in accordance with the Data Protection Act
1998.

Particular care must be taken to ensure the Council is not exposed to risk, for
example by passing an unsafe item to another body. Any internal sale must be
scrupulously fair and open. The guide to the disposal of assets (excluding land
and buildings) is appended to this guidance. Advice is available from the Head
of Internal Audit Services or Deputy Director —Assets & Environment.

12. STOCKS AND STORES

12.1 Responsibilities

12.1.1 The aim of controls over stocks and stores is to ensure:
a) necessary materials are available when they are needed;
b) purchase costs are minimised;
c) stock holding costs are minimised;

Section C 96

Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 106



d)  waste and other loss is minimised

dy—— “ {Formatted: Bullets and Numbering }

Section C 97
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 107



424-2e) _ To achieve this Chief Officers must ensure: <~ - - { Formatted: Bullets and Numbering |

a) the correct quantities are purchased at the correct times (to gain discounts
and avoid delivery and administration costs);

b) excessive levels are not held (taking account of shelf life, storage costs
and service needs);

c) stocks are held and handled securely;

d) adequate records are maintained including:
i) purchases and additions
i) issues
i)  write-offs.

| 12.1.3 The CorporateDirector—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services can
advise on these matters, particularly on the financial records.

12.1.4 Chief Officers must also ensure that movements of stores are properly
authorised and documented and that the records note the employee(s) involved
in the process. The Head of Internal Audit Services can advise on these
aspects.

12.2 Stocktaking

12.2.1 All stocks must be checked at least once a year at the end of the financial year
in order to compare actual levels to recorded levels and Chief Officers should
consider more frequent checks of valuable, desirable and portable items.
Large stores, such as those held at the depots, could achieve this by an agreed
process of rolling stocktakes. The Head of Internal Audit Services will advise if
necessary.

12.2.2 Stocktakes must be monitored and checked by employees who are
independent of the storekeeping roles. This checking role must include the
comparison of actual stocks to the recorded levels.

12.2.3 All discrepancies should be investigated by the line manager. Any material
discrepancies (over £100 or desirable commodities) should be reported to the
| Corporate-Director—ResourcesExecutive Director Corporate Services who will
advise on the appropriate procedures to follow, and who may inform the Head

of Internal Audit Services of the facts.

12.3 Obsolete and Unserviceable Stock

12.3.1 The disposal of stocks and stores should be in line with the guidance contained
in the section on Assets and Equipment.

12.3.2 Obsolete/damaged stock should be written off prior to year-end and should not
be included in year-end stock balances.

12.4 Intellectual Property

12.4.1 Intellectual property is a generic term that includes inventions and writing. If
these are created by the employee during the course of employment, then,

Section C 98
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 108



as a general rule, they belong to the employer, not the employee. Various
acts of Parliament cover different types of intellectual property.

12.4.2 Certain activities undertaken within the authority may give rise to items that
may be patentable, for example, software development. These items are
collectively known as intellectual property.

12.4.3 Chief Officers must ensure that controls are in place to ensure that staff do
not carry out private work in council time and that staff are aware of an
employer’s rights with regard to intellectual property.

13 SECURITY

| 13.1 Al staff sheuld-must wear their ID pass at all times within Council
establishments. Identification should be requested for all visitors to council
establishments. Where applicable, visitors must sign the visitors book both on
entry and exit of the building. If appropriate, the visitor must be provided with an
identification badge which must be returned on departure. The person issuing
the badge should ensure that the badge is returned.

13.2 All temporary identification badges should be retained securely.

13.3 All building alarms should be linked to Homelink, the police station or directly to
the alarm company. Managers should ensure that these links are maintained.

13.4 The knowledge of alarm codes should be restricted to relevant staff. Each
member of staff must have their own ID for the alarm. If a member of staff
leaves the authority, their ID should be deleted from the system.

13.5 Alarm usage reports should be generated on a regular basis. These reports
should reviewed by management who must evidence this review.

13.6 All cash handling areas should be secured. All access to cash areas should be
locked and access restricted to authorised staff.

13.7 Safes should be located out of site of the public and should be locked at all
times. Access to safes must be restricted to authorised personnel. Each
member of staff needing access to the safe must be issued with a key. The
issue of safe keys should be documented detailing the date issued and the
holder. The holder must sign for the receipt of the key. Safe keys must not be
retained on the premises overnight. Retention of safe keys on unoccupied
premises renders the insurance invalid.

13.8 Any transfer of keys between staff should be recorded. On termination or
transfer of employment, all keys issued to that member of staff should be handed
back to the line manager. The key register should be updated to reflect the hand
over.

13.9 Managers are responsible for ensuring that the cash limit for the safe is not
exceeded.

13.10 Where a cash collection company is used, managers are responsible for
ensuring that the names and signatures of the cash collection staff are up to
date.

Section C 99
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 109



13.11 The guidance on physical and environmental security contained within the
Information Security Policy gives more guidance.

Section C 100
| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 110



14 DATA QUALITY

14.1 All employees have a responsibility for ensuring the information we process is
accurate and up to date. The Data Quality Policy addresses this.

14.2 The consequence of poor quality of data impacts not only the way the council
works, but also anyone who conducts their business with us.

14.3 Data Quality Standards possess six essential characteristics, these are:

Section C

Completeness — Data quality systems should have in place monitoring
to ensure that no data is missing, incomplete or invalid records
included.

Accurate — Data should be accurate for the purpose it is intended, and
to be captured as close to the source as possible.

Validity — Data should be compliant with requirements and within the
parameters laid down in any criteria.

Reliability — Data should be consistent across all collection points and
over time. Appropriate controls should be in place to check
outputs/inputs, sampling and is compliant with the criteria set out.
Timeliness — Data should be captured as soon as possible, and
available to recipients within the agreed timeframe.

Relevance — Data captured should be relevant to the purpose for
which it is used. Reviews need to take place to ensure the quality
reflects any changing needs.

101

| Revised March-Sept 20142 — Approved A & G 3125/0310/142

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 112



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEé\genda Item 6

25" OCTOBER 2012

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES

RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT

EXEMPT INFORMATION

None

PURPOSE

To report on the Risk Management process and progress to date for the current financial
year.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Committee approves:
1. The Risk Management Policy & Strategy, and

2. The Corporate Risk Register

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

One of the functions of the Audit & Governance Committee is to monitor the
effectiveness of the authority’s risk management arrangements, including the actions
taken to manage risks and to receive regular reports on risk management.

The Risk Management Policy and Strategy has been reviewed and updated. Only
minor changes have been made. The revised version is attached at Appendix 1 for
this Committee’s approval.

Work completed this financial year includes the complete review of the Corporate
Risk Register. The Corporate Risk Register is reviewed by Corporate Management
Team (CMT) on a quarterly basis. Corporate risks have been assigned to relevant
members of the Corporate Management Team. The Corporate Risk Register is
attached for information at Appendix 2.

Work is currently being completed by Internal Audit as part of their planned work to
ensure that the operational risk register entries are aligned to the corporate risks.
This will also identify areas where operational risk registers need to be updated to
ensure that operationally, the corporate risks are managed.

Page 113



RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

None

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

None

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

None

REPORT AUTHOR

Angela Struthers ex 234

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

None
APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Risk Management Policy & Strategy
Appendix 2 — Corporate Risk Register

Page 114



Appendix 1

- {Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial

L kf;\ - {Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial

I:;ln;) TS

h ‘[ Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial

Tamuorth

Borough Council ”ﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁc

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY AND STRATEGY, - { Formatted:

Font: Arial

Document Status: Final

Originator: A Struthers

Updated: A Struthers

Owner: Executive Director Corporate Services, _ - {Formatted

1 Font: (Default) Arial

Version: 01.01.02, - {Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial

Date: 18/9/12 - - { Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial

- {Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial

A

Approved by Audit & Governance Committee

- - {Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial

== ‘[Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial

| Date April-20100ctober 2012

Page 115



Document Location

A o — {Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

This document is held by Tamworth Borough Council, and the document owner is John Wheatley,

Executive Director - Corporate —Services, | = {Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Printed documents may be obsolete. An electronic copy will be available on Tamworth Borough
Councils Intranet. Please check for current version before using.

Revision History

o

Revision Date Version Control Summary of changes
April 2010, 1.01.01 ___ { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial
18/09/12, 1.01.02 Scheduled review, -~ {Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial
o~ . ‘[ Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial
{Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial
Approvals
Name Title Approved
Audit & Governance Committee Approval
Committee
CMT Group Approval
|| John Wheatley, | Executive Director Corporate Services, | | ___ -~ { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial
|| Angela Struthers Head of Internal Audit Services Yes N ‘[Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Document Review Plans

This document is subject to a scheduled annual review. Updates shall be made in accordance
with business requirements and changes and will be with agreement with the document owner.

Distribution

The document will be available on the Intranet and the website.

| Date April-20100ctober 2012

Page 116



Tam

Corporate
Objectives

- { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial ]
B { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial ]

| Date April-20100ctober 2012

Page 117



Contents
Page
Number

Risk Management Statement 1
Protocol Objectves o2 __ - { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial |
Risk Management Strategy 213
Risk Management Organisation 3/4/5
Arrangements 5
Risk Management Tools 516
Review of Risk Management 6
Reporting Lines 7

| Date April-20100ctober 2012

Page 118



Tamworth Borough Council — Ap#i-2646 October 2012

-«

Risk Management Policy Statement

Statement by the Council Leader and Chief Executive
The Council is committed to the culture of Risk Management ensuring that its reputation is not tarnished
by an unforeseen event nor is it financially or operationally affected by the occurrence.
It recognises that: -
» Management has the responsibility to plan and systematically approach, the
identification, evaluation, and control of risk
understood and appropriately managed
» Al Managers and Team Leaders have responsibility for the effective control of
risk utilising the support training and resources provided by the Council
» The responsibility for insurable losses is management's, not that of an
insurance company. Insurance is not a substitute for the management of risk
» The need to integrate Risk Management into the culture of the Council.

Risk Management objectives for Tamworth Borough Council are :

» To safeguard the public, members and employees and to protect the Authority’s reputation and
assets;

» To manage risks in accordance with best practice and ensure risk management is integrated into
the culture of Tamworth Borough Council and all those connected with it.

» To identify and take advantage of available opportunities to improve service delivery and/or the
Council’'s financial position;

» To ensure the Council delivers its commitments to stakeholders and to demonstrate
transparency, accountability and equity in its efforts to do so;

» To anticipate and respond positively to changing social, environmental and legislative

requirements; and
» To identify and manage partnership risks

The Cabinet will regularly review the Risk Management Policy and Strategy to ensure their continued
relevance to the Borough. They will also assess performance against the aims and objectives.

We attach great significance to Risk Management and it is essential that the Protocol is known and
understood by all staff within the Council. It will form part of the induction training and performance
reviews for all staff and members and will be monitored as part of the performance review process
utilising the corporate performance system Covalent . We will make adequate resources available to
ensure that the commitments made in this statement are achieved.

Risk Management has our total support — it needs yours too for us to succeed.

(Signed) (Signed)
Designation Designation
Date Date Date of review.

Page Number 1 of 77

Page 119

o [ Formatted: Right: 0.09 cm

| = { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

)

- Formatted: Font: (Defaul) Arial

)




| Tamworth Borough Council — Ap#it-20+0 October 2012

Protocol Objectives

In implementing this Protocol the Council will:;,-
» ldentify those assets and exposures which have or may give rise to loss

producing events
» Maintain detailed ‘Risk Registers’ of the risks identified as threatening the

Performance system Covalent

Maintain a detailed understanding of insurance,
Purchase insurance for those risks which cannot be avoided or reduced further,
always retaining risks where this is economically attractive.

» Assess the impact of potential loss producing events

» Take reasonable physical or financial steps to avoid or reduce the impact of
potential losses

» Endeavour to reduce all serious (RED) risk to an acceptable level either by
controls or ceasing the activity.

» Ensure that all systems of work reflect the positive risk management culture of
the Council,

» Establish a comprehensive information base of insurable and uninsurable
losses,

>

>

Risk Management Strategy

The Purpose of this Risk Management Strategy is to effectively manage potential opportunities and
threats to the organisation achieving its objectives. The main objectives of the Council's Risk
Management Strategy are to: -

Achieve continuous improvement in the management of risk,

Develop a culture that integrates risk management into the day-to-day management process,
Continue to develop robust systems to identity and evaluate risk,

Develop reliable performance indicators for target-setting and for making appropriate
comparisons,

Develop systems for performance monitoring to bring about continuous improvements,

Enabling the Organisation to anticipate and respond to changing social, environmental and
legislative conditons,
Reduce the total cost of risk and mitigate potential future increases in insurance premiums and
self-insurance options.

YV VV VVVY

To help achieve these objectives it will be necessary to: -

» Increase the profile of and commitment to Risk Management throughout the Authority,
» Ensure adequate resources (financial and time) are provided,

Page Number 2 of 77

Page 120

- Formatted: Font: (Defaul) Arial

| = { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

| = { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial




| Tamworth Borough Council — Ap#it-20+0 October 2012

» To make all partners, providers and delivery agents aware of the Organisation’s expectations on
risk, both generally as set out in its Risk Management Policy, and where necessary in particular
areas of service delivery,

Develop arrangements to measure performance of RM activities against the aims and objectives,
Establish clear accountabilities, roles and reporting lines across all services, departments,
management and committees,

Provide for risk assessment in all decision-making processes of the Organisation,

Develop training to build awareness across all levels of Council activity.

Performance manage risk management across the Authority

VVV VYV

Risk Management Organisation

The Authority’s Section 151 Officer is responsible for establishing and maintaining risk management
procedures and for providing guidance on implementation of TBC’s risk policy. To support this function
the following risk management structure has been established :-

Council

» Ensure TBC has in place adequate and effective arrangements for the management of risk __  { Formatted: Font: Arial )

A oy Y My e Y R I gy Y e I Y oy T e

» annually review the risk register and risk management arrangements

Audit and Governance Committee

» Approve TBC'’s risk tolerance, and ensure the Corporate and strategic risks are being
managed.

» Approve and review the process for the management of risk to ensure they are

effective, efficient and robust so as to help Officers and members meet existing and

new challenges,

Promote the culture that is essential for risk management to succeed,

Report to Council on the effectiveness of the system of internal control, including risk

management systems.

Review the risk registers quarterly and progress against risk action plans.

Review priorities for dealing with unacceptable risks and improvable risks

VV VYV

The Corporate Management Team

The role of the SenierCorporate, Management Team, is to ensure that the Council manages risk ~__— { Formatted: Font: (Defaul) Arial )
effectively through the development of an all-encompassing corporate strategy. "~ { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial )
FheCorporate -Management Teamshoud:- - Formatted: Font: (Defaul) Arial )

> Be the clear focus for the management and control of the significant risks in the
Council’s activities,

Provide a clear explanation of why risk management is being implemented,
Communicate overall strategy and objectives,

Ensure the management of risk is monitored as part of the performance management
process of the Authority through the Covalent performance management system.

YV YV

| Page Number 3 of 77

Page 121



| Tamworth Borough Council — Ap#i-2040 October 2012

Create a visible success to show that positive returns are attainable,

Make available an annual budget for risk management initiatives,

Ensure the Corporate Risks of the Authority are identified and adequately managed
Review the performance of Risk Management within the Authority as part of the monthly
performance monitoring process.

Ensure risks are being adequately managed across the Authority <+ -~ { Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Share experiences on risk, risk management and strategy implications across the
Council

Identify areas of overlapping risk,

Share good practice found both internally within the Council and externally with other
Councils or project partners,

Review the ideas, Corporate Risks of the Authority.

Build on success

vVIiv |VIv |VIV VYVVY

- {Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

UnitHeads of Service, /-Service Managers __ { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Managers must support the Council in effective development and implementation of the Risk
Management Strategy within each service area within the Corporate Strategy.

Managers must :

Ensure that risk is identified, documented and effectively managed in their areas of responsibility,
Feed into the development of the Corporate Strategy from a service specific perspective,

__ { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

addressed, in Corporate Strategy,

a L YIS MRSy,

__ — { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Liaise as appropriate with external agencies regarding the management of risk,

Establish any training requirements of staff in respect of Risk Management,

Identify within each Unit a Senior Officer to co-ordinate the Unit's overall approach to Risk
Management.

VVY VVYVY

All staff

All employees have a duty to co-operate so that risk is effectively managed in their areas, ensuring that
all issues that they cannot resolve directly themselves are brought to the attention of their managers.

Head of Internal Audit Services

The Head of Internal Audit Services is the focal point for developing and implementing the strategy

throughout the Council. Hiser; role is to advise others, as it is Service mManagement who willhave - { Formatted: Font: (Defautt) Arial
overall responsibility. "~ { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial
The Head of Internal Audit Services’ overall responsibility will beto:- __ { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

> Develop the corporate risk management strategy in liaison with the Management Teams and
Service Units,

Page Number 4 of 77

Page 122



| Tamworth Borough Council — Ap#i-2040 October 2012

Promote support and oversee its implementation across the Council,

Monitor and review the effectiveness of the risk management strategy,

Assist with the identification and communicate risk management issues to Units,

Work with the Insurance Officer on insurance issues,

Advise Corporate and Unit management teams on strategic and operational implications of risk
management decisions,

Support Corporate and Unit management teams in their liaison with any external partners when
identifying and managing risk in joint projects.

YV VYVVVVYVY

s Enodrodele ore belno odecuaiobpaonoand coroce the Audiborins <~ - { Formatted: Bullets and Numbering |

Internal Audit

Audit has the responsibility for auditing the implementation of the risk management strategy.

Arrangements

> The Corporate Director-of ReseurcesExecutive Director Corporate Services will ensure thatall -~ { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial )
Managers are aware of their responsibility for Risk Management,

» The Head of Internal Audit Services will be responsible for ensuring that the risk strategy of the
Council is achieved-te,

» The Operations Accountant will be responsible for the administration of insurance and
co-ordination of advice and support.

Risk Management Tools

> Risk Registers: Risk registers record risks to the achievement of Council objectives, the =~ _ — { Formatted: Font: (Default) Aria )
controls in place to mitigate those risks, and the progress against the implementation of those
mitigations. There are three risk registers in place.
» The Corporate Risk Register records risks to the achievement of the Council’s strategic aims and
objectives.
> Service Risk Registers record risks to the achievement of service business plans and the day to
day activities of the Council.
» Project Risk Registers record the risks related to specific projects that are being carried out by
the Authority

Page Number 5 of 77

Page 123



Tamworth Borough Council — Ap#i-2040 October 2012

» In addition, there is a library of Partnerships risks for managers to draw upon when they are - {Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

completing any partnership risk registers.,

Council Policy Procedure: Risks are considered as part of all decisions made by the Council. Report
templates include a section to give consideration to risks, and the Risk Management Guidance gives
direction on how to identify those risks.

Project Risk Assessments: All projects carry some risks. Once a project has been identified, risks
are identified at the appraisal stage, and managed throughout the life of the project by the Project
Manager and Project Board. See the Project Management Framework for more details.

Procurement Risk Assessments: Risk assessments will be conducted at the planning stage of a
procurement exercise. They will be used to identify the risk and controls in the proposed exercise, and
assess their impact and probability. They will be used to report on risk, to prioritise improvement action
and to monitor results. See the Procurement Procedure for more details.

Risk Management Training: All employees at TBC will receive the relevant risk management training,
to enable them to fulfil their risk management duties.

Risk Management Guidance Notes: Please refer to the risk management guidance notes for further
information on risks, the risk management process from identification to management and reporting and
appropriate templates to be used within TBC.

Risk Management System: The Authority documents its control of risk through the Covalent

monitoring mitigations against those risks and actions required to further reduce risks. The system
allows reports to be produced for Management review on a regular basis and links into the performance
management of the Authority.

Review of Risk Management
Review of all aspects of this Risk Management Protocol is an on going process.

Notwithstanding this all aspects of Risk Assessments will be reviewed

» When there is a critical change
» Annually by line management as a minimum requirement.

Appropriate reports will be submitted to the Assistant Directors/Corporate Management group (CMT)

The Head of Internal Audit Services will advise the CMT group whenever there is a need to review the
System through a change of statutory duty.

Page Number 6 of 77

Page 124

- [ Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

__ { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

| = { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

| = { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial




| Tamworth Borough Council — Ap#i-2040 October 2012

An Annual report will be produced which will: -

» Review previous year’s Risk Management performance
» Set Council Risk Management objectives for the forthcoming year.

Page Number 7 of 77

Page 125



| Tamworth Borough Council — Ap#i-2040 October 2012

departmental employees in the
RM Planning

® Facilitated workshops to assign
risk responsibility in the
department

® |dentify and exchange

information on emerging
hazards with CMT
® Analyse information/trends
® |dentify hazards to new
projects/changes to service

delivery
the
Servens
= CommuniCa olve Managers
departmental employees in Manage risk in
the RM Planning particular service

Facilitated workshops to
assign risk responsibility in
the department

Identify and exchange
information on emerging
hazards with CMT
Analyse information/trends

areas, document
on Covalent &
report to DMT

PageNumber

y 3

embers - N - - - ::::::::::::::7,//'{Formatted:Font:(DefauIt)AriaI ]
H H Hold CMT accountable Committee N - - -
Reporting Lines [/ ™ forhe offecive. e oS e ) LFormatted:Font (et ol |
management of risk by of Risk within the TR ‘{ Formatted: Font: 18 pt ]
officers of the authority Authority '( Formatted: Font: (Defautt) Arial, 18 pt |
Departmental Management \ /. N\ ___ - { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial )
Teams (DMT’s)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, __ — { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial
® Assess & prioritise risks (to
Departmental Business Plan and .
Objectives) o Ensure thgt the authority manages
. ) Members risk effectively through the
® Review Depanmer)tal RM Issues old CMT accountable for development of an all-
and appoint Senior Officer to \ffective management of rish encompassing corporate strategy
ensure 2?&2“3"3:; uesare officers of the Organisatig ® Also consider strategic risks from
_ DMT that may threaten objectives .- { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial ]
4 - -~ ® —Monitor progressof RMactions — — ——{ ~~~ -~~~ ~ -~~~ ~ apdotherstrategies ~ ~ -—— - — -
including Service Continuity ) { r:;T??;d- Indent: Left: -1 cm, First }
Planning on Covalent and report Review performance monthly ine:
to CMT when required Quarterly review the risks
® Can seek assistance from the recorded on the Covalent system .
Ao Head of Internal Audit Services — — — — oyl — — — — — — f — — - — — - = Consider trends; upcoming ~ — ~ ~ — | — — — - B { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial ]
® Communicate & involve ' events, potential new risks.

®  Review the management of

Strategic Risks of the
Authority

Monitor Risk Management
performance

The Head of Internal Audit
Services to form & Chair sub
groups as required for common
projects

I ‘[Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Disseminate information and
discuss common issues as the
need arises.

Report by exception issues to the
Audit & Governance Committee
every six months

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, __ = { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

der trends,
upcoming events,
potential new risks

Review th ent
of Strate@%%%?ﬁn% -
Authorifyanager to assess

Monitor Réss in their job.
Managtindattake job within

__ — { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

8 of 77

Identify hazards to new
projects/changes to service
delivery

Service Managers

Manage risk in
particular service
areas, document
on Covalent &
report to DMT
any issues.

v

PerformariRM guidelines

The Head of Internal Audit

Crverinan 4a Favan O alniv anlk

Employees

Liaise with line manager to
assess risks in their job
Undertake 10ob within RM



S9J0N SIY

sasned /sanijiqesauinp

sasuanbasuo)

2je@ MIIARY YSIY IseT]

pooyia1 jJuasin)

AJIBABS JudlLIN)

24008 YSIY jJualin)

ajeq
MBIADY HSIY SSOIH

pooyl1q ssolo

AJ11I9N3S Sss04D

21008 YSIY SS0.4D

pooLEy

XLIJe YSIY Jua4in)

pajuswa|dw] S2inNsesdpy Juswiedl] Nsry

X113y YSIY SSO.

Pagesl27

0] paubissy

-- 243y S|1B32p MSH JaJuUD --

)siy jo uondunsag

snjejls )siy Juadin)

€1/210¢ 4235169y >siy 21e10d40D

SlL sy

€T¢TddO

9p0)D )Nsiy

Z Xipuaddy

2107 4290120 ZT :uo pajelauan

€T/2T0T 1931s163Y sy ajes0da0)



s||ej3doys 196png| sasned/sanijiqesdujnp
sanss| uoleinday
Alleba)|1 Buioe Ajjenualod
paoue|jeq jou s3abpng
paulejulew Jou SaAJI9SaL wnwiuiw
papaa0xa syebpng
Ajlunwiwod |ed0| 8yl JO Yyijeay d1Iwouods ay3 uo joeduw juedyiubis
51500 Hulob-uo 12aw 03 Ajjigeul sasuanbasuo)
Buipuny uo 3no ssiw
paAalyoe jou sbulaes |eppueuly
S1ND pajeuipJoodun
paulells awodaq sdiysuonead diysiauped
SUI|23p VIAIBS JO AJjend
S9DIAJDS Ul SIND
109[oad Bupjiom s1be ‘esnoH uolwJely B3 S}9sse JO asn 3A13094)3
epuabe abueyd pue wJiojad JuswulaAob [eajuad ul Juswabebus aAIDY
BuloMIaN/9040S
SM3IADJ 9SeD ssaulsng
J93s1634 S30BJ3U0D “U0I3DDS JUBWIDIND0I]
Hu3es souewsoiad o180
CT0C-1°0-CT| °3ed MIIAdY Sy jse ejep Bupjewydusq MBINDY HSIY SSOgR)
UOISSILIWOD JIpNe JO M3IASJ Jipne |euJajul [enuue ‘puads ybiy buimainau —
‘Bupjiewyousqg y4d1D buipnpul syndino/souewlolad/s3sod pueistapun
pue a3en|eAa 03 Ajldoyine ayl ulyim ssaoold buppewyduaq buidojaaaq &
W4A 104 AJljIgisuodsad pajedo|je JuejuNoddY juswabeue|y w
Ajuoyine ay3 uiyym dn 3as dnodb Asuow Joj anjep o
9|qIssod aJayM pa24nos swodu| jueds) “uspuijyuelb ‘d3rgm
Z pooyi|ai] Juatin) Buriojiuow Jenbau € pooyi|a21] Sso4DH
c AJLI9ASS JuUaLIND 11Puno0) Ag paaoldde Abajelis ¥y uinpno |enuue ‘Abajeais juswabeuep Aunsead] c AJlI9ASS SS0ID
ABajeu3s |epueuly wus} wWnIpap
9 91038 )sIy jJuaLin) Bbuliojiuow pue bujuueld 396png 6 91008 ) SIY SS0.45H
Muarag
L L
= =
W X113ep }siy jua4in) pajuswdjdw] sainseap Jusawieal] sy W X113ep )siy sso4n
g g
Asneaym AjIge3s |epueulq pue buipund Jo Sso )}siy jo uondidsag

uyor ‘Jsuden) ueyais

0] paubissy

‘&
WV

snjejs Yysiy Juadin)

|eueuly 9L s T0 €T2TY¥dD

9p0)D NSy




Page 129

S9J0N SIY

196pnQg S|1DUN0D BY3 UO AJ303JIP |[IM S|9AS] UOIID3||0D |BI0| - £T/1/T JOM uoiualad Sajed ssauisng
SJJO 9YIM/S|DAJ|

u0I323]|02 uo Joeduw [eljualod Yl pue €1/¢/T Jom (238 seouemo|ly BuisnoH ‘JIpat) |estaAlun) sabueyd w.oad aJejjom JSYyjo pue Xe] [IDUNno) JO WJojad |edluyda]
Hoddns xe] |1Duno) 03 sabueyd

sjueln ssnljioed pajqesia

juswade|dad U0 J0j BUo S, 91y

Buipuny aA;UaDUl BSIWIXeW 03 ainjied

9z93J4J) Xe] |1Duno)

M3IA3J Bulpuads

snuog SSWOH MaN

wilojad Yy H

saiiunyoddo Buipuny ssauisng Aay buissiw

syebpng sbeuew 03 aJnjiey

sjuswisaAul abeuew 03 aJnjiey

paJinbau s82JAJ3S 0 Joedul] 8Sea.4dUl UOISSaD3.l

s1nd juedb ybnoayy asealoul sdeb buipuny




SJaquuIaWl/sua01440 Ag sao1joedd [ealyiaun
uone|sibal yym asuerdwod-uou
aJn|iey uieyd Ajddns Ayed paiyl

9DIAJISS JO SpJepue}sS WNWulW JSAIISP 03 a4n|iey
saJnjiey Juswabeuew juapioul Jofew pue SISLD
oeqpaaj uo Joe 03 aJnjiey}

suonejdadxa |ednijod pue [eD0S ydjew 03 ainjled

sasned /sanijiqesauinpg

AJ1qipaJo dnodb 493d JO SSO|
Ajljigel) jeuossad/|eunglay ul swied
Joddns 21ignd Jo SSO|

S|9A9| uolIoRISIIeS Ul ||B)

BuiJom JO 350D paseadul LIRS )
QWodU| JO SSO|
aJn|iey 9OIAIDS
9DUPIJUOD pue ISnJ} Ul UOISOID
eIpaW [BID0S JO @sn/ssaud/elpawl ul siaquiaw pue yeis ||e 4o0) bululed |
spJepuels 92IAJI9S
sainpadso.d pue saidi|0d
1ONpuU0d JO SIP0D
Buliojiuow 3pea3u0)
o)
T0Z-1°0-2T| °©3eq MIIAdY )SIY 3seT] spJepuels AJISAIISP SDIAISS
¢102-P0-C - S14035 SMaU JO BULIOHUOI MIIASY )SIY SSO.
JodaJ uswspnquQ
spJepuels )
Sua3sI7 yHomuwe] w
SWBYdS sn II_L o
SUO[REDIUNWIWOD) Y ¥d
€ pooyi|a)17 juatin) 2jedap yiomuwe] Jo s3e1s € pooyi|a)1] sso1d
ssa00ns bupe.agae)
Z AJIBA3S JudlLIN) $91196.NS SIS € AJ11I9N3S sso0.4D
9 91038 )sIy jJuaLin) 9]eJIUNWWO0D/3INSU0D 0] BIPAW [3NW JO 9SN paseatdu] 6 91038 )SIY SS049H
L L
= =
W X113ep }siy jua4in) pajuswdjdw] sainseap Jusawieal] sy W X113\ HSIY SS04D
8 8
o o
UIMpO09
AUO ‘UIMPOOS) BDIUY 0] paubissy uonejnday 03 abeweq sy jo uondunsag
& snjejs sy Jualin) uonenday S}L s 20 €T2TddD 9po0D Msiy

v




Page 131

S930N siy

SJ9quiaw/S1a21440 AQ elpaw |e120S JO 9snsiw
slaquiaw/s19214J0 Ag suoljoe |euostad
SJaquiaw/sua01440 AQ sayoeauq AjIndas




uopeindads 03 abewep
2ouewlojlad Jood

CT0C-PO-¢CT

ajeq MaIADY MSIY Ise

pooyia1 jJuasin)

(9]

AJIBA3S JudlLIN)

<

91028 )SIy Jud4an)

pnes sasuanbasuo)
sjuswadinbau [eb3| yim aoueldwod-uou
paInpayds sbuiles
uoIIN3IISU0) “‘@aueulanos o3 sabuey)d
SS200.4d |eJ10309|3
ssao04d ¥ad
10V Ul|eaH 21|gnd pue 10y U0I309]04d |BjuswuodiAug Japun suonebiiqo
o1nL
saoljod souelansug
2ouejdanoe pue juswabeuew Adijod 104 JUasu0) 19N
uolnjos bujuies| 8 Jo JuswdopASp
ue|d Bululesy Jaquiawl Jo JuswdolaAap
sojepdn |eba| Jeinbay ajeq

Bujuieuy Jayjo pue qdD |enuiuo)

slaquisw pue sua21yjo Joj buluieay uone|siba
saanpado.ad pue sapljod JueAd|9Yy

10Npuo) Jo apo)

uonniIsuoy

SjuSWIvlIR]S ddueINSSY slabeuely

Qoueping diys.aauiied

99IWWIO) splepuels

Hpny |euJaixy

Hpny |eudanul

1921440 BuliojuO|y pue Ajljeuoipuny TGT UOIRRS
AB3a3jeays uoindnuio) pue pne.dd 4aj3uno) pue Adjjod Buimo|gajasiym

MBIADY HSIY SSOIH

Page 132

JUSWLIS 2DULUISA0D |enuuy

pooyi1q ssolo

S991IWIWOD AuIINIdS
9913ILUIWIOD SDURUIDA0D B UPNY

AJ11I9N3S sso0.4D

2ouepinb [epueuld

21008 )SIY SS0.19

Rlasas

pooyay

XLIJeW YSIY Judain)

pajuawajdw] sainses|y Jusawieal] }siy

pooyay

X113 YSIY SSo45

Aspeaym
uyor ‘33IdeH auer

0] paubissy

san|Iqisuodsal Alojnjels pue spiepuels 3JULBUISA0D alenbape aAsiyde 03 adnjied

)siy Jo uondidsaqg

@

snjejs Yysiy Juadin)

ainjie4 A101e|nH3Y Q 9IURUIDAOD 911 MSid

€0 £TCTYdD

9p0)D NSy




133

‘W04 J1JouUag S4B ‘I0V WS||ed0T]

S9]0N S

e

|oJ3u0d |eonijod 03 sabuey)d

Bupew uoispsp ajelidosddeu

11e1s A9y Jo sso|

S90.4Nn0sad JO »oe|

uone|siba| 03 sabueys/sanijiqisuodsal [ebg| Jo aieme aq Jo abeuew 03 ainjiey
9ouew.Jopad 100d

pnedy}

uone|sibs| yyum soueldwod uon

Ajl[Igejunodoe Jo oet

2oueuJIaA0b ON

9ouepodwl 9yl puelsiapun 03 aJnjie)

SJ9QUIBW puR SJBDILO0 WO JUSWILIWIOD JO YOr|
S94Npad0.d pajusawWNdop JO Yoe|

Buruie.y jo 3oeq

P

sasned /sanijiqesauinpg

puewap 924n0SaYy
SaJIA eJYN

abuajjeyd |eba|

SjuaWwIWod uoldadsul Jood

wisidnRud yipne

Jje3ys Jo/pue d1gnd 03 Ainlul Jo yjesp
sauly ‘uoindasoud




JHoddns juswabeuew 3136 0] aunjieq

s1964e] 9ouerWIOMDd puR SUOIIIPUOD |PNIORJIUOD Sbeuew pue }19s 0] aJnjieq
saiped plyl Jo asn ay3 wody buisiie sysi ay) abeuew pue ssasse 0] ain|ieq
sw.oad Jspun Jauied

aJn|iey uieyd Ajddns Ayed paiyl

juspidul Jofew peauds spim Bulinp sasde||0d AIDAIISP SDIAISS

anss| aoueulanob ‘sso| eyep 62 juapioul Janddng

aJn|iey [eIDURULY SeY Jaulied

suoe1adXa AJDAIIDP 9DIAISS 192W 03 aJn|ied

sasned /sanijiqeJauinp

J9W jou suolenbay
pajeulwi|® J0U SeM
pauieb jou sapuaPIy3
paonpaJ J0U S3S0D
$31500 }Ixa YbIH
uo131soddo 22400

S904N0SaJ JO Yoe sasuanbasuo)
u0I30B)SIIeSSIP JBW0ISND
SJ0SS9SSe/SI0]IpNe |_UJIXD W04y WSIDIID
20IAISS Ajljenb JO ssOT
s}asse Jayjo pue Auadodd |en3os|jul ‘abpamou| Jo Sso
uonjejndal 03 abeweq M
DJDAI[DP 10U SDIAID
paJaAlep jou INBS i
19351694 S310RIJUOD 0} dOUBIBYPY
90U3aJ3jod JO sw.Ja) a1enbapy 01
CT0C-1°0-¢T| °3ed MIIAY sy IseT] dnoJs Aynuiuo) ssauisng D49l MBIIAY Sy wwo..a
sdiysiauyied swos J0) aoe(d ul SUOIINIISUOD) : : o
pabeuew pue paiiauapl s)sry
Z pooyi|aI1 Jualin) 2oe|d ul sue|d Ajnuiuo) ssaulsng € pooyi|a21] sso4DH
Buliojiuow diysiaaulied/1oeiiuod aA0a4i3
c MIHSASSRESID sjuswaalbe ad1AI8S padeys ‘syoedjuod bs ‘aoeld ul sjuswabuedde diysisuiied € SIHSRSSIE=CD)
b 91008 sy jJuaiin) 2oe|d ul Adijod ay3 uo Bujuiesy pue Adljod @aueulaA0D diysiaulled 6 91008 YSIY SS0.4DH
Rlasas Alasas
L L
= =
W X113ep XSy Juasin) pajusawdjdwi S24nSea| Jusawieal] )sny W X113ep sy ssol1n
8 8
o o
[IPUAIW uteyd Ajddns 4o saoiAlas padeys ‘buppiom diysiauned ul ainjied sy jo uondunsag

qoy ‘}etdeg malpuy

0] paubissy

@

snje3s sy jJuadan)

sabuajieyd uieyd Ajddns pue Bupiiom diysisunied SRLL ISy v0 €T2TY¥dD

9p0)D NSy




Page 135

YS9p DDIAISS | ‘sdieday buisnoH ‘diysiauiied d16a3edis ‘jodauo) bulping ‘yJuswdoljaAs@ d1wouod] ‘Ajales @ ujjesy ‘a3sem - aoe|d ul sdiysiusiied

S930N siy

Adljod jo abueyd |eanijod

pasi|eaJ Jou sjiyjauaq

peo.aq 003/mo.ueu 00} abueyd jo adods
Jajsuety abpasimouy| a38|dwodul ‘100d
S9SeaJoul J9A0UIN] Je1S




01

S9JON Ysiy

Bululely axespun o3 ainjie

sue|d 3593 0] aunjieq

*JoY sapusbuiuo)d [IAID 8yl Jo sjuswadinbad ay)
UM Bul| U] 9DIAISS [R1IIUSSSS pue Joddns paJdinbad ay3 spiAold pue Ja3sesip e 0} APdInb joead 03 3ndiyip 31 bupjew sjuswsbuedie Aousbisws pajeldbajul Jo MoeT

JuSWUOJIAUD 3Y] 03 abeweq

Aadoud jo uoipnasaqg
YleaQ

Jow jou sjuawadinbald 10y Aduabuiauo)d |IAID

uolyeindad 03 abeweq
P3JBAIIDP 10U SBDIAIDS

sasuanbasuo)

¢T0Z-PO-¢T

2jeq MIIARY YSIY IseT]

pooyia1 jJuasin)

(9]

AJIBA3S JudlLIN)

<

91028 )SIy Jud4an)

sdojde| ‘ssuoyd sjigow 63 ainjonJisedjul /sj003 DI/ UOIIRIIUNWWOD SAI309443
WwiNJo4 92Ud||IS9Y B NDD 241Ysp1044eis Jo diysiaquisi

dnoJo AjInuiauo) ssaulisng

siseq Jejnbad e uo paisay uejd Aduabiswg

siseq Jejnbad e uo pa3sa) sueld UOIIRDIUNWILIOD ||

2oe|d ul uejd AJnuiUOd ssauisng ajeldodlo)

S9IAISS JO Ajldolud Mued 03 pala|dwod sisAjeue Joeduwll 9JIAISS

siseq Je|nbaJ e uo pa3say pue aoe|d ul uejd AjnNuIUOD ssaulsng 11

'siseq JeinbaJs e U0 pamalAad pue 3de|d ul S|0J3uod A3lINdas |edisAyd a3enbaspy
siseq JeinbaJ e uo pa3sa) pue oe|d ul S|0J43u0d uouaAald adly -bulpjing
9]ISgoM U0 d|gejieAe DIApe sapuabiawg

Jouesiul

93U} uo AJInupuo) ssauisng pue juswabeue|y YSiy uo aouepinb pue adIAPY
*SSO| |elDURULY 03 94nsodxa JOA0D 03 92de|d Ul JSA0D Sdueansu]

2oe|d ul sueld Aynuiuo) ssaulsng

S[9A3] snolleA je pa3ajdwod bujuiesy bujuueld Aousbisw]

2oe|d ul ue|d Aduabiawg

C2l{e)

MBIADY YSIY SSOgY)
—i

Q
(@)
@

o

pooyi1q ssolo

AJ11I9N3S sso0.4D

21008 )SIY SS0.19

Rlasas

pooyay

XLIJeW YSIY Judain)

pajuawajdw] sainses|y Jusawieal] }siy

Alasas

pooyay

X113 YSIY SSo45

uoxnng
IDDIN ‘13eddeg malpuy

0] paubissy

uoienyis Jajsesip/Aouabiawa |euJalul Jo [eulaixa ue abeuew 03 adnjied

)siy Jo uondidsaqg

@

snjejs Yysiy Juadin)

sjeady] asuodsay sisu) ¥ Aduabiswig 91311 sy

S0 E€TCTYdD

9p0)D NSy




I

232 Buisnoy ‘sqofl ‘sassauisng Huildalie uiNJUMOP JILIOU0Dd Usappns
saijunyioddo asiubodad 03 aJnjied
sabueyd d1wouo0da asiubodad 03 adnjieq

sasned /sanijiqesauinpg

puewsap pasea.dul 03 NP SIIIAIDS [IDUNOD 03 SISOD pasealdu]
awodul |1DUNo) uo yedw]

Buisnoy [e1Dos 10 puewap pasealdu]

ybnouoq ayj aAes| sjdoad

JoxJew buisnoy uo 309449 |ejuswiilag

saulDap Ajliadsoud djwouody

ymodb pue Awouods pie 0] buipuny |eulalxa ON

pado|aASp Jou yHomuwie]

sasuanbasuo)

CT0C-PO-CT

ajeq MaIADY MSIY Ise

pooyia1 jJuasin)

AJIBA3S JudlLIN)

™M

91028 )SIy Jud4an)

uoneledaud |1g wsied0

ue|d JUSWIISIAU] [BD07]

ABajens a10)

d3al

ABa3jeays oiwouod3

sue|d ssauisng JO M3IA3J Jeinbay

ue|d |eioueUl WJISY WNIP3

paJojdxa sweaJys buipuny |eulaixy

ssauisng Joj suoin|os

diysJaulied J1wou0d3 pue ssauisng

1207 MulyL

s9ssauIsnq |ed0| 03 Joddns

sbuneaw diysiapes| pue sylomiau juswabeuely
SDI3S13B1S JIWOU0DD

|e20| pue |euoibald smoys - Juswabeuew 03 paingliIsip uiId|INg JILWOU0D3
(Nvoymomwe])

9}
MBIADY XSIY SSO

Page 37/

NIOMISN S2IAPY ANUNWILWOD Yyomuwie] - ALOU0I3 Ul udnjumop o3 idepy z

pooyi1q ssolo

JuSWUJISA0D |eJjUSD WOy Swwod yj a3ep 03 dn dasy
Ajlold o1693e41S

AJ11I9N3S sso0.4D

T0 CITI¥dD 03 ur] 9

21008 )SIY SS0.19

Rlasas

pooyay

XLIJeW YSIY Judain)

pajuawajdw] sainses|y Jusawieal] }siy

pooyay

X113 YSIY SSo45

13U
qoy ‘Jsulen uelols

0] paubissy

AJUNWWOD 3Y3 UIyIIM sabueyd J1Wouo0d3 0} SadIAJSs 1depe pue ueid 03 adnjied

sy Jo uondidsaqg

@

snjejs Yysiy Juadin)

sabueyd J1wouody CIRINID b 90 €£12TddD

9p0)D NSy




cl

Page 138

S9J0N SIY

JUBWIISaAUI/AUDWAOIDASP JO JUBWIBASIYDR JapUn
uoneul ul aseasdul pidey

uolbaJ ay3 ul JsAojdws Jofew Jo SsOT
jJuswulanob jo abueyd

sjyuesb6/6uipuny Juswultanob uj ssbuey)

12xdew AJadoud ayy Jo asde|j0d




el

SO]ON sy
BupoeH
aJnjiej yuswdinbg
Haul

s507 sasned /sanljiqesdunp

Jouis uewny
juawdinba JT a4ndasut

us|03S/1S0| elep |euosiad J19y3 i 21|gnd ay3 JO suaquiaw 10 dusnbasuo)
Jjels 03 wuey |eaisAyd

jJuswuosuduwi |epualod wwu:wscwm:w
abewep |euonyeinday
aul4 —
sjwi| ejep o
uopejuswa|dwi SWYAa3
2
ZT0Z-200-ZT| @1e@ MIIASY MSIY IseT] e3ep 4O Ajundes
A sj000304d paysijqeiss MDIADY NSy Sso
$|0J3U0D |RJUSWIUOIIAUT
XS05
€ pooyi|ai] Juatin) Hujuresy pue adueldwod U0I3I3104d Bledq € pooyi|a1] Sso45H
|enuely A314ndaS uonjewJdoju] ‘Adljod Ayundas
€ AJIBA3S JudlLIN) AnDas [2o1SAUd v AJ11I9N3S sso0.4D
6 91038 )sIy jJuaLin) A314n23s Y40MIBN 1 91038 )SIY SS049H
Alasas
C C
= =
W X113ep }siy jua4in) pajuswdjdw] sainseap Jusawieal] sy W X113\ HSIY SS04D
8 8
o o
Aspeaym
uyor ‘uomng PPIN 0] paubissy elep 24N23S 0] ain|leq )siy Jo uondiidsaq
& SjuspIdUI AdeALId 8 SSOT eleQ S}L s L0 €TCTUdD 9po0D Msiy

v

snje3s sy jJuaiin)




14!

UMEIPYIIM SDIAIDS

sasned /sanijiqeJauinpg

puewsp j9awW 03 aJan|ieq

QWD Jo uondsodad Jo Jesd

uoISaY0d AJUNWIWOD JO [9AS] MO

UOISIA sap3ioyine ay3 03 diysiaumo/3uswuuod AJJunwiwod oON

CT0C-PO-CT

ajeq MaIADY MSIY Ise

PooyI1 Jua4InD

o~

AJ19A9S JuaLIn)

N

24008 YSIY jJualin)

Ajunwiwod ay3 ul SUoIsud)} paseatdu] sasuanbasuo)
Buipuny Jo asn J4ood
J9pJoSIp pue awlId ul 9seaJdu]
Spaau sJasn bBuipueisiapun/builssw JoN
$1500 W) buo
20e|d |ej0L
Ayuoud o16ajens
diysisuped o16a3e43s yHomuwe
}IpNy uoisayo) Ajunwwo)
32110d YIIM sxu
gny gsy Jo jusawdolaaag
dnoJo saoyIny a|gisuodsay
diystauped saniunwwo) J4abuouis
ajeq

Joedw| wsijed07/A3e00S big bujuueds uoziioH

pasn sjuswssasse Joedw]

saAlleniul g syafoad buipjing Ayoede)

Ssaualeme UOISaY0D AJunwiwo)

Buruue|d 221A49S wIojul 03 pasn aouabi||djul pue eyeq
saiiunwwod buibebua ul aAde0Id SIDIAIDS
asegejep uopeyNsuod ajetodlo)

dnoJug saniunwwo) Jabuoals

Juawabebuy Ajlunwiwio)

MBINDY NSIY wwow

Page 14

Ad110d uoisnpu] |eoueul4
Bupiom diysiauied

i

Pooyi|a%11 SSo4D

Adljod dsv v
Bujiom Ajjeso

A119N3S sso.D

<

S9DIAISS Bul| JuoJy 03 aBueyd oN

21008 YSIY SS0.4D

Alanas

pooLEy

X113e Sy Jualin)

pajuswadw] S2insesdpy Juswieas] Nsy

pooLEy

XL1Jey YSIY SS049

I9U21IW qOY ‘sauleg qoy

0] paubissy

UO0ISBY0D AJIUNWILLOD SASIYDR 0] aJnjied

)siy jo uondunsag

@

snje3s sy jJuaiin)

uoisayod Ajunwiwo) Jo sso SlL sy 80 £TCTYdD

9p0)D NSy




Sl

Page 141

S9J0N SIY

ssa20.4d juswabebus poob Jo Bulpueisispun pajwi

|[9A3] 2IAJISS pue 93eJ0dJ0D Je swisiueydaw juswabebua Jo0od
UoIIRDIUNWIWIOD 100d

o11gnd ay3 w04y 3sa493Ul JO Yoe

uoneAldap |epueuly Ul 9seaJdu]

dsSy ul aseasdu]

pajuawbed) awo29qg Sa13IUNWW0O)

1J0 93e] Jou saop Alaos big




91

$)S0D 24NNy [_UOIPPE 0} PEd| SaIURPUNPaY

1Sa4un |eLsnpul

AJSAI|Sp 92IAJ3S UO Joedwi Sey 3jeJow MO

PSPROJISA0 SW023] 44815

sasned /sanijiqesauinpg

spoyiaw Bupjlom mau 03 S|9A3] ||IMs ubije 03 Ajljigeul
epuabe abueyd 0] puodsal 03 Ajljiqeur

WISI99]Uasge Ul asea.dul

44e3S wody seoueAslb Jo Jaquuinu pasealdul
S9sed [eungld} JuswAojdwa Ul seaudul |el3ualod

N0 Juas sabessaw Buoap sasuanbasuo)
pnedyj ul aseaJou]
jJuswubijesiw 326png
uonoe |elIsnpul
AJDAI[DP 9DIAJIDS 03 MSiY
Jjels Bujuiewad uo ujels
awwesboud abueyd ajeiodio)
Buiyjeis psonpad Jo Joeduwll XSiJ JO SSaualeme juswabeuey
(97n1) suolun spedy ym diysuonesy
sasodund
AJnuiuod ssauisng J0J Ajpeded/sannijigeded 901n0sad Jo malAad siabeuely
o)
2702-P0-2T| 231e@ mainay ysiy 3seq| SIS AJeSS308U JO JuBW]INJISI JO UOI3Us3IaL Jay3Is Joj Adljod juswsa|ddns 3odel
yareay jeuonednddo pue piaiysy3jeay ‘Adijod Juswsbeuew aouasqy MBIADY NSIY ssod
seaJde A9 ul Jjeis Ajljenb o3 buiuredy Anus 3sod
2oe|d ul sainpadcold pue saijod YH %.e
passaJppe bulaqg aJe sjuswaJdinbad Juswdo|aASP [|IXS S4Nnsus 03 ssa20.d yad a
WOV Jjels o
Jauq a40)
Z pooyi|aI1 Jualin) Buluue|d uoISS920NS pue IDIOUOM € pooyi|a21] sso4DH
uonedIuUNWWOoD Jejnbay
Z AJIBA3S JudlLIN) SMBIADI DIAIDS € AJ11I9N3S sso0.4D
b 91008 sy jJuaiin) yiomuwe] bulwaojsued) 6 91008 YSIY SS0.4DH
FATIERE Ausssg
L L
= =
W X113ep XSy Juasin) pajusawdjdwi S24nSea| Jusawieal] )sny W X113ep sy ssol1n
8 8
o o
uIMpoosS sabuajjeys buluueld aoiopHom abeuew 03 ainjied sy jo uondunsag

Auo] ‘uiMpoo5 edjuy

0] paubissy

@

snjejs Yysiy Juadin)

sabua|jeyd Buiuue|d 92J0HO0M SIML S

60 £TCTYdD

9p0)D NSy




L1

Page 143

S9J0N SIY

paJinbaJ S||IXS 404 SUOIIPUOD }aXJeW MOJa] SUORIPUOD pue Aed
sdeb s||>s a|gedaunA buiaes| ybiy 003 ulewad S|SA3| SSaUIS
Jje3s pasijeipads yum Ajoyine jlews

A|9AI13094J2 93Ld]UNWIWOD 03 aJ4n|ied




81

1WD 03 seepdn
7S pue HL yiim oy Ag saiepdn Jaejnbad

S91O0N Ysiy

pa3a|dwod Jou s3sa3/suolyoadsul
pabeuew Jo pue paliausapl 30U SHSII
pasn jou juawdinba Ajajes |euos.iad
sao130e.ad Bupjdom Jood /sInd Joys
SsauaJdeme Ajajes pue yjeay Jo Xoe|
uoinle|sibal] yym aoueldwod-uopn

sasned /saljIqesdunp

Aanfui/yyesp
swiiepd aouednsul

Ayongnd aanebap sasuanbasuo)
sauld
Jaybnejsuew ajelodio) <
3DV pue SJ20140 SH Uiim sbunaaw a3epdn Jeinbay Mu_
SS9} UO[IBNDRAS pue S)Sa) WJeje adi4 @
2
ZT0Z-200-ZT| @1e@ MIIASY MSIY IseT] 49151621 dAd
A soonoedd pue Adijod Buidom suo MIINDY Sy SSo.
papiaoad juswdinba Ajajes |euos.iad o
pa39|dwod suodadsut
z pooyi|ai] Juatin) pPa319|dw0d SJUBWISSISSE MSIY € pooyi|a1] Sso45H
sdnoub Ajajes pue yjjesaH
€ AJIBA3S JudlLIN) po19(dwWod Buluel| v AJ11I9N3S sso0.4D
9 91038 )sIy jJuaLin) 2oe(d ul saidijod 1 91038 )SIY SS049H
Alasas
C C
= =
W X113ep }siy jua4in) pajuswdjdw] sainseap Jusawieal] sy W X113\ HSIY SS04D
8 8
o o
UIMpO09
ea1UY ‘NeLieg MaIpUY 0] paubissy AJaJes R yjjeaH abeuew 03 aJnjieq )siy Jo uondiidsaq
& AJojes B YijesH SPRIL IS 0T €12TddD 9po0D Msiy

v

snje3s sy jJuaiin)




61

SJUBWISSaSSY Joedw] UjjesaH ‘MIIASY S92IAISS Joddns ‘ypomwe] Bujuwiojsued|

S9JON Ysiy

1Je1s uiejad 03 aunjieq

Ajpeded pue s||iys a3e.40dJ0d JuaINsul
Joddns juswabeuew aAIINISXD ON
2oueuJIaA0b Yea

sasned /saljjIqesduinp

juswabeuew Meap LO
paouejeq jou 196png N
apew jou aJe sbuiaes i
JuswuoJIAUS Bupjiom 3j16e Juswa|dwi 0} aanjieq saouanbasudd
uoneinday
9pew JoU JUBWISIAUL UO UIN1Dy ©
uoljesijead jijauaqg pajedisuowap ajeq
Z10Z-3°0-2T| 91e@ MIIASY YSIY IseT] juswabeuew 386png Huosns ¢10¢-uer-91 MBINDY YSIY SSOID
22URUJIDA0D Buoals
Z pooyi|ai] Juatin) J1abeuely swweibold pajedipaq 4 pooyi|a21] sso4DH
swwedboid painioniis
Z AJIBA3S JudlLIN) $921N0S8. paUIE.] JO (004 Z AJ11I9N3S sso0.4D
¥ 91038 )sIy jJuaLin) ue|d swuwedlbold v 91008 ) SIY SS0.45H
FATIERE Ausssg
L L
= =
W X113ep XSy Juasin) pajuswdjdw] sainseap Jusawieal] sy W X113ep )siy sso4n
8 8
o o
UIMpOOS abueyd ajelo0daod abeuew 03 ainjie4 sy jo uondunsag

eojuy ‘uoyng IN

0] paubissy

@

snje3s sy jJuaiin)

abuey) sjelodio)d 9L sy TT €T2T¥dD

9p0)D NSy




0¢C

S9J0N SIY

9DIAJIDS BY3 BulsAlBp jou s,uofjesiueblo JaYyl0

S92IAIRS 23elidoldde Jo oe|

S92IAI3S BulisAlap Jou sapusbe usujied

Juswabeuew s J1oddns 1o eiep aleys 03 3|geun SWalsAS juswabeuew ase)
jJuswsbeuew ased dn paujol jo yoeq

JJe3s 3sbuowe ssaualeme moT

saunpadoJad pue Adjjod ajeludoadde Jjo doe

uone|siba| yym aoueldwod-uon

sasned /sanijiqeJauinp

SWwiIe|D 9JURJINSUl PUR MBIASJ JO SISOD |elDURUIS
uolyejndau Jo sso

uonelsiba|] yyum aoueldwod Jo doe| 4oj abuajeyd |ebs
Aanful snouas ‘yieaq

sasuanbasu

e 146

S199JUN|OA pUE SJ0JDEIIU0D “JJB]S JO UOISIAIRANS
$sa004d JUSWIINIDAI 39S

o3

CT0C-P0-CT| S3ed MSIAY sy 3seT] ¢10C¢-uel-91
14215 oeudosdde Joy Buluiesy yum pajuswajdwi Ad1jod MIINDY STy SSo.
SJ9214J0 pajeubissp yIm juswjwwod diysiapes) Jojuss
z pooyia1] Jua1in) SJUDPISaI/SIBWOISND Ul AJljIgeJaulnA AJijuspl 03 Sjuauwlssasse sil ajelidoaddy € pooyi|a17] Sso45H
Jpne 1T UuoIldS |enuuy
€ Apianss juaiing 2.4Nso|2sIp yym bujjesp pue buiiodad J4oj saunpadold Jes|)d € eI
9 94008 YSIY JudLin) paydope Adijod buipaenbajes 6 91008 ) SIY SS0.45H
Alasas
C C
= =
W X113ep }siy jua4in) pajuswdjdw] sainseap Jusawieal] sy W XI1JeW )SIY SS01D
8 g8
o o
1942 0] paubissy S}iNpe s|qeJau|nA pue ualp|iyd plenbajes 0] ainjie4 )siy Jo uondiidsaq
qoy ‘1393oeH asuer - : : - U
& S}NPY 9|getau|nA R ualpjiyd Buipienbajes S}L s T €T2TddD 9po0D Msiy

v

snje3s sy jJuaiin)




Ic

2oe(d ul AJInuiuod ssauisng

SOJON Ysid

41030e13u0D JO AjljIgels |eidueuly mmm:a"v\mw_u___am..w:_g
sjuswadinbas Buluued yym soueldwod-uopn .A_.
JoW JouU suolje3dadxs Jawoisn) -

SDINISS JO adnjied sasuanbasua))
[IDUNOD 9y} 03 BWOdU| PadNPaY qr

[IoUN0) Y3 0] S}S0d |euonippy ©

abewep |euoneinday o

?jeq

CT0C-1°0-¢T| °3ed MIIAY sy IseT]
A sjuawanoldwi/sjuswaduryua uo ssaldboid uo J03oeu0D Yim saiepdn deinbad MBIAIY )SIY SSo.1D
€ pooy!|a)I7 Jua.Lin) Juswabeuew v pooyi|2)1] SSo1D
DAIINDDXD UIIM J103DRIIUOD JO AJljigeIS pue uolieniis [eloueuly uo sajepdn Jeinbay
[4 Ajienes Juaiin) suondo a4njny BuLIBPISUOD € Aj19Ass ssolp
9 91028 )SIY jJualin) ‘sjuswAed |ejuas Butobuo Buiinpayss pue buljiyold z1 21005 sIY SS0.D
Alasas

- C

= =
W XII3eW MSIY juaiin) pajuawa|dwiy Sainseaj Juawieal] ysny W XI13e W M)SIYy SSol1D

8 8

o o

Asppeaym

uyor ‘uimpoos Auoy o1 paubissy ssiy Jo uondidsag
& snje}s sy jualun) 951n0) J|09 91311 sy €T €T2TUdD 9poD )sid

v




Page 148

22



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEEAgenda Item 7

25™ OCTOBER 2012
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2011/12 - UPDATE

EXEMPT INFORMATION
None

PURPOSE

To advise the Committee of the current position regarding ‘significant governance
issues’ raised in the authority’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 2011/12 and
provide an opportunity for members of the Committee to raise any issues they
consider appropriate.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Committee reviews the attached update on the ‘significant and other
governance issues’ from the 2011/12 Annual Governance Statement and raises
any issues deemed appropriate for further consideration.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Authority is required to produce a public Annual Governance Statement (AGS) in
accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 Incorporating Accounts
and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2011. The AGS must be published
with the Authority’s annual Statement of Accounts. The AGS is a document which
sets out the arrangements within the authority for ensuring there is a sound and
robust governance framework and that the system is regularly reviewed, and it is
expected that any instances of significant shortfalls in such governance issues are
referred to within the AGS. The Accounts and Audit Regulations also require that the
Statement should be considered by a Committee of the Council.

This report advises the Committee of the current position regarding the significant
and other governance issues, to give the appropriate level of assurance on progress
in dealing with these, and seeks the views of the Committee on any issues this may
raise for further consideration in relation to the Council’s control environment and
governance.

Progress on the significant governance issue (IAR AGS3 1112 AC) has been made
in line with due dates.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

None

Page 149



LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

None

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

None

REPORT AUTHOR

Angela Struthers ex 234

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Action plan arising from the AGS 11/12 assurance process

Page 150



9oe|d ul Buojyuow Ajyuow |BnNURUOD

awo23nQ palisag

‘papiaodd saoiAlas Jo abued pue Ajljlenb ay3 uo Jpedwi ou SI aJay3 jeyl
pue !saAuasad JO asn pauue|d ay3l YIm palaAlsp ag ued ue|d sbuiaes ay3 aJnsus 03 uonisod |epueuly s Jo Auinads pue Bulaojuow snoJobiA anuUiUOd pINoYs [1DUno) 3yl

uondidsaqg

A
Jauien ueyals 210C-unc-¢1 ¢T10C-unf-¢1 T\..u_m_m_. @ T JoLg Buriojiuo |epueU | DV ZTTT £SOV UVI
o] paubissy| ajeq pajsjdwo) ajeq ana leg ssaibo.id snjejls jualin) 3311 uonPy 3po)d uondy
SO]ON IV
sbuzesw buluueld jipne je siojipne |eulalxa ay) YIM uosiel| ul pa3ajdwod o [|IM M3IASJ [enuue Uy | awod3nQ paJdisag
'sjunodoe
uondiidsag
ay3 03 abueyd uoienaldap pajewW(lSS Sy} 03 DUBIBYIP |elIDjew e axew pinom Buiaunodoe jusuodwod Jo uonediidde ayy Jayjaym MalAaL Ajlenuue pinoys [12uno) ayL
A
Jsule ueyels ¢10¢-unf-¢t ¢T0z-unt-¢1 w\n_uc_‘ @ 4 JoLg Bununodooy jusuodwod | IV ZTTT 2SOV VI
0] paubissy| 9ajeq pajdjdwo) ?jeq ana leg ssaibo.ad snjels jualin) 331 uoPy 9pP0D UOIIRW
O
—i
Janjepa Agq paubis s|jieap uoijen|ea ||nj apnjoul 0} £1/2T10¢ 404 anssi Juswdo|aAap - 3pny Jo buluuibaqg je pajuasald suodad paubis ZT10Z-190-+0 Jaulden ueyols S1ON Iy,

“}pny ay3 Jo buruuibasqg ayj 3e papiaoid 3q [[Im JHodad Juswdiedw pue uollen|eA paubis y

awo23INQ palis

Jipne ayjy Jo buiuuibaqg ayj je papiaold ade sjiodad juswdiedw| pue uonien|eA paubis [je jey) aJnsua pjNoys [1DuUno) ayl

:o_un_._umm

Jaulen uejls

CT0C-PO-70

¢10¢-unf-0€

Ba00|

@

[4

A
Joud

suoday juswdiedw ¥ uonen|ea

OV CTTT TSOV dVvI

0] paubissy

9jeq pajejdwo)

a@jeq ana

leg ssaibo.ad

snjels jualin)

9311 uody

apo) uonPy

210Z 49903100 0T :uo pajelauan
sJayinJls ejabuy :aoyiny 3oday
1oday suonoy :adAjl j1oday

ssa¥d%o0.d asuednsse 21 /1T SOV 243 wodj buisiie uejd uonoy

T xXipuaddy




A
uoIseM Ined z10z-6nv-1€ | | %57 | (M 2|30ng SI03U0D PUe S8INP300.d | VIW ZTTT 8SOY UVI
o] paubissy| o3eq paivjdwo) ajeq ang leg ssaiboid snjels jJuaLin) 3311 UonPY 2p0o)H uonPY
S910N 11V
JJE3S 9ouUeUI4 10} pa1a|dwod aq 03 S,¥Ad| dwo33nEo pa4isad
2oUBUI4 UIYIIM JJE]S [|e JoJ pa3ajdwiod usaq 10U aAeY S, ydd uondunsag
A
13UleD UejalS Z10Z-un(-0¢€| | %07 | ® 2| qus0mg S¥Ad| ¥d ZTTT £SOV VI
o] paubissy| o3eq pai19jdwo) ajeqg ana Jeg ssaJbo.d snjels jJua.Lin) 9311 UondY 9po)D UoIPY
S910N 11V
uaXeMapUN 3q 03 AJINUIRUOD) SSAUISNG JO MIIASY | SW023NQO pa4isad
siseq Jejnbas B U0 paMalAad pue pa3sa) 8q 03 Pasu sue|d AJINUIIUOD Ssauisng uondidsag
A
ejelsniy eull £10Z-1BN-T€E %0 4 2|3uong Anunuod ssauisng| Vi 2117 959V ¥
o] paubissy| ojeq pai19jdwo) ajeqg ana Jeg ssaJbo.d snjels jJuaLin) 91311 UondY apo) :o_uud__
=
SSI10N 1§/
SUOIJEPUSLILLIODSY JIPNY [BUISIUT BUiSIX® 3oeJ) pue ssaibold| awo33no paJisdd
-- 949y S|IE}9P UOIDR IIUS -- uondudsag
A
ejelsni eull £10Z-1eW-TE %] 4 C|qong|  SUOMEPUSWILIODSY YIpNY (US| VI ZTTT SSOV ¥V
o] paubissy| ojeq pai19jdwo) ajeqg ana Jeg ssaJbo.d snjels jJua.Lin) 9311 UondY 9po)d UoIPY

S33ON IIV

Buissadoid swied Jo bupdayd Ayijenb eJixa Jo joeduwll ayj JO USMEMSpPUN 3Q 0} MIIADY

awo23nQ palisag

"9A13034J9 aJe uoiesisiujwpe swiep Apisqns xeJ [19uno) pue BuisnoH ul Buisiie sJodla Jejiwis Jo s ay) a3ebniw 03 aoeid ul 3nd s|oJ3uod ayy aJdnsug

uondidsaqg

JojAe] uaie)y

Z10c-unt-¢t

¢10¢-unt-¢t

Pe00|

uopijensiuliwipy
swie|d Apisqns 108 H

A
@ ¢|311011d

OV CTTT #SOV ¥Vl

0] paubissy

9jeq paje|dwo)

@jeq ana

leg ssaibo.ad

snjejs jua.lin) 931 Uoipy

apo) uonPy

S3JO0N IIV




SO]0N IV
S90IAJISS [ebaT pue Jaquis|y JO Jasn J0) pa1a|dwod g 01 ASAINS UOIDRISIIES V| dW0d3nQ paJisad
S92IAISS |26 puB S9DIAISS J9qUUSIY JO SJSSN 9DIAISS 0] PANSSI 10U SJe SASAINS UoIdeISiIes uondunsag
A
19xoeH auer €702-1BIW-TE ﬁun & € [ AoAIns uondejsines| ¥d ZTTT ZTSOVIVI
o] paubissy| oajeq paisjdwo) ajeqg ana Jeg ssaabouad snjejs jua.Lin) 331 uoPy 2po) uoIPy

*90URUIBA0D Ul IsISSe 01 SdOT 03 papiaodd os|e 1oeJjuod [Ny Jo AdoD r1o3oeljuod Aned pig yiim aouapuodsallod ||e 0jul Adod pue SjuauwilsaAul
Jo Bupjoeu] 104 33Isgam siaAojdws uo sajepdn Alda3ienb maiaad (I Sjuswsbuedte wJjuod 0} AN( Ul Jabeuep g 10303410 SdO7 UIM IBIW Z2T0Z-doS-{Z swi] a1siyd

S33JO0N IIV

swisiueyodaw aadbe pue sysi a3epdn *'SdOT 3yl YIM juswasaibe pue saunpadodd JO MIIASY

awo23nQ palisaqg

SdO1 2yl 01 pJebad Yylm pamalAad 94 0] paau sanliqisuodsal pue sa|oy

uondidsaqg

swiL aAslyd 210z-d9S-bZ eroe-unc-oc| ROl (4] 2| 3pr0mg SUE Sol0s e ey | VW ZTTT TTSOVHVI
0] paubissy| ajeq pajidjdwo) 9jeq ana leg ssaibo.ad snjels jualin) 331 uoPy apod :o_u%
.11_\
JUSSUOD 39U 03juo papeo| pue paroidde Adijod ¢2T0Z-doS-H¢ swil a1sUyD S9ION Iy

paysiignd ag ued 93}ISgaMm 3y3 Jey] 0S paJtaAlap Bululedy pue pasieuly 3q |[Im Adijod ay3 ‘yipne suaajunjoA sy} buimojjo4| awod3nQ paJIs
papinoid usaq jou sey bBuluiedy pue uonesijeuly salinbau Ad1jod S1993un|oA :o_un_‘_umﬁﬂ
SWwill ansHyd Z10Z-d3s-+¢ ZT0¢-unf-0¢ w__m__u_u_‘ @ 4 u.._o_._“ SI93JUNIOA| VW CTTT 0TSOVYUVI
o] paubissy| ajeq pajdjdwo) 9jeq ana leg ssaibo.ad snjejls juatin) 331 uopPy 9pod uoIPy
saljod ||e malaal pue dojaasp 03 9oe(d ul ueld zT10Z-d9S-Z SwiL a1Isiyd S9]ON |1V
Jipne Buimoljoj swweldboid M3IASY "SsaIdijod A3y Jo uonedignd pue uoljesijeul{| awo33nQ palisaq
931ep 03 dn aJe sadl1|od YH e 10N uondiinsag
SWwill ansyd Z10Z-d3s-+¢ ZT0¢-unf-0¢ w__m__u_u_‘ @ 4 u.._o_._“ SadI[od YH| YW CTTT 6SOV UVI
0] paubissy| ajeq pajdjdwo) ?jeq ana leg ssaibo.ad snjels jualin) 331 uopPy 9pod uonPy

‘B3 apoer wodj 3ndul Buieme pue paatbe 3134 Jou pleyssQ punode ssadodd Ing padnpodd Jeyd Mol diseg ZT10Z-120-80 UOISaM |ned

S33O0N IIV

$59004d Mau Y3IM Ul Ul S|0J3U0D pue SainpadoJd pajuswndop 3SIADY

awod3nQ palisag

ZT0Z Sun[ 95Uswwod

03 anp swwesbo.d |eyided "uoijesado JO POYISW pue SIDLIIU0D 33 3991434 0] |[Neylano 939|dwod alinbal swwelbold S3I0M [eaded 4oy S|043u0d pue sainpadodd ‘ssad0.d

uondiidsag




SUOIIR|9Y 21|gNd JO S9SN BJIAI9S 0] PaNSSI J0U 94 SASAINS UOIIRSIIES uondunsag
uoseg aue ae 0 A uoIPRJSIES JBWOo]SN
3 auer €10C-1BW-TE 00l 4 € [ 1ORJSHES JWOISND| Ud ZITT 9TSOVUVI
o] paubissy| o3jeq pajejdwo)n @jeq ana Jeg ssaaboid snjejs juaiin) 9311 UoIPY apo) uonPy

*Aemuspun mou pue 308[oud 81e40dJ0D B SI YdIym ‘93ISgam MU By JO 94njea) A9 e 3q ||IM SS00e aj0Wway "S19|de] pue
sauoyd Buipnjpul ‘swJaojpeld jo saquinu e elA 6o|q ay3 03 Aj3dadip pue J4913IM] eIA abedawoy 8)sgam ay3 a3epdn 03 S| sajepdn 30wl Ajldolid uou Joj SIyj 03 uonn|os InQ

0067 4O 23184 Aep JI2y3 U0 paseq ‘siy3 Buiop 03 Pa3eID0SSe 3S0D B S| 343U} JSASMOY SINOoY JO N0 SN 1oy abueyd e axew 0} payiun JOLIU0D AJUSLIND ued 9
*Aj230Wal 231sgam ay3 a3epdn Jouued am AuaLInNd ZT10Z-Un(-ZT SJayinais eebuy

S33O0N IIV

uelayy/paliun pue Dgl Ag ajepdn ajowad AQ paulejuiew g ued A}INUI3UOD gaMm jey) 24nsud 03 31s9]

awo23nQ palisag

SUOIIRDIUNWWIOD pue ¥Yd Ulyim siseq Jejnbad e uo paisa) Jou aJde suejd A}INui3UOD ssaulsng uondinsag
A
uose3 suer €T0Z-1eW-T€ _ %509 _ & [4 Jong Ajnunuo) ssauisng| ¥d ¢TTT STSOVYUVI
o] paubissy| 9ajeq pa32|dwo) 9jeq ana leg ssaibo.ad snjej}s judtin) 9311 uoIPyY 9po)d uopPy
‘uone.3sibad |e10309|9 ‘913se) ypomwe] ‘soiydesbowap eladay /ussi saadull N
‘sa1jl|ed0] $ ‘ubledwed dnd AN ‘SuoijediunwuIo) SIDIAIDS JawWwolIsn) "9°1 s3oaloud Swos wJaojul 03 pasn ussqg sey ejep ayl "TT0Z 4990320 ul paseydlnd ejep dleSOW w
SO10N Iy
(@)]
"Z2T0¢ 4990100 /49quwiaidas Ag paonpoud aqg pue Mo[|oJ [|IM ABa3edis Jybisul Jawolisn) e Jo Juswdo|aA3p 3yl ¢T0Z-unc-ZT Ss49yiniis eisbuy %a
padojanap aq 03 ABajess Jybisur s,|1puno) | awoa3nQ padisaa
sanoyine burnoqybiau/siaued yjym suoinjos buidojaasp AQ spasu sjuapisad/iawolisnd Jnoge Jybisul anolidw] uondidsaqg
A
Aeq uyor 2102-223a-1¢€ _ 0n0s _ & Z| 31014 juswebebuz Ajunwwod | ¥d ZTTT ¥T1SOVUVI
o] paubissy| ajeq pajidjdwo) ?jeq ana leg ssaibo.ad snjej}s jualin) 9311 UonPvy 9po) uoPy
¢10¢

Jaqwiaydas pals|dwod 3q 03 ‘bujuueld uoissadons pue juswabeuew jua|e) J0j uoiINjos buuledy J1sy3l burieys ade [1DUNO) AJD weybuiwdlg ZT10Z-unf-£1 siayinas ejpbuy

SO}0N IIV

juswdojanaq |euonesiuebiQ JO pPesH 3yl Y3Im passnasip oq o) Bujuueld uoissaddnsg

awod3nQ palisag

juswdo|aAsp pue uoljediied abeanodus 03 SIaquUUBW pue SJ3D14J0 104 3de|d Ul Jou 3Je S3JNIdNJIS Jaale) uondinsag

UIMpoo9 edluy €T0C-1BN-TE 9 Q 4 A Buluue|d uoIssa0ONS| Ud ZTTT £TSOVYVI
' ' /o & jiiolid | '

0] paubissy| 9jeq pai|dwo) 9jeq 9@na leg ssa4b0.d snjels juatin) 3311 uoIdy 9po0) uondy




Page 155

paiadwo)

paubissy ‘ssauboud ul papels 10N

ssalbold Moayd paubisseun

payo9|bap ‘anpJano

® ) H|D

pajjeoue)d __
snjeys uoidy
“Juswebebua s210
pue uojjeindsaJd uo 3|04 JBUIgRD MBU 3Y3 Y3IM uoidpunfuod ul 210z 1990300 Ag Ino pallied ag 03 padoy Si 3] "pa3s|duwod usaq Jou sey SIyl ZT0Z-unc-¢T s49yinals eisbuy 10N NIV

pajuswajdwi 8q 03 9JIAISS Wd YIIM wWsiueydaw Bulioliuow uonodelsies Jawoisn)

awod3nQ palisag




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 156



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEEAgenda Item 8

25™ OCTOBER 2012

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY REPORT

EXEMPT INFORMATION

None

PURPOSE

To report on the outcome of Internal Audit’s review of the internal control, risk management
and governance framework in the 2nd quarter of 2012/13 — to provide Members with
assurance of the ongoing effective operation of an internal audit function and enable any
particularly significant issues to be brought the Committee’s attention.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Committee considers the attached quarterly report and raises any issues it
deems appropriate

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 (as amended) require each local authority
to publish an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) with its Annual Statement of
Accounts. The AGS is required to reflect the various arrangements within the
Authority for providing assurance on the internal control, risk management and
governance framework within the organisation, and their outcomes.

One of the sources of assurance featured in the AGS is the professional opinion of
the Head of Internal Audit on the outcome of services’ review of the governance
framework. Professional good practice recommends that this opinion be given
periodically throughout the year to inform the “annual opinion statement”. This
opinion is given on a quarterly basis to the Audit & Governance Committee.

The Head of Internal Audit Services quarterly opinion statement for July — September
2012 (Qtr 2) is set out in the attached document, and the opinion is summarised
below.

Based on the ongoing work carried out by and on behalf of Internal Audit and other
sources of information and assurance, my overall opinion of the control environment
at this time is that “some assurance” can be given. Where significant deficiencies in
internal control have been formally identified by management, Internal Audit or by
external audit or other agencies, management have given assurances that these
have been or will be resolved in an appropriate manner. Such cases will continue to

Page 157



be monitored. Internal Audit’s opinion is one of the sources of assurance for the
Annual Governance Statement which is statutorily required to be presented with the
annual Statement of Accounts.

Specific issues:

No specific issues have been highlighted through the work undertaken by Internal
Audit during 2012/13 (to date).

For easy reference, performance against 2 key performance indicators for the service
is set out in graphical form in Appendix 1 (% of draft reports issued within timeliness

target) and Appendix 2 (% of audit recommendations agreed by management). The

proportion of agreed management actions found to have been implemented is also

shown graphically in Appendix 3. Details of the 2012/13 audit plan completion
status as at 30" September 2012 is detailed at Appendix 4.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

None

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

None

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

None

REPORT AUTHOR

Angela Struthers ex 234

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — percentage of draft reports issued within 15 days

Appendix 2 — percentage of audit recommendations agreed by management
Appendix 2.1 — number of recommendations made and agreed

Appendix 3 — Proportion of agreed management actions implemented
Appendix 4 — Internal Audit plan status as at 30 September 2012

Page 158



INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT / QUARTERLY REPORT — Q2 - 2012/13

1. INTRODUCTION

Internal Audit is an assurance function that primarily provides an independent and
objective opinion to the organisation on the control environment comprising risk
management, control and governance by evaluating its effectiveness in achieving the
organisation’s objectives. It objectively examines, evaluates and reports on the
adequacy of the control environment as a contribution to the proper, economic,
efficient and effective use of resources. Every local authority is statutorily required to
provide for an adequate and effective internal audit function. The Internal Audit
service provides this function at this Authority.

This brief report aims to ensure that Committee members are kept aware of the
arrangements operated by the Internal Audit service to monitor the control
environment within the services and functions of the authority, and the outcome of
that monitoring. This is to contribute to corporate governance and assurance
arrangements and ensure compliance with statutory and professional duties, as
Internal Audit is required to provide periodic reports to “those charged with
governance”.

2, PERFORMANCE AND PROGRESSION AGAINST AUDIT PLAN

The Internal Audit service aims as one of its main Performance Indicators (PI's) to
complete work on at least 90% of applicable planned audits by the end of the
financial year, producing draft reports on these where possible/necessary. As in
previous years it is expected that not all 80 planned areas of audit work will remain to
be delivered for various reasons, eg due to changes within services, delays to
projects, or reasonable requests to delay from managers due to unexpected
demands or resource problems eg sickness. The service thus plans to complete 90%
of those audits that are deliverable in the year.

The Internal Audit service has completed or has underway 41 audit areas of work, of
46 audits planned to be completed by the end of this quarter. Changes to the timings
of the audits have been made for various reasons e.g. due to changes within
services, delays to projects, or reasonable requests to delay from managers due to
unexpected demands or resource problems details of which are given in Appendix
4. The Internal Audit Service has completed works in additional areas as requested
by management. As previously described, the plan has been actively managed to
seek to ensure delivery of good practice levels over the year. Areas of audit work
include the planned audits of systems plus activities that contribute to the overall
governance of the authority. Appendix 4 details the Internal Audit plan status as at
30" September 2012.

The service also reports quarterly on the percentage of draft reports issued within 15
working days of the completion of fieldwork. All (100%) of the 17 draft reports issued
in this quarter of the year were issued within this deadline (see graph at Appendix
1).

The Head of Internal Audit Services is responsible for ensuring that the work of the
service is of appropriate quality to meet professional standards, and has in place, on
an ongoing basis, a number of processes to meet this aim. For instance, there is an
Audit Manual in place to guide auditors in their work, the Head of Internal Audit
Services carries out independent review of auditors work to ensure professional
standards are met, the service benchmarks its performance against other such

Page 159



services in the region, quality control questionnaires are issued to managers for their
view on the work of the service, and so on. The service is also subject to review by
the external auditor, who places reliance on the work of the service. It is considered
that the service continues to ensure professional standards are in place, and indeed
in its move to risk based auditing is ahead of most other similar audit services in the
region in adopting emerging good practice.

3. AUDIT REVIEWS COMPLETED QUARTER 2 2012/13

Internal Audit carries out reviews in compliance with its approved annual Audit Plan
and additional areas where necessary, and reports on these to management in
accordance with its approved Reporting Protocol. The audits finalised since the
previous quarterly report were as shown below and detail the number of
recommendations made and their priority.

M L Agreed
e Data Quality & Records Management 6 21 27
e Strategic Planning - 1 - 1
e Community Safety Hub 2 3 - 5
e Travel & Subsistence 2 15 - 17
¢ PR & Communications Strategy - 3 - 3
e Safeguarding Children & Vulnerable Adults 10 4 - 14
e Private Sector Housing — Empty Homes 1 4 - 5
e Treasury Management - - - -
e Members Allowances & Expenses - 8 -
¢ Community Development - 2 -
e Property Contracts 7 5 - 12

As part of each audit review, recommendations are made where necessary to
address areas where the Internal Audit service considers controls, or compliance
with controls, could be improved to help to manage risks to service objectives and
ensure service objectives are met.

Accordingly a total of 94 new audit recommendations were made in this quarter of
which 94 (100%) were agreed by management (this is the third main service Pl — see
Appendix 2. Appendix 2.1 shows the number of recommendations made and
agreed). Internal Audit is satisfied with the management responses received to the
recommendations made in this period. Each audit will be reviewed within the
specified time scale and the implementation status of the audit recommendations
reported.

The service revisits areas it has audited around 6 months after agreeing a final report
on the audit, to test and report to management on the extent to which agreed actions
have been taken. Implementation reviews finalised during the 2" quarter of 2012/13
are detailed in Appendix 4.

Page 160



4, OVERALL CURRENT INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION

Based on the ongoing work carried out by and on behalf of Internal Audit and other
sources of information and assurance, my overall opinion of the control environment
at this time is that “reasonable assurance” can be given. Where significant
deficiencies in internal control have been formally identified by management, Internal
Audit or by external audit or other agencies, management have given assurances
that these have been or will be resolved in an appropriate manner. Such cases will
continue to be monitored. Internal Audit’s opinion is one of the sources of assurance
for the Annual Governance Statement which is statutorily required to be presented
with the annual Statement of Accounts.

Specific issues:

There were no specific issues highlighted through the work of Internal Audit in the
second quarter of the 2012/13 financial year

Angela Struthers,
Head of Internal Audit Services

Page 161



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 162



€1/210Z LO ZL/1102 €0 ¢L/1102 LO 11/0102 €0 L1/0102 LD 01/600C €O 01/6002 LO
09

JOVHIAVY ONINOIN
IVNLOV —8—
1394V1L —e—

08

00l

| Xipuaddy sAep G| ulyym panssi syuodal Jjelp jo abejuasiad

Page 163



00l

186

GG'L6

GG'L6

Gce'l6

G¢5'86

GCy'66

G/0°66

GC'66

G'96

1999'G6

¢'¥6

68

abeisane Buinow

00l

001

001

(0[0])

876

¥'G6

001

186

00l

66

9'86

¥'66

68

[enjoe —m—

16

16

16

16

.6

.6

16

16

16

.6

16

16

16

1061e] —0—

abesane Buinow
|enjoe —m—
10618} —0—

19914
L02ILO

4
L/110e
148

4
L1102
€0

Z Xipuaddy

4
L1102
[49)

4
L/110e
0]

2
L/0L02C
148

3
L/0L0C
€0

3
L/0L0C
[49)

2
L/0L02C
9]

0
1L/600C
148

0
1/600¢C
€0

0
1/600¢C
[49)

0
1L/6002
9]

paaibe suoijoe Juswabeuew jo abejuasiad

4]

¥8

98

88

06

c6

¥6

96

86

(0[0])

col

Page 164



¥ILAVNO

HOIH d3349V SO340
ANNIdIN d3340V SO3HE
MOT 03349V SO3d0

HOIH d3349V LON SO340O
ANNId3IN d334OV LON SO34m
MOT d334OV LON SO3d[

12 xipuaddy Y3EINNN A9 3389V SNOILOV LNJNIOVNVIN

0¢c

oy

09

08

(0[0])

oclL

orl

091

08l

00¢

Page 165



¢ Xipuaddy

ueAsjal
Jabuoj ou

pa|npayosal

ajep 0} swo9INo

[dwi jou |dwi Ajjeiued  pasjusws|dwi

ol

o
N

o
(3]

o
<

0s

09

suoijoe paaibe jo -ou

€1/Z10Z pajusawajdwi suonjoe jusawabeuew paaibe jo uoipodoid

Page 166



S/ pajnpayosal G , (Juswdojanag spodg)
pajusws|dwi G 0l v @ Al N Buipiooay awi |
e/ ] A (A N " 2U90g 19311S
\¥ 4 M3INSY uoneoldd

e ¢ e S " Iney uonedl|ddy g

\¥ 4 Aouepunpay Asejun|o
e/ Sl v @ was | W punpay Arejunjon
J 9 Juswabeuely spioday
e/ oz - ¢ yds H 3 Ajljlenp eeq
s|0Jju0) [e1ouEtil4
e/u 8 @ e ddsS N JusWuoJINUT 8 SISgSY
SIOBNED
e/u 4’ v e SaM N sa0In9g Apagpld

Bununoooy uie
e/u 0 @@ @ SdiM N i v HEN

slo}go
e/u oc v @ SdM N ¥9ed

UOI}eI|IoU02Y Yue
B/ ¢ @ @ S " el Y ueg
sileday
e/u 9 @ @ S N ansuodsay BuisnoH

ABajens jeude
e/ e A @ Sy " Jess [eyded

a3gqdov
BEVEN SNOILOV clLi6/0€
JONVINSSY M3INTY | LINIJNIOVNVIN BENLER lv SV ONILVY

SININNOD d3SIA3Y | NOILV.ININITdINI 40 ¥39INNN | SONVYNSSY SNLV1S ddALl NS ¢H L INOYd d/d

¢ xipuaddy

Z10Z Jaquisydag 0 Je Se SMejs €1/ZL0Z Ueld HpNny [eusaju)




Jpne

sjiyeuag yim e
paja|dwod aq 0} MBINDY
i JJO 0} panol yds N uopjeoljddy Awspeoy
4 S W gnH Aayes Ajunwwo)
wia)sAs mau —

¢ J1O 0] paroN ® dds N sebiey pue
4 4gs N 100420SI
\/ NES " awoou| yied e
vl Aq ¢ Japenb $S900.d
0] PaAON ® dds N uoiodnpuj/uoionpul-3
vI Aq ¢ Jauenb O BUILBR|D

0] PaAON dds N - ©
sjoelud)
S|dY uo @ Auadoid pue w:a%m_
paja|dwod YIOAA S N aAIsuodsay mc_wb&_._

paja|dwoo =
Bunsa} @@ @ Juswabeuely Ainseal |

Aspenp 0 SEN N
juswelels
@ H09D 90UBUIBAOS) |BnUUY
aoueping
@ d0D |BldueuUl] JO MIIASY
(A MO uoluido Jpny [enuuy
SSOUBAIJ03YT IpNY
@ Y09 [euJBlU| JO MBINDY
a3gqdov
BEVEN SNOILOV m_.re\.m%%

JONVINSSY M3INTY | LINIJNIOVNVIN BENLER SNLVLS ONILVY MHOM A3INNV1d
SININNOD d3SIA3Y | NOILV.ININITdINI 40 ¥39INNN | SONVYNSSY ddALl NS ¢ ® | S¥3LdVNO




] Y, @ qay " alnsio] Ajunwwo)
vI Aq ¢ Jauenb ' Ayojeg poo
0} pano ygy N — uofjosjold dllqnd
— ajuan
ugy N uoljewlojuij 1sluno |
= alua)
gy N UMO] @ WSlINO ]
— Abajens
ey N uojeSlUNWWO) @ ¥d
] 4 @ NP N SUSpPIEeNN 19211S

VI Aq
¢ 11D 0} panoly ® dgy N oV Ew__mMo._
| @ dgay N Z% 0
— A SHNPY S|qesaulrid
vl \ yay N uaipiy9 Buiprenbgyes
] AlA) (A N " Buiuue|d oi16a)eNS

VI Aq ¢ Japenb
01 POAOI O uas W uonebajaq Jo awayds
— uoIEPOWILLIOIDY
dgs N Jo uoneoo||y buisnoH
VI Aq ¢ Japenb Anunuon
0} pano\ ’ ygs H ssauisng ajelo0dio)
— MBINDY
ygs N uonjeolddy uyg
saAoul S|0JJU0)
921)J0 Jaye o |[ejuswiuodinug
¢ JJD 0} panopy yds H % ledisAyd 1|

a3azyov
SETER SNOILOV e

JONVHNSSY M3IIATY | INIWNIOVNVIN TAAIT | Solvis ONILVY MYOM @3INNV1d
SLNIWINOID @3SIA3Y | NOILV.INIWI1dI 40 ¥3FINNN | FONVINSSY 3dAL | MSiH Z 21 ¥3.L3VNO




anssi

Hodal jeuly
ypm paubie & MB3INSY uonedljddy ¢
¢ Jayenb
0} PaAON =1 N
— pajnpayosal 9
Y pajuawWalduWI 6 Gl ® A I H Aoljod s1eaunjop
pajnpayosal g MBINSY
@ pajusws|duwi G| Ll @ @ ol N uoljeol|ddy Jusjeno)
M:mr
| JO psjsjawod ps|npayosal Q|
aQ 0} MalAal Juensjal Jabuojou g v @ SISAISS [ENHIA
|[euonippy pajuswaldwi / 0¢c Al N
— yoddng
dl N dopise( sjowey
Juswdojanaq
e pajuswaldwi g 4 Qe @ ol N Aunwwpd
pajnpayosal G _,H_
@ jueasjal Jabuoj ou | v 4 Buisuaoi 9m>>tomv._._
pajuswa|dwi G| %4 ol H o
viI Aq Juswabe e
¢ 11O 0] Pano\ @ Ml H Koljod @1eso0dion
pajnpayosal ¥
Vi anp18A 10U ¥ "/ @ Buipiooay swi |
. pajuswaldw 1 4} dl N
pajnpayosal ||
vV jueasjal Jabuoj ou | & 9 uolieLiog]
d : ¢ JO wopaali
pajuswa|dwi ¢ Gl ol H
v Aq
$$900.d }03loid 1s0
¥ 1O 0] paAoN @ =1} N d 199101d 130
& IR EEY
N N SEEEIIS
a3gqdov
BEVEN SNOILOV m_.ve\.m%‘m
JONVINSSY M3INTY | LINIJNIOVNVIN BENLER SNLVLS ONILVY MHOM A3INNV1d
SININNOD d3SIA3Y | NOILV.ININITdINI 40 ¥39INNN | SONVYNSSY ddALl NS ¢ ?1 ¥31dvNnO




Page 171

SanOW 2010 -
: uonoaj0Id eje
€ 13D 0} POAOJ & J H 08014 BlEQ
0 Q0 e s SUOINQLIUOY) UOISUSY
IoUN0D
AjunoH wouy
Juswiaiinbal o sjuelo) paseg ealy
Jabuo| oN 1S
a3z ygov
aELER SNOILOV N&.ﬁw
JONVINSSY M3IATY INJNIDOVNVIN BENER SNLVLS ONILVYH MHYOM A3INNV1d
SINININOD a3SIA3Y NOILV.LN3IN3ITdINI 40 J439INNN | SONVYNSSY IdAl MSIH ¢ 21 Y3LIVNO




v S N lloJAed
\ 4 S N Xe] [I9UnoY
"V S N sionpdin

S|
v Ml W opdko

©
VA N N sjusAg Joofino

v AIno2ag Buip|in
y NN " Jun2ag Buipjing

v S|0JU0N 9

’ NES H |osuo) ol ||
sasuadx3y
e/u 8 @ @ ygs H S9OUBMO||Y SJaquiB|N
SOWOH
| @ @ EES N Aydw3 Jojoag ajenld

" 4 2oualsisgn aAnel
e/ /1 @ S " }SISAns g [onel |

a3Izyov
BEVLER SNOILOV m_.@mm&m

JONVINSSY M3IATY | LNIWIOVNVIN TAAIT | Soivis ONILYY 2% 1L S¥3LIVND
SINIWWOD @3SIA3Y | NOILV.INIWI1dII 40 ¥3IFINNN | IDONVINSSY 3dAL MSIY Ol IAOI YHOM




INILSAS TVIONVYNIZ A S
ALIg0dd d
ONILS3L IAILNV1ISANS 1S
MHOM
LINIWIDYNYIN/ALYHOLHOD Y09
M3IIATY 3aSva MSId yay
M3IATY Q3SVa SWILSAS yas
M3IIATY NOILYINIWNITdINI dl
SIdAL
JONVHYNSSY ON [
JONVHNSSY Q3LINIT v
JONVHNSSY 319VYNOSYIY [A)
JONVHYNSSY TVILNYLSENS (A1)
S73A31 3ONVINSSY
Q3137dNOD
LON/Q3TTIONYD @)
AVMYIANN v
ETERE ek ~)

M3IATY NOILVINIWI1dINI / Z2L/6/0€ LV SV wD._.<._.m..

STOAINAS OL A3

Page 173



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 174



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Annual Audit Letter 2011/12
	5 Proposed Changes to Financial Guidance
	Enc. 1 Proposed for Changes to Financial Guidance

	6 Risk Management Report
	Enc. 1 for Risk Management Report
	Enc. 2 for Risk Management Report

	7 Annual Governance Statement 2011/12 - Update
	Enc. 1 for Annual Governance Statement 2011/12 - Update

	8 Internal Audit Quarterly Report 2012/13
	Enc. 1 for Internal Audit Quarterly Report 2012/13
	Enc. 2 for Internal Audit Quarterly Report 2012/13
	Enc. 3 for Internal Audit Quarterly Report 2012/13


